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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

ADDENDUM TO NOTICE OF WITNESS
(FILED JAN 23'15)

AFFIDAVIT OF PERSONAL SERVICE
(FILED MAY 25'18)

AFFIDAVIT “A"
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT “B”
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT *“C”
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT “I1”
(FILED NOV 9'20)

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
(FILED DEC 24'18)

AFFIDAVIT
(FILED OCT 6'16)

AFFIDAVIT “C”°
(FILED JAN 4'21)

AFFIDAVIT “II”
(FILED NOV 23'20)

AFFIDAVIT “1"
(FILED JAN 4'21)

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MATIL
(FILED JAN 6'15)

AFFIDAVIT “2"
(FILED JAN 4'21)

AFFIDAVIT “4A”
(FILED JAN 4'21)

AFFIDAVIT “B”
(FILED JAN 4'21)

PAGE NO.

701-702

2424-2426

3105-3119

3120-3125

3126-3132

3133-3154

3005-3006

1488-1489

3545-3551

3376-3386

3449-3473

537-545

3474-3524

3525-3539

3540-3544

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 18
(VOL. 23
(VOL. 23
(VOL. 23
(VOL. 23
(VOL. 22
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 28
(VOL. 26
(VOL. 27
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 27
(VOL. 27
(VOL. 28
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DESCRIPTION

ALTERNATIVE SENTENCING SUPPLEMENTAL

REPORT
(FILED APRIL 15'14)

AMENDED ORDER FOR PAYMENT (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 18'14)

APPELLANT’S INFORMAL BRIEF
(FILED APR 19'21)

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT OF
INTERPRETER
(FILED APRIL 18'14)

APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO PRODUCE
PRISONER
(FILED SEP 27'18)

APPLICATION FOR ORDER TO PRODUCE
PRISONER
(FILED AUG 8'18)

ERIEF REGARDING STRUCTURAL
(FILED SEP 17'18)

CASE - APPEAL STATEMENT
(FILED MAR 8'21)

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT
(FILED JAN 18'19)

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT
(FILED JUN 22'22)

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT
(FILED MAY*11'15)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED FEB 1'21)
CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED JAN 11'21)

CERTIFICATE'QF SERVICE
(FILED APRIL 11'14)

PAGE NO.

84-85
413

\

3920-3228

233-238

2504-2505

243i—2432
2494-2499
3915-3916
3005-3012
4936—4037
1085-~-1087
3858-3859
3785-3786

70

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 1)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 30
(VOoL. 2)
(VOL. 18
(VOL. 18
[VOL:. 18
(VOL. 30
(VOoL. 22
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 7)
(VOL. 30
(VOL. 30
(VOL. 1)
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CERTIFICATE OF -SERVICE
(FILED MAY 25'18)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(FILED SEP 29'14)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(FILED APRIL 18'14)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(FILED APRIL.18'14)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED NOV 14'16)

CERTIFICATE PF MAILING
(FILED NOV 9'20)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED MAR 21'22)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED FEB 11'21)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED NOV 23'20)

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(FILED AUG 4'14)

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
(FILED APR 21'21)

CERTIFICATE OF THAT NO
IS BEING REQUESTED
(FILED JAN 18'19)

CLERK’S CERTIFICATE
(FILED JUL 22'20)

- INDEX OF PLEADINGS

PAGE NO.

2430

280"

227

232

- 1510

. 3366-3367

4019-4020

3907-3910

3372-3375

269

3929-3930
TRANSCRIPT

3013-3014

3049

CLERKS CERTIFICATE (SUPREME COURT)

(FILED JAN 14'16)'

EVIDENCE IN MITIGATION
(FILED APR 14'15)

1485

999-1003

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 18
(voL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 25)
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 25)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 22)
(VOL. 22
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 6)
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EX PARTE MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR
INVESTIGATOR
(FILED APRIL 7'17)

EX PARTE MOTION:-FOR LEAVING TO HIRE
INVESTIGATOR
(FILED APRIL 14'17)

EX PARTE INVOICE AND REQUEST
FOR PAYMENT
(FILED APRIL 3'17)

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR ADDITIONAL
INVESTIGATIVE FEES
(FILED JAN 2'15)

EX PARTE INVOICE AND REQUFST FOR
PAYMENT
(FILED JUL 24'17)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR A
CRIME 'SCENE o
(FILE AUG -8'18)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR INTERPRETER FEES
(FILED MAY 16'18) ° - - -

EX PARTE -MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR A
PSYCHIATRIC EXPERT
(FILED AUG 8'18)

EX -PARTE MOTION FOR INVESTIGATION FEES
(FILnD MAY 16'18)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR POST CONVICTION
REPRESENTATION EXPERT
(FILED AUG 8'18)

EX ‘PARTE MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR
LINGUISTICS EXPERT
(fILED OCT 25'18)

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR FELS(SEALED)
(FILED DEC 26'14)

PAGE NO.

1550-1552
1553-1556
1546-1548
462~467

1563~I$70

2441-2443

¥e]

71-1974

'_.\

2433-2436
1984-1986
2444-2447

2526-2530

445-447

VOL. NO. |.
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 11
(voL. 11
(VOL. 3)
(VOL..Il
(VOLT 18
(VOL. 14
(VOL. 18
(véL; 14
(VOL. 18
(voL. 18
(VOL. 35
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EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR FEES (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 26'14)

EX PARTE APPLICATION FEES (SEALED)
(FILED APRIL 17'14)

EX PARTE APPLICATICN FOR FUNDS (SEALED)
(FILED NOV 17'14).

EA PARTE MOTION FOR INTERPRETER
(FILED AUG 16'18)

EX PARTE REQUEST FOR PAYMENT (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 5'14)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR INVESTIGATION FEES
(FILED MAY 16'18)

EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR FUNDS FOR
EXPERT WITNESS (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 5'14)

EX PARTE REQUEST FOR PAYMENT
(FILED FEB 6'15)

EX PARTE MOTION FOR EXPERT WITNESS
FEES
(FILED MAR 7'19)

EXHIBITS FILED
(FILED JAN 4'21)

EXHIBITS FILED
(FILED JAN 4'21’

EXHIBITS FILED
(FILED JAN 4'21)

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE FORM(SEALFD)
(FILED NOV 14'16)

INDEX OF EXHIBITS
(FILED NOV_9'20)

PAGE NO.

442 220
228-231
282-339
2454-2456

347-348

.. 1975-1983

786-787

3016-3029
3693-3780
3552-3654
3655-3692
1502-1507

3155-3256

VOIL.. NO.
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 18
(VOL. 2)
(VOIL.. 14)
(VOL.. 2)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL.. 22)
(VOL. 29)
(VOL. 28)
(VOL. 29
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 24
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INDEX GCF EXHIBIT(S)
(FILED NOV 9'20)

INDEX OF EXHIBITS
(FILED NOV 9'20)

'INFORMATION

(FILED APRIL 8'14)

INSTRUCTION TO THE JURY
(FILED FEB 5'15)

ISSUED WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(FILED MAY 24'18)

JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
(FILED APR 21'15)

JURY VENIRE

(FILED JAN 5'15)

JURY  VERDICT
(FILED FEB 5'15)

LIST OF TRIAL JURORS
(FILED JAN 5'15)

MOTION TO COMPEL COMPLIANCE
WITE DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
(FILED SEP 4'18)

(FILED DEC 12'14)

MOTION TO STRIKE BRIEF REGARDING

STRUCTURAL ERROR OR, IN THE

ALTERNATIVE, MOTION FOR SUFFICIENT
TIME TO RESPOND TO BRIEF IN WRITING

(FILED SEP 18'18)

MOTION IN LIMINE REGARDING CRIME
SCENE AND AUTOPSY PHOTOGRAPHS

PAGE NO.

3257-3278

3279-3363

55-60

719-758

2422-2423

1016-1018

471
710-718

470
2475-2478

356-360

2500-2502

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 24)
(VOL:.. 25)
(VOL. 1)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL.. 7)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL.. 3)
(VOL. 18
(VOL.. 2)
18)

(VOL.
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DESCRIPTION PAGE NO.

MOTION TO EXCLUDE TESTIMONY
OF NATASHA KHARIKOVA .
(FILED OCT 29'18) ‘ 2532-2535

MOTION FOR COURT APPOINTED FEES WITH
AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT THEREOF
fFILED APRIL 17v14) - 2z1-223

MOTION FOR COURT ORDER TO ALLOW

DEFENSE INSPECTION OF SCENE OF

ALLEGED OFFENSE

(FILED DEC 31'14) 455-458

MOTION TO RESPONDENT “MOTION TO

DISMISS PRO PER SECOND POST CONVICTION

PETITION FOR A WRIT OF HABEAS”

(FILED JAN 11'21) . 3781-3784

MOTION TO PROCEED IN FORMA
PAUPERIS -
(FILED MAY 11'15) ' 1078-1079

MOTION -TO WITHDRAW CGOUNSEL
(FILED NOV 5'20) 3058-3066

-MOTION IN LIMINE REGARDING DEATH

CERTIFICATE
(FILED DEC 26'14) 424-441

MOTION TO DISMISS ‘PRO PER THIRD POST

CONVICTION PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS

CORPUS

(FILED APRIL 5'22) 4023-4026

MOTION IN LIMINE REGARDING

UNCHARGED 'MISCONDUCT AND -COLLATERAL

OFFENSES

(FILED DEC 29'14) - 448-451

MOTION FOR DISMISS PRO PER SECOND POST
CONVICTION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(FILED NOV 19'20) 3368-3371

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 19)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 30)
(VvoL. 7)
(VOL.22)
(VOL.. 3)
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 25
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MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF TIME TO FILE
SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS

(FILED JAN 24'18)

MOTION FOR FUNDS FOR INTERPRETER
(FILED MAY 9';7)

MOTICGN FOR PRODUCTION OF JAVS
RECORDINGS
(FILED MAY 9'17)

MOTION FOR PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS (SECOND POST CONVICTION)
(FILED JAN 4'21)

MOTION FOR PETITION TO TJ‘STABLISH
FACTUAL INNOCENCE ;
(ETLED JAN 41'21)

MOTION I5‘0R PFTITIOV FOR EN
BANC RECONSIDERATICN
(FILED JAN 3'22) .

MOTION FOR APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL
(FILED NOV 14'16)

MOTION FOR. ENLARGEMENT OF
TIME
(FILED APRIL 11'18)

MOTION IN LIMINE REGARDING JUROR-
QUESTIONING OF WITNLSSES
(FILED DEC 12'14) ‘

MOTION IN -LIMINE REGARDING TESTIMONY
CONCERNING CRIME SCENE RECONSTRUCTION
BY MATTHEW NOEDEL ‘

(FILED- .JAN 2GC'15)

MOTION TO CONTINUE
(FILED AUG 4'14) --

PAGE NO.

1574-1579

1561-1564

1558-1560

3445-3446

3447-3448

3933-3942

1508-1509

1493-1497

351-3

m
U1

588-693

270-275

VOL.. NO.
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 27)
(VOL. 27}
(VOL. 31)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 2)
(VOL.. 4)
(VOL. 2)
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DESCRIPTION

MOTION TO RECONSIDER DECISION
(FILED FEB 11'21)

MOTION TO WITHDRAW REQUEST FOR
PAYMENT FIREARM
(FILED MAR 6'15)

MOTION TO RECONSIDER DECISION

-(FILED FEB 1'21)

MOTION TO WITHDRAW COUNSEL
(FILED OCT 6'16)

NON OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS MOTION

IN LIMINE RE: UNCHARGED MISCONDUCT AND
COLLATERAL OFFENSES

(FILED JAN 12'15)

NOTICE OF APPEAL
(FILED JAN 18'18)

NOTICE OF APPEAL
(FILED JUN 21'22)

NOTICE OF APPEAL
(FILED MAY 11'15)

NOTICE OF APPEAL
(FILED FEB 22'21)

NOTICE OF ASSOCIATION OF COUNSEL
(FILED SEP 17'18) '

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

(FILED MAY 25'18)

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
(FILED DEC 24'18)

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
(FILED JAN'21)

PAGE NO.

3864-3906

815

3815-3857

1486-1487

548-549

3007—3008
4035

10?3—1084
3911-3914
2492-2493
2427-2429
2986-3004

3801-3814

VOL. NO.

(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 5)

(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL.:B)

(VOL. 32)
(VOL. 31)
(VOL. 7)

(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 22)
(VOL. 30)
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DESCRIPTION

NOTICE OF EXPERT WITNESS
(FILED DEC 17'14)

NOTICE OF EXPERT WITNESS
(FILED JAN 6'15)

.NOTICE CF EXPERT .WITNESS

(FILED AUG’18) -

NOTICE 'OF EXPERT WITNESS
(FILED OCT 25'18)

NOTICE IN LIEU OF REMITTITUR
(SUPREME COURT)
(FILED MAR 15'22)

NOTICE OF MOTION
(FILED NOV 9'20)

NOTICE OF MOTION
(FILED NOV‘9'20)

NOTICE OF NON-CAPITAL PROCEEDINGS
(FILED APRIL 8'14)

NOTICE OF NON-OPPOSITION TO
DEFENDANTS MOTION IN LIMINE
REGARDING DEATH CERTIFICATE
(FILED DEC 29'14)

NOTICE OF PROSECUTION TRIAL WITNESS
(FILED DEC 17'14)

NOTICE OF WITNESS
(FILED JAN 20'15)

NOTICE OF WITNESSES
{FILED SEP’lDfLB)

NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL OF MOTION FOR
COURT ORDER TO ALLOW DEFENSE
INSPECTION OF SCENE OF ALLEGED

PAGE NO.

369-412

472-536 -
2458-2474

2521-2525

3954

3050-~-3052

68-69

452-453
361-268
585-587

2485-2487

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 21
(VOL. 22)
(VOL. 22)
(VOL. 1)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 4)
(VOL. 18)
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 OFFENSE

(FILED JAN 12'15)

OPPOSITION TO STATE'S MOTION TO

INCREASE ‘BAIL
(FILED APRIL 11'14)

OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS

MOTION TO LIMINE RE: CRIME SCENE

RECONSTRUCTION
(FILED JAN 22'15)

ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE
(FILED FEB 8'22)

ORDER FOR PAYMENT
(FILED 24'17)

ORDER DENYING REHEARING
(FILED JAN 14'22)

ORDER
(FILED SEP 27'17)

ORDER OF AFFIRMANCE
(FILED DEC '20'21)

ORDER TO CONTINUE
(FILED AUG 4'14)

(FILED JAN 30'18)

ORDER DIRECTING TRANSMISSION OF RECORD

AND REGARDING BRIEFING
(FILE MAR 23121)

ORDER
(FILED MAY 11'17)

ORDER GRANTING EXTENSION OF TIME

PAGE _NO.

546-547

71-80

694-700

3947-3949

1571

3?43

1573
3931-3932
276

1584

3918-3919

1566

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 1)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 31
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 11
(VOL. 30
(VOL. 11
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DESCRIPTION

ORDER FOR APPOINTMENT OF CO COUNSVL
(FILED OCT 1'14)

ORDER _
(FILED APRIL 12'18)

ORDER AUTHORIZING FUNDS FOR EMPLOYMENT
OF A FORENSIC PATHOLOGIST AND SEALING
APPLICATION AND ORDER (SEALED)

(FILED NOV 17'14)

ORDER -
(FILED MAY 14'15)

ORDER
(FILED MAY 11'17)

ORDER GRANTING EX PARTE -MOTION FOR - =
INVESTIGATION FEES
(FILED MAY: 17'18)

ORDER GRANTING EX PARTE- MOTION FOR
INTERPRETER FEES
(bILED MAY 17°18)

ORDER GRANTING  EX 'PARTE MOTION FOR
INVESTIGATION FEES
(FILED MAY 17°18)

ORDER -
(FILED FEB 5'21)

ORDER FOR PAYMENT (SEALED)
(FILED DEC 8714)

PQDHR AUTHORIZING FUNDS FOR FORENSIC
PATHOLOGIST AND SEALING APPLICATION
AND ORDER (SEALED)

(FILED DEC 9714)

ORDER: DENYING PETITION (SUPREME COURT)
(FILED FEB 22'22) .

PAGE NO.

281

1970

340
1088-1089

1565

1987

1988

1989
3862-3863

349

350

w
(o]
[$1]
N
i
)
0
()]
w

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 14)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 7)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. -14)
(VOL. 14)
(VOL. 14)
(VOL. 30)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 31)




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
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DESCRIPTION

ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR LEAVE
TO HIRE INVESTIGATOR
(FILED APRIL 17'17) .

OﬁDER FOR PAYMENT OF ATTORNEY FEES
(EILED APRIL 21%14)

ORDER FOR I&SLKNCE OF WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS }
(FILED MAY ?4'18)

ORDER =
(FILED JAN 11'21)

ORDER TRANSFERRING CASE TO DEPARTMENT 1
VACATING THE HEARING SET FOR DECEMBER
22, 2014 AND CONFIRMING THE TRIAL DATE
OF JANUARY 27, 2015 AT 9:00AM

(FILED DEC 19'14)

ORDER SETTING TRIAL
(FILED APRIL”21'14)

ORDER CONFIRMING TRIAL DATES AND
SETTING PRE-TRIAL CONFERENCE
(“IuED DEC 24'14)

ORDER FOR PAYMENT
(FILED APRIL 4'17)

ORDER
(FILED JUNE 23'17)

ORDER - FOR - PAYMENT
(FILED MAR 9'15)

ORDER ) o
(FILED AUG ‘9'18)

ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER
(FILED AUG 9'18)

PAGE NO.

1557

241

2421

3789-3800

239-240

415-416
1549

1568

998
2448-244¢

2450

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL.. 30)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 11)
(voL. 11)
(VOL. &)
(VOL. 18)
(voL. 18)
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DESCRIPTION

ORDER
(FILED AUG 9'18)

ORDER
(FILED AUG 9'18)

ORDER- :
(FILED AUG 9'18)
ORDER CALLING JURY
(FILED JAN 2'15)

ORDER GRANTING EX PARTE MOTICN
FOR INTERPRETER FEES
(FILED AUG 20'18)

ORDER
(FILED JUN 21.'22)

ORDER: FOR.'PAYMENT (K. BROWN)
(FILED FEB 23'15)

ORDER’ SHORTENING TIME TO RESFOND
TO MOTION TO COMPEL
(FILED AEP 6'18)

ORDER AUTHORIZING ADDITIONAL FEES
FOR EMPLOYMENT OF AN INVESTIGATOR
AND TO SEAL PLEADINGS (SEALED)

(FILED JAN 2'15)

ORDER

{FILED JAN 3'17)
ORDER  © "
(FILED SEP 13'18)

GRDER ALLOWING THE DEFENSE T
PURCHASE ‘WEAPON

(FILED JAN 5'15)
ORDER

(FILED NOV 26'16)

PAGE NO.

2451

2452

2453

459-460

2457

4031-4034

814
2479
461
1545

2490-2491

468

1540-1541

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL.. 18)
(VOL. 31)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 11)
(VOLi. 18)
(VOL. 3)
(VOL. 11)
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INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION PAGE NO.

ORDER'FOP PAYMENT (FORENSIC TECH) :
(bILED FEB 23'15) 813

ORDER FOR PAYMENT (NANCY STRAYERN) .
(FILED FEB 23'15) _ 812

ORDER SETTING CONTINUES HEARING
(FILLD SEP 19'18) 2503

ORDER AUTHORIZING FEES FOR EMPLOYMENT

~OF 'INVESTIGATOR AND TO SEAL PLEADINGS

(SEALED)
(FILED APRIL 17'14) 219

ORDER GRANTING MOTION IN LIMINE

REGARDING JURCR QUESTIONING OF

WITNESS

(FILED JAN 12'15) L . ... 550

ORDER INCREASING BAIL C
(FILED APRIL 14'14) ' , 82-83

ORDER TO PRODUCE PRISONER

(FILED OCT 1'18) _ 2520
ORDER’

(FILED OCT 25'18) 2531
ORDER OF 'AFFIRMANCE

(FILED DEC 21'15) 1479-1480
ORDER

(FILED DEC 23'20) 3387-3389

ORDER RE: MOTION IN LIMINE
REGARDING DEATH CEPTIFTCPTE
\FILFD JAN 14'15) : 551

ORDER RE: MOTION IN- LIMINE REGARDING
UNCHARGED MISCONDUCT AND COLLATERAL

OFFENSES :

(FILED JAN 14'15) 552

VOL. .

(VOL.
(VOL .

(VOL.

(VOL.

(VOL.
zVOL;
(VOL.
(VOL.
(voL.

(VOL.

(VOL.

(VOL

NO

18)

1)

18

18

11

26
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DESCRIPTION

ORDER APPOINTING COUNSEL
(FILED APRIL 14'14)

CRDER AUTHORIZING FEES FOR EMPLOYMENT
OF 2 .FORNSIC INVESTIGATOR
(FITvD DEC 30'14)

ORDER :
(FTLED JAN 26'15)

ORDERtDIRECTING TRANSMISSION OF
RECORDS AND REGARDING BRIEFING
(FILED AUG 1'22)

ORDER DENYING POST-CONVICTION
PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(FILED DEC 20'18)

CRDER DENYING REHEARING (SUPREME COURT)
{FILED .FEB'8'22)

ORDER SETTING-HEARING -
(FILED MAY 24'18) -

ORDER OF AFWIRWAN“E(QUPREMQ COURT) -
(FILhD JUL 22! 20)

ORDER OF AFFIQMANCE(SUPREME CCURT)
(F ILED JAN 14 16)

ORDER 'FOR PPYWENT
(bIgFD FEB 9'15)

ORDER - OF AFFIRMANCE
(FILED JUNE 26'20)

CRDER ‘GRANTING EX PARTE MOTION ‘FOR
EXPERT WITNESS FEES
(FILED MAR 7'19)

ORDER ZND' CCMMITMENT
(FILED APRIL 4!14)

PAGE NO.

81

454

703-704

1500

- 29609~

3945-

2419

3040

1481~

788

3031

3030

-1501

2985
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-2420

-3048
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-3038

VOL. NO.
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(VOL. 3)
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PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(POSI CONVICTION)
(FILED JAN 4'21)

PE“ITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(FILED MAR 21'22)

PETITION FOR.WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(FILED NOV 14'16) '

PETITIQN_FOR:WRIT CF HABEAS CORPUS 2ND

(POST CONVICTION)
(FILED NOV 9'20)

PETITIONER’S OPPOSITION TO MOTION
TO EXCLUDE
(FILED NOV 6'18)

PETITIONER’S RESPONSE TO MOTION TO
COMPEL. AND . COUNTERMOTION FOR WAIVER

OF OBLIGATION TO PRODUCE EXPERT REPORTS

PURSUANT TO NRCP
(FILED SEP -6'18)

PRE-SENT INVESTIGATION- COVFIDENTIAL
(SEALED) '
(FILED APR 17'15)

PRO PER SECOND-POST'CONVICTION
PETITION FOR-A WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(FILED JAN 4'21)

RECEIPT OE"DOCUMENTS(SUPREME COURT)
(FILED JAN 30'19)

RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS (SUPREME COURT)
(FILED FEB 2'22)

RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS(SUPREME COURT)
(FILED JUNE 27'22)

RECEIPT. FOR: DOCUMENTS(SUPREME:COURT)'

(EILED JUNE 4'15)

PAGE _NO.

3400-3444
3955-4018

1511-1539
3067-3104

2536-2548

2480-2484

3394—3355
3015
1498
1499

1091

VOL. NO
(VOL. 26)
(VOL. 31)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL. 23)
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RECEIPT FOR DOCUMENTS
(FILED MAR 11'21)

REMITTITUR
(FILED JUL 22'20)

REMITTITUR
(FILED FEB 9'22)

REMITTITUR (SUPREME COURT)}
(FILED JAN 14'16)

REPLY TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION TO

EXCLUDE TESTIMONY OF NATASHA KHARIKOVA

(FILED NOV 7'18)

REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION
{(FILED NOV 9'20)

RECUEST FOR PAYMENT
(FILED FEB 18'15)

REQUEST " FOR ' PAYMENT
(FILED FEB 18'15)

REQUEST FOR - PAYMENT
(EILED FEB 18'15)

REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION CF MOTION
(FILED MAR 21'22)

REQUEST FOR APPOINTMENT OF CO-COUNSEL

(FILED‘SEP 29'14)

REQUEST FOR -SUBMISSION OF~MOTICN
{FILED FEB.l1'21)

REQUEST FOR SUEMISSION- (SECOND P
OF HABEAS CORPUS POST CONVICTION
(FILED JAN 4'21)

REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION OF MOTION
(FILED JAN 4'21)

ETITION
)

PAGE NO.

3917
3039
3951

1484

2549-2560
3364-3365
789-794.
798-793

795-797

4021-4022"

279

3386-3397

3398-3399

VOL. NO.
{VOL. 30)
(VoL. 22)
(VOL. 31)
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(VOL. 19)
{(VOL. 25)
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REQUEST FOR DISCOVERY
(FILED. APRIL 17'14)

REQUEST FOR PAYMENT
(FILED FEB 18'15)

REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION
(FILED SEP 13718)

REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION
(FILED APRIL 17'14)

REQUEST FOR ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
(FILED MAY 11'15)

REQUEST FOR PAYMENT
(FILED FEB 18'15)

REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION OF MOTION
{FILED "JAN -11'21)

RESPONSE TO MOTION ‘IN LIMINE
REGARDING JUROR QUESTIONING
OF WITNESS

(FILED DEC 26'14)

RESPONSE TO MOTION IN LIMINE REGARDING

CRIME SCENE AND AUTOPSY PHOTOGRAPHS
(FILED DEC 26'14)

RESPONSE TO MOTION FOR EXTENSION OF
TIME TO FILE SUPPLEMENTAL PETITION
FOR WRIT OF HABREAS CORPUS
{FILED JAN 30'18) .

RESPONSE TO MOTION FOR EXTENSION CF
TIME - - T
(FILED JAN 30'18)

RESPONSE TO POST-CONVICTION PETITION
FOR WRIT :OF HABEAS CORPUS (PART 1)
(FILED MAY 17'18)

PAGE NO.

224-226
8032-811
2487-2489
220
1080-1082
800-802

3787-3788

421-423

417-420

1580-1583
1580-1583

1990-20875

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 5)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 7)
(VOL.. 5)
{VOL.. 30)
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(VOL. 2)
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(VOL. 11
(va. 14




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

INDEX OF PLEADINGS

DESCRIPTION

RESPONSE TO POST-CONVICTION.PETITION
FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS(PART 2)
(rILED MAY 17'1i8)

RESPONSE TO POST-CONVICTION PETITION
FOR -WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (PART 4)
(FILED MAY 17'18)

RESPONSE'TO POST-CONVICTION PETITION
FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS (PART 3)
(FILED MAY 17'13)

RESPONSE TO BRIEF REGARDING ALLEGED
STRUCTURAL ERRCR IN FAILING TO CBTAIN
AN INTERPRETER.

(FILED SEP 29'18)

STATE’3 MOTION TO INCREASE. BAIL
(FILE D APRIL 8'14)

9'1‘.’-\.'I‘F""1 NON OPPOSITION TO DFFENDANT S
&OTLON TO CONTINUE o
(FILED AUG 4'14)-

STIPULATION TC EXTEND TIME TC FILE
SUPPLEMENTAL - PETITION Lo
FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

(FILED JUNE 22'17)

'STIPULATION TO EXTEND OF TIME TO FILE

SUPPLEMENTAL- FPETITION: FOR WRIT -OF
HABEAS CORPUS -SECOND REQUEST
(FILED DEC 24'16)

STIPULA” “ON - TO 'WAIVE' PENALTY HEARINu
BY JURY- - 7.
(FILED SAN 16'15)

STIPULATION TO EXTEND TIME TO FILE
PETTITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
(bILED SEP 25'17)

DPAGE NO.

2076-2210

2316-2418

2211-2315

2506-2510

61-67

277-278

1567

1542
553-554 .

1572

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 15)
(VOL.. 17)
(VOL,. 16)
(VOL. 18)
(VOL. 1)
(VOL. 2)
(VoL. 11)
(VOL. 11)
(VOL.. 4}
(VOL. 11
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SUBPOENA FILED (CHRIS HEADRICK)
(FILED JAN 28‘15)

SUBPOENA.. FILED(JIM, ANLE)
(FIuED JAN 29'15)

SUBDOENA FILED

'QEILEDiJAN:29'15X

SUBPOENA FILED
(FILED JAN 29'15)

SUBPOENA FILED
(FILED JAN 29'15)

SUPPLEMENTAL CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

RE: REQUEST FOR ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

(FILED MAY 27'15)

SUPPLEMENTAL POSTCONVICTION
PETITION FOR A WRIT OF HABREAS
CORPUS NRS 34.361 ET SEQ.
(PART 2)

(FILED FEB 26'18)

SUPPLEMENTAL EVIDENCE IN MITIGATOR
(FILED'APR 20'15)

SUPPLEMENTAL POSTCONVICTION
PETITION FOR A WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS NRS 34.361 ET SEQ.
(PART 1)

(FILED FEB 26'18)

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS- ARRAIGNMENT
4/14/14
(FILED MAY “19'14)

TRANSCRIPT OF JURY TRIAL 1/27/2015
ROUGH DRAFT
(FILED JUNE 18'15)

PAGE_NO.

709

707

706

708

1090

1778-1969

1011-1015

1585-1777

242-261

1105-1119

VOL. NO.
(VoL. 5)
(VOL.. 5)
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(voL. 13)
(VOL.. 7)
(VOL. 12)
(VOL. 2)
(VOL. 8)
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OF JURY TRIAL 1/28/15

(FILED JUNE 18'15)

TRANSCRIPT

OF JURY TRIAL 1/29/15

(FILLED JUNE 18'15)

TRANSCRIPT
CONVICTION

(FILED NOV

TRANSCRIPT
HEARING]
(FILED MAY

TRANSCRIPT
CONVICTION
(PART 1)

(FILED DEC

TRANSCRIPT

OF PROCEEDINGS (POST
HEARING 11/16/18)

29'18)

OF PROCEEDINGS (SENTENCING
5'15)

OF PROCEEDINGS (POST
HEARING 11/15/18)

5'18)

OF JURY TRIAL 2/2/2015

(FTLFD JUNE 18'15)

TRANSCRIPT"

OF JURY TRIAL 2/4/4015

\FILED JUVE ld'lS)

TRANSCRIPT

OF PROCEEDINGS

(MOTIONS HEARING)

(FILED JAN

TRANSCRIPT

20'"5)

OF JURY TRIAL 1/23/2015

ROUGH DRAFT
(FILED JUNE 18'15)

TRANSCRIPT
SELECTION)

OF. PROCEEDINGS " (JURY

(FILED MAR 9'15)

rriRANSCRIPT

OF JURY LRLAL 7/ /2015

(FILED JUNE 18715)

TRANSCRIPT OF PRQCEEDINGS -
PRELIMINARY HEARING
(FILED APRIL116'14)

PAGE NO.

1120-1202

1203-1285
2561-2637
1019-1077

2638-2796

1351-1387

1388-1446
555-584
1092-1104

816-997

1447-1478

86-218
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(VOL.. 8)
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(VOL. 19)
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TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS (ARRAIGNMENT)
(FILED MAY 21'14)

ORDER ‘SETTING TRIAL..
(FILED AUG 4'14)

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS (MOTIONS HRG.)
(FILED- SEP 28'18) ' - L '

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS (POST
CONVICTION HEARING 11/15/18)
(PERT 2)° ~ -

(FILED DEC 5'18)

TRANSCRIPT OF JURY TRIAL 1/30/2015
(FILED JUNE 18'15)

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS (MOTION - ..
HEARING)
(FILED.FEB 5'15)

VICTIM IMPACT STATEMENTS AND °
PEOTOGRAPH OF VICTIM
(FILED APR 20'15)

PAGE NO.
262-266
267-268

2511-2519
2797-2968
1286-1350
759-785

1004-1010

VOL. NO.
(VOL. 2)
(VOL... 2)
(VOL. 18)
(VOIL.. 21)
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10wW. much we

s S

NN N

;w 1Y€ ﬂother €0 Ie 'look at |t lt’syhnét gomg

=T

lam not ...

.. Tatiana what we need ...
.. (unintelligible).
.. you is to explain to us why.

Oh Jmy. gosh, | am not kill

my{husband lam not kl"_’m husban

Fs e ST fass RO )

a7

Was it an acmdent?

Did it happen by accident? Because he didn’t do it to himself.
| am not kill my husband. | am not kill.

Ihg,gyiggg‘gs_goesn’t say | that though.

Okay, “make

o Z s m,ﬂ.\_‘.»-sg_/-mq.._n...

g‘El am:not killL.m: husband \ am mnocent ) ' If you do to me, please do

“to me anything, but Zm nét kil my husband.

That’s not what the evidence says.

Why | call police right away? Because ...
Peopie do it all the time.

They do it a;ll the time.

3657

278
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That doesn’t ...

Hey ...

.. that doesn’t ...

.. hey ..

would I call the police, that’s

Uh-huh.

Okay?

. people ..

G,thcourse_normal,a

. people ..

o
e }
g

. because | kil my husband and call pohce'?

- listen things happen. People make .
mlstakes okay, and they call the police, okay? So you saying why

.. that’s normal.

Even when they shoot their husband it's normal for them to call the

police.

lam not ...

Okay, do you understand that?

Yes, | understand.

Okay.

Butlam not....

Okay ...

.. go kill my husband.

So ... okay you keep saying that. But listen, ! ..

you understand completely that ... the ..

house don’t lie. They don't. They can’t. It’s impossible. Okay?

. the ..

. 1 don’t know that¢
. the facts at the
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Okay.

And the facts say that Harry was not holding the gun when it fired.
Okay? it’'s impossible.

So make anocther...
No. No, no ...
.. make ...

...no. No, no ...

So this is means ...

("'H' S N S
{Tan Iam never kill ..}

I Z —

RNt «%Mu;ﬂ

Tatiana | don’t...

.. | am never think ...

.. Latiana Irdon’t beheve, I un.ane
ng to kill'Harry:" us ha .'ened lt’s somethmg '

5 NG )
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vhere 2 you were

i AR T G N T T
{holdmg the gun okay? I

Somehow he hold it.
No, he ...
No, somehow he ...
.. there’s no magical way he could have done it.
lcan’t...
Okay?
..lcan’t ..
But... but ...
.. | think ...

.. you need to understand though. | don’t think you’re a person
that’s going to wake up and go | don’t like that person, I'm just gomg
to kill him, which is why | ... which is why trying to tell us why this ,
happened and how is im ortant S0 we can explain to eople that th|s i
isn’t just Tatiana that i is s mean, vin _|Ct|ve and dacides” you “Kniow
what, | don’t like Harry, 'm going to shoot him. | don’t believe that’s
how it happened. [ believe there was an argument ... there was
something and at some point you ended up holding the gun and it
fired and it shot Harry.

lam not ...
Okay, that’s what ! believe happened.

Did you try to stop h|m from shootm )-himself?

S < : e A T e e o N L
m o

ﬁéYeah thls |s mea‘nspl am" not go:

RS e

MN"\ S 2,
n yesterda
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No, listen, that’s not what I’'m asking you.

Yeah.

What I’'m asking you is did you try to stop him from shooting
himself?

Today you’re talking about?

Yes Was he going to shoot himself and you grabbed the gun"

' No Iam not graml
% _,second shot and | come to him,_.

| don’t know how to talk to
somehow you were holding

And ... okay. Becauseit...itjust...l...
you because it ... there’s ... there’s no ...
the gun when the gun went off.

Uh-huh.
lam not ...
Okay?
.. holding this gun.
You had to have been, okay‘?

e SRS M«M
- _’—,‘.‘.'_yrv = = s

lam not hold gun4toda-y 5 ;
shoot my husband today. How / many you told me 5|gns or ! not S|gns/
\olam not shoot my husband et e SR

A
R ‘_“,,-._,“-_.,o—"“

That doesn’t .. lt’s notrgomrgato,change that.

It’s:nots
bttt 2

t’s.not.
..

*So [ thlnk you shot hum okay? But | also thmk you love Harry.

306 2
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brother, Igor, and would do things with him and Harry. I asked Chris what he
knew about Tatiana from before she came to the United States. Chris said Tatiana
was very quiet and he never got into any conversations with her regarding her
past.

Chris said he and Harry talked a lot and it was usually about how things axe
going with Chris and the work he does. Chris said that Harry would always try to
steer him into another line of work other than cutting firewood and delivering
it. Chris said Harry never talked about his personal life or his financial
status with him. Chris said when you were at Harry'!s house 95% of the time Harxry
*had the floor".

T asked Chris if Tatiana worked. Chris said Tatiana was working on some type of
high-tech software. Chris added that Harry really helped Tatiana on this
venture. Chris said that Tatiana was 'working in Reno and possibly through the:
Gov.'s office or with a State Senator, and added that she was working some
really strange houxrs. Chris said the past six months before the incident he
would come over and visit Harry and Tatiana would not be at home. Chris said
he'd ask Harry were Tatiana was and he would tell her that she worked all night
and was sleeping. Chris said that Harry was putting a lot of money into the
bugsiness that Tatiana was runming and seemed to be stressed about it. Chris said

- the last year he seemed more and more stressed and edgy about it. Chris added

that he had conversations with Harry were he believed Harry was irritated about

the business that Tatiana was running. :

Chris said that Harry was irritated by the late hours that Tatiana was working,
but added at the same time he was happy that she was doing the business. Chris
added that previously Tatiana got ripped off by the Russians. Chris said he was
told that she had a multimilliion dolilar business deal with the Russian
government because she worked for the Russians. Chris was told that Tatiana had
a software program that she was trying to sell to the Russians through Oracle,
but Oracle took her idea and cut her out of the deal. Chris =zaid he believed the
new company Tatiana was running was to get back at Oracle and develop new
software. :

Chris said at one point he thought Harry was about to talk to him about some
financial issues, but then he would smoke marijuana and the subject changed.
. . Gidnttshave:hissmariijuanacsevery:day-hesis-extremelys

Chris said there was a time he provided Harry with marijuana and added that
Harry talked him into being a grower in Califormia. Chris._said Harry.had gome,

e RgEous~a1gest s-wWhyshexsmoked marijuana. :

I told Chris that after reviewing the text messages between him and Harry it .
appeared tthat Harry was very demanding. I told Chris that it also appeared that
he would mot reéspond to Harry's texts. Chris said at times he didn't respond

becauvse with Harry it was always about Harry and added that he drives a lot and

that's also why he wouldn't respond to Harry's messages.

Chris said when their opportunities to go to San Diego or Los Angeles that Harxy
would mever go, it was always Tatiana. Chris said when Tatiana would go she
would be gone for three or four days. I asked Chris how Harry dealt with that.
Chris told me that Harry didn't like it. Chris said that Harry was capable of
taking care of ‘himself but he would rather have Tatiana there to take care of
things for him. Chris added that sometimes he got the feeling that Harry liked

ST
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helpful.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MAILONE: I didn't know if it would be

If I can have one moment, please.
THE COURT: Yeah.
MR. MALONE: Got you.

BY MR. MALONE:

Ziig;i) During --'during your preparation for trial, you

did learn that Harry Leibel did not like to be left alone.

Correct?
A.ﬂ\ Yes.
Q. He wanted Tatiana to be with him?
A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And that he would get agitated or upset if
she were to leave for a trip, say?

A. Yes.

0. Okay. BAnd he wasn't allowed —— he wasn't able to
go on, say, a drive to San Diego?

A. I don't know about abilities so much as not
wanting to.

Q. Okay. Not wanting-to.

And it's your understanding that part of that not

wanting to was based on his medical conditions?

A. That's a possibility, yes.

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322

100 St 63

~
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Q. Well, you —-- you learned that he had bloody
stool. Correct?

A. Yes.

Q. That he had bloody urine?

A. I don't recall the bloody urine.

0. No? Do vou recall the statement by Lana Raymo?
Y Y ym

THE INTERPRETER: I'm sorry. "Do you recall" --

MR. MALONE: The statement by Lana Raymo
regarding bloody urine.

THE WITNESS: Not right off the top of my head.
BY MR. MALONE: . |

Q. And you knew he had kidney stones?

A. | Yes.

Q. And you knew he was in what's been described by
other —— by potential witnesses as constant pain, that he was
in constant pain?

A, Yes.

MR. MALONE: Court's indulgence for one moment,
please.

THE COURT: Absolutely.
VBY MR. MALONE:

0. You learned during your preparation for trial
that Harry had not had contact with his biological daughter.

Correct?

CAPITOL REPORTERS (775) 882-5322

101 § é é’é
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A. For a period of time, yes.
Q. About five years? |

A..  Yes.

0. Is that correct?

And he had grandchildren by that daughter?

A. I believe so.
Q. And what was yoﬁr understanding on the basis for
that —-- there was a break at some point.

I withdraw the previous guestions.
THE COURT: bkay. Start over.
BY MR. MALONE:
Q. Is it your understanding that there was an
acrimonious break fivé years before his death?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Do you recall learning that a letter had

been written by Cheron -- his daughter's name -- his

biological daughter's name was Cheron Bartee. Correct?

A. Yes.
0. Or is Cheron Bartee.
A. Yes.
Q. Do you recall receiving information that she had

written him a letter saying(she hoped he died?

A. I remember a letter. I —-—

Q. Like that?

?
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A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Very close to that?

A. Yes.

Q. And then it's your -- is it your understanding
that they did not have any communication for the next five
years?

A. Yes.

Q. And they never had any -- they never met again
for five years?

A. That was my understanding, yes.

Q. Okay. And you recall that the break was
partially attributed to her relationship? It was a marriage?

A. Yes.

Q.' Okay. And did you learn that he objected to her
marrying a person of African American descent?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. You learned that his relationship with his

son Justin was better?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And they would meet about once a year?

A. Yes.

Q. It would be fair to say he was isolated from his

biological children. Correct? Somewhat?

A. Somewhat, yes.
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14
15

Q. Did you ask about the caliber?
A. Ibelievel did, yes.
Q. - What was the purpose of this?

16 A. It was a weapon that was unfamiliar to me and so
17 1 --just curiosity.

18 Q. Do you recall who it was that you asked?

19 A. It was one of the deputies, and I don't know his

20 name.

G ' - o
State of Nevada vs - i
Tatiana Leibel, aka Tatiana Kosyrkina - 14-CR-0062 Rough Draft Fé{)l:s;;%?ggig
Page 33 Page 35
1 Q. Did you participate in any direct examination of 1 A. It didn't look very fresh.
2  him? 2 Q. Thank you. Nothing further.
3 A. No, ma'am. 3 THE COURT: Ms. Brown?
4 Q. Did you see any weapon in the room that cameto | 4 MS. BROWN: Nothing further.
5 your attention? 5 THE COURT: Thank you for being here today. I
6 A Idid. 6 appreciate it.
7 Q. And what was that? 7 (Witness excused.)
g8 A. There were weapons on the walls, and then there 8 MS. BROWN Thc defense would call Dave Billau.
s was a weapon laying on the couch, I believe. 9 Rraiseryourright hand and be sworn.
10 Q. Did you ever ask a deputy about the caliber of 10 7 2 S
11 that gun? 11 A DAVID BILLAU &
12 A. T asked them what type of gun it was, yes. 1247 called as a witness on behalf of the

 Defendant having been first duly sworn,
"‘\was examined and testified as follows: %~

15 e L

16 THE COURT Come on up, sir. If you would have a
17 seat there. Get comfortable. Have some water if you would
18 like.

19 DIRECT EXAMINATION

20 BY MS. BROWN:

21 Q. Could you state your name, and spell your last

22 name, please.

23 A. David C. Billay, B as in boy i-1-l-a-u.

Q. How are you currently employed?

21 Q. What did that deputy tell you?
22 MR. GREGORY: Objection, hearsay.
23 THE COURT: Sustained.
24 Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) Was the deputy able to give you
Page 34
1 the caliber of that weapon?
2 A. Ibelieve he told me the type of caliber, yes.
3 MS. BROWN: Nothing further.
4 THE COURT: Mr. Gregory?
5 CROSS-EXAMINATION
6 BY MR. GREGORY:
7 Q. Sir, how long have you been with Tahoe Douglas?
g8 A. 22 years.
o Q. Allright. Andmy understanding is you are a
10 bomb tech?
11 A. Yes, sir.
12 Q. You're familiar with the smell of gunpowder?
13 A. Iam.
14 Q. Did you smell any gunpowder when you entered the
15 residence that day?
16 A. Ididnot.
17 Q. And you made an observation of the blood on the
18 couch, correct?
19 A. Yes, sir.

20
21

Q. What was your observation?
A. There was blood on the couch, and the victim was

22 lying on the floor, and the blood, you know, looked dark to
23 me, that was all.
24 Q. What was the significance of that to you?

Page 36

A. 1have my own consulting business now.
Previously I was employed with the Washoe County Sheriff's
Office in the forensic science division as the supervisor.
Q. Let me go back a minute. What -- you said you
have your own company now. What type of company 1s that? E
A. 1have a consulting business now. I consult with i
forensic sciences to various law enforcement agencies and of
legal counsel.
Q. And prior to that, where were you employed? %
A. 1was employed with the Washoe County Sheriff's ¢
Office in the forensic science division, commonly referred to T
as the crime laboratory, and I was the supervisor with the|
forensic investigation section. \

\‘,

Q. How long were you the supervisor of the forensic

W ool W N

A

[
w N ko

1

S

15 division?

16 A. Oh, let's see, I was employed there for 23 years,

17 a little over 23 years. The last five to six years, I was
18 the supervisor.

19
20
21
22
23
24

Q. And do you have any type of certification?

A. 1did when I was employed with them as a
certified latent fingerprinting examiner and also a certified
crime scene analyst. Those certifications would be
International Association for Identification, and they are
international certifications.
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1 evidence being moved by an animal that's within thescene, | 1 Q. And, again, back to Exhibit 73, do you recognize
2 that's fairly great in nature. So you would like to know if | 2 what is shown in this photograph?
3 there is an animal in there, if they did serve any evidence | 3 A. Yes, Ido.
4 and, again if, the animal is in the crime scene, they are | 4 Q. What is it?
5 transferring evidence. 5 MS. BROWN: Your Honor, I object. This
6 Q. Did you receive any information that there was a 6 photograph is not in evidence to my knowledge.
7 dog present at this scene? 7 THE COURT: That's correct, it's not in evidence,
8 A. Notuntil later. It wasn't until later. g so we'll see if she can get it in.
o TInitially, I didn't have any information concerning the 9 Go ahead and ask your question again.
10 animal 10 Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) And can you describe generally
11 Q. And where did the information concerning the 11 what's in this photograph?
12 arimal come from? 12 MR.. GREGORY: Your Honor, I object. The
13 A. From you. 13 photograph is not in evidence.
12 Q. And that was concerning a 911 call? 14 THE COURT: Sustained.
15" A. Yes. 15 Q. (BY MS.BROWN:) Is this representative of
16 Q. And was thereany entry in it -- in the entry 16 photographs of the death scene that you reviewed concerning
17 logs? 17 this matter?
18 A. Ididn't hear your question. 18 A, Itis.
15 Q. Was there any information concerning the animal 19 MS. BROWN: Your Honor, I would offer Exhibit 73.
20 in the crime scene log-in? 20 MR. GREGORY: I object, Your Honor. To my
21 A. No. 21 knowledge, this witness was not on the crime scene, so he
22 Q. I'll show you Exhlblt 72. Do you recogmze what 22 carmot authenticate this particular photograph, so I continue
23 this is? i 23 to object.
24 THE COURT: Did you see that Mr. Gregory? 24 THE COURT: He can testify that this is a
Page 66 v Page 68
1 MR. GREGORY: I did not, Your Honor. 1 photograph that he reviewed to reach some conclusion. Now,
2 MS. BROWN: I'm sorry, Your Honor. 2 you'll get -- you know, it's limited there in its value
3 MR. GREGORY: Thank you. 3 perhaps. We'll see what the defense does with it, but he's
42 Q. (BYMS.BROWN:) Do you recognize what this is? | 4 already identified it as something he did review to reach a
5 A. Yes, this is a crime scene sign-in log. s conclusion. Therefore, I'm going to admit it, and we'll see
6 Q. Connected with 452 Kent Way? 6 what argument is made about it.
7 A. That is correct. 7 Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) Again, showing you what's been
g Q. And looking through that, do you see any 8 marked as or admitted as Exhibit 73, is this representative
o information concerning an animal at the scene? ‘9 of the photographs of the crime scene that you reviewed?
10 A. There is 2 mention here. It was approximately at 10 A. It is one photograph, yes. -
11 1844 hours, a person with the last name of Munn, M-u-n-nhad |11 Q. And is it a representative of that same scene (
12 entered the scene to retrieve the dog. 12 that you viewed in other photographs? {
13 Q. _these«d@cumentanons Was, there 13 A. I'msorry, I missed your question. [:
A3 in f. ' 14 Q. Is it representative of the main focus of other ~ §
= 15 photographs you reviewed of this scene? [f
AN reports,th Ie 16 A. Itis, yes. it
17 Q. Ands showmc you “WhAtS beeh mérked 76 Bxhibit 73 117 Q. And in this photograph, obviously, there's what i\
18 for identification, do you recognize what is shown in that |18 appears to be blood present at the scene? N1
15 photograph? 119 A. It appears to be, yes. | {
20 A. Yes, Ido. 120 Q. And in your review of the photographs concerning i\
21 THE COURT: Did you show that to Mr. Gregory? {21 this scene, did you see any paw prints or anything that would |
22 MS. BROWN: I'm sorry, Your Honor. 22  suggest that an animal was present in this room? il
23 THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am. 23 THE COURT: Any what or anything? I'm sorry, 1/
24 MS. BROWN: Thank you. 24 didn't understand the question. o
ito e 2 f 77 ] 1 5-
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1 Q. (BY MS.BROWN:) Any paw prints or indications -- | 1 Q. What would that be?
2 THE COURT: Paw prints, thank you. I 2 A. One of them would be a projectile analysis within
3 misunderstood. 3 a crime scene or even outdoors of a crime scene.
Ta Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) Paw prints or indicationthata | 4 Q. And what is the correlation between, okay, you're
5 dog was present in this scene? 5 looking at the, possibly the angle of the trajectory and the
6 A. Idid not notice, no. 6 angle of for example blood spatter?
7 A. They are both the same.
g Q. And what do you man by that?
9 A. Well, I mean, the trajectory, it's a path. It's
10 A/$0:4 L , 10 a path that was taken by an object, whether it be a _
111 Q¥ And, again, what -- what type ok‘"trace evidence 11 projectile, whether it be liquid blood. We're looking at it
12 would you -- if 2 dog-was present whHerr-therew: 12 as a trajectory, in other words, at a travel area.
7|13 bloodletting, v'hat?@p?of evidence would you be looking for? 113 Q. You talk about the initial course you had. Have
114 A. Toseeifthes nimal-was-in the blood. Again, it 14 you received other training in the area of trajectory?
|15 would be paw.print, footprint, Dog hair wonld be another one {15 A. That was the basic training and then the other is
{16 C‘thgffmlaj&fﬁédeéé’i”iﬂéﬁbqeh even_saliva 5l |16 just applying that training over a course of time at 2 number
117 E?Vhﬁﬁﬁbf‘evrdér@ce THig 59917 of crime scenes where we did have bloodletting.
i 18 Q. Do you use -- and do you keep familiar with
19 current changes or trends in that?
20 A. Oh, yes, yes.
21 Q. How is that done?

1 22 A. That's done through being a life active member of
where there's (23 thelAL Ido receive a scientific periodicals every month
= 24 and actually review those all of the time.

e Page 70 Page 72
T R %
1 A{{Oh, zbsolutely. /7 1
» Q= Andin your past trairing and experience, have 2
3 you becomie familiar with process of figuring trajectory? | 3
4 A. Yes. 4
5 Q. And what is trajectory? 5 A. , Irigonomefry:
6 A. Well, it's an angle basically is what it is. It 6 Q. “Which would include -- which would include lines
7 gives us certain degrees of angles, that's a trajectory. 7 andingles? T e
g It's a path of an object will give you a trajectory. g A7 Qh:}s;absolutel. s
9 Q. What training have you had in this -- in the 9 Q. ﬁs‘fﬁgfé another part of trajectory that is --
10 field of trajectory? 10 moves away from the true sciences? Is there a point when it
11 A. The first time I encountered it was in the mid 11 becomes a subjective interpretation?
12 1980s when bloodstain pattern analysis became importantata |12 A. You can, yes.
13 - crime scene. There was a 40-hour course that was provided by |13 Q. Were you asked to review the trajectory of a
14 aDr. Herbert McDonald, who was a physicist with Corning |14 projectile in this case?
15 University. 15 A. Yes.
16 We've always had this type of pattern at crime 16 MR. GREGORY: Your Honor, I'm going to ask for a
17 scenes, but we really didn't know what we were looking at {17 hearing outside the presence of the jury, please.
18 until Dr. McDonald actually presented it to us, and it's just |18 THE COURT: Okay. Allright. I'm going to
18  a basic form of trajectory is what it is. Given the size of 119 excuse the jury for a few minutes. I'm not sure how long
20 the blood stain, we can actually perform a trigonometry | 20 we'll be.
21 calculation and obtain an angle, in other words, a degree. |21 (Whereupon, the admonishment was given to the
2 Q. Sorry, backing up from going.into-bloo M___;;\} 22 jury by the Court not to talk about the case with anyone
23 what is -- is there other uses o/trajectory at g_scene?,‘) 23 until the case is submitted to the jury for deliberation.)
\‘24 A. Ob, absolutely, yeah. S == P T THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, I'm going to
Pages 69 - 72 (18) Capitol Reporters 3 7 51 5
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had texted that she couldn't leave because Harry was “going crazy” and she had to

calm him down. The argument lasted into the following morning when Tatiana

texted to her daughter that there was an "uncomfortable situation." These texts
were consistent with the statement Tatiana gave to Deputy Williamson and her
report the Harry had threatened to kill himself and was carrying a rifle around the
house with him.

In examining Harry's phone, Investigator Garren found a text message and
an email that both indicated that Harry might be suicidal. The first was a
posthumous text message from Chris Hedrick, one of Harry's friends:

Harry, my friend, you have left me without saying good-bye.
The good moments we've had and your truths of life and people
that we have in our universe, good and bad. I knew a month ago
that something wasn't right and felt you were going to be on
your journey to another world. This world wasn't right for your
soul. I couldn't say why, but I did see it. It's weird that you are.
gone and I have lost a real, real friend. I pray for your soul and
hope we meet again. I thank you guiding me to bettering myself
and my life with your honesty. Love, your friend. Chris.

The day before his death, Harry had written to a friend in an email:

Hi Pal, I hope you are both well. We're okay. Things have
dragged on for way too long. That being said, the slow moving
powers that be should bring this process to a conclusmn in the
very near future (days). You'll hear a sigh like distant thunder.
That would be me.

14
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brother, Igor, and would do things with him and Harry. I asked Chris what he
knew about Tatiana from before she came to the United States. Chris said Tatiana

was very quilet and he never got into any conversations with her regarding hexr
past.

Chris said he sand Harry talked a lot and it was usually about how things are
going with Chris and the work he does. Chris said that Harry would always try to
steer him into another line of work other than cutting firewood and delivering
it. Chris said Harxry never talked about his perscnal life or his financial

status with him. Chris said when you were at Harry's house 95% of the time Harry
"had the floor".

I asked Chris if Tatiana worked. Chris said Tatiana was working on some type of
high-tech software. Chris added that Harxry really helped Tatiana on this

venture. Chris said that Tatiana was working in Renc and possibly through the

Gov.'s office or with a State Senator, and added that' she was working some

really strange hours. Chris said the past six months before the incident he

would come over and visit Harry and Tatiana would not be at home. Chris said :
he'd ask Harry were Tatiana was and he would tell her that she worked all night . :
and was sleeping. Chris said that Harry was putting a lot of money into the :
business that Tatiana was running and seemed to be stressed about it. Chris said

the last year he seemed more and more stressed and edgy about it. Chris added

that he had conversations with Harry were he belleved Harry was irritated about

the business that Tatiana was running.

Chris said that Harry was irritated by the late hours that Tatiana was working,
but added at the same time he was happy that she was doing the business. Chris
added that previously Tatiana got ripped off by the Russians. Chris said he was
told that she had a multimillion dollar business deal with the Russian
government because she worked for the Russians. Chris was told that Tatiana had
a software prodgram that she was trying to sell to the Russians through Oracle,

but Oracle took her idea and cut her out of the deal. Chris said he believed the

new company Tatiana was running was to get back at Oracle and develop new
software

Chris said at one point he thought Harry was about to talk to him about some
financial issues, but then he would smoke marijuana and the subject changed.
Chrls’sal thatalf Harrx,dldn't¢have h1s Jaxijuana: every dayhe is extremely=s

Chris said there was a time he prov1ded Harry with marijuana and added that
Harry talked him into being a grower in Callfornla.,chrls sald Harry had some
serious digestive issues.and. that's why he smoked, ma“f T

T —CATI—

I told Chris that after reviewing the text messages between him and Harry it .
appeared that Harry was very demanding. I told Chris that it also appeared that
he would mot respond to Harry's -texts. Chris said at times he didn't respond
because with Harry it was always about Harry and added that he drives a lot and
that's also why he wouldn't respond to Harry's messages.

Chris said when their opportunities to go to San Diego or Los Angeles that Harry
would mever go, it was always Tatiana. Chris said when Tatiana would go she
would be gone for three or four days. I asked Chris how Harry dealt with that.
Chris told me that Harry didn't 1like it. Chris said that Harry was capable of
taking care of ‘himself but he would rather have Tatiana there to take care of
things for him. Chris added that sometimes he got the feeling that Harry liked

367S
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1 A. That's a close-up, Your Honor. Canl come down
to --
THE COURT: You may, sir.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
THE COURT: This witness will only use a green
Sharpie if he makes any marks on this. -5
THE WITNESS: So, again, this is an entrance
wound which was describing the autopsy report of not having
soot, but you can see a gate, an eccentric marginal soot and
then an artifact of the wound margins.
And in this one, you will actually see splaying
of the wound margin, indicating the bow! of gas coming behind
the bullet. So, actually, this one, I examined the autopsy
report, Harry was wearing a thick winter housecoat, winter
housecoat and a t-shirt.
So if you have the muzzle contacting his body,
that will be about one, two or three inches of clothing
between the between the muzzle and the skin. So although it
is a contact wound on the clothing, you will see eccentric
soot because the clothing will take some of the soot from the
skin but remember, the autopsy said there was no soot.
Q. Go ahead and have a seat.
THE COURT: Now, before he goes any further, I
24 want you to identify each of the marks he made on this
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margins.
THE COURT: The splaying of the margins of the
wounds.
Would you agree with me that's what he's marked,
Mr. Gregory?
MR. GREGORY: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Would you agree, Ms. Brown?
MS. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
Q. (BYMS. BROWN:) Since Mr. Leibel was wearing |
clothing, how would the soot get in through the clothing? il
A. You know, when we see this suit I'm wearing, with
our naked eye, the resolution, it looks smooth and clean. {

But if you -- if you place it under a microscope, you see big |

holes in it because it's fabric that is knitted together.
All of our clothes, including leather, they have big holes in
it. :

Now, soot from the muzzle of a gun is particular
matter. It's very fine. It's like fine sand, even finer

than fine sand. There are still particles. The particles of i

soot are smaller than the holes in the clothing. Soot is

probably about 1,200 feet per second and it is hot. So soot, \1_

if it's closer to the clothing than one foot and it's fired
from a muzzle of a gun can pass through layers of clothing in

— Page 46

1 example.

2 MS. BROWN: I'm going to, Your Honor.

3 THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am.

a2 Q. (BY MS.BROWN:) The first circle you made was
5 concerning the soot; is that correct?

6 A Yes.

7 Q. And the second?

8 THE COURT: Wait. Wait. That doesn't identify

o it because the record will have no identify what the first
10 circle he made was. So what you just marked is a circle that
11 is towards the bottom part of the picture. It comes off of
12 another circle that is around the wound. Would you agree
13 withthat?

14~ THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.

15 THE COURT: Okay. So that -- that circle

16 identifies somewhat you've identified as soot. Then there's
17 a circle that goes -- there's a partial circle because it's
18 nota closed circle that goes around the wound.

19 THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.

20 THE COURT: And then you made some marks that are
21 lines.

THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.

43 THE COURT: And those were to identify what?

24 THE WITNESS: The splaying, the splaying of the

W
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21
22
23
24
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which the skin..

Q. But in your opinion based on the injury you're
seeing, you're seeing a not skin to barrel contact but a
contact with clothing over the skin; is that correct?

A. Yes, the muzzle was contacting his body but
because he had clothing on his body, the muzzle was touching

the clothing, so this will qualify also as a contact wound, |
loose contact because mets is not absolute science. Ifyou
ask me, I can stretch it back maybe half an inch, one ich )

but the half an inch one, inch to two inches will account for
the thickness of the clothing. So essentially, itis a ‘
contact wound.

Q. And in a case involving a contact wound, if a
person is awake and conscious, would they be aware at some
point there's something closer in contact with them?

A, You mean if he was placed himself or someone else
placed him?

Q. Someone else placing it?

A. Okay. The C_}l/m&g%___“@n has the ég"_‘ﬂity to :respond ke

Ay

to stimulus in one?%“rf 10 OQQ_of_‘aﬁs@éQnd. That is why if
somebody touches you, tife moment that person touches you, you
know he touched you. So the muzzle of a gun, ifan
individual nudges you with the muzzle of a gun, you don't
even have to think. You will respond, and the response is to
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1 knock it out. It's primitive relief we, as human beings, | 1 MS. BROWN: I was going to go to him, Your Honor.
2 have. Something, not just response to hit it out to look. | 2 THE COURT: All right. Have a seat, sir. She'll
3 So if somebody had nudged him with a muzzle of a gun, he | 3  bring it to you. -
4 would have responded in a matter of milliseconds. 4 THE WITNESS: This is a fracture of the acromio
5Q Im gmq gt W.you what been marked or 5 clavicle joint.
6 admitted ak Exhlblt 49, b' 0 you recognize that? 6 Q. And so that green circle is --
7 A. Yes, mgﬁ‘ﬁ”&a’/ 7 A. Isa fracture, and such a pattern of trauma, you
8 Q. And what is that? 8 would see if his arm received such a kinetic energy with it,
9 A. This is Harry's left arm, inner surface, showing 9 factually extended close to the body, like in this position
10 the gunshot wound of exit and showing contusions of the inner {10 I'm placing it. His hand was not fully extended because the
11 aspect of the left arm. 11 force of the bullet pushed away the arm and fractured the
12 Q. And could you put a circle around contusion. 12 acromio clavicle joint.
13 °A. This is the focal contusion and the outer part to 13 So given the pattern I just see here, I can tell
114 laceration or exit wound. 14 you reasonably that his hand was not fully extended when he
15 Q. So this area within the large circle is what 15 was shot. His hand was flexed, slightly extended, like
16 you're calling a contusion? 16 somebody manipulating something. His hand was in this way.
17 A, Yes, ma'am. 17 So when the bullet -- the force of the bullet, the bullet
18 Q. And the arrow points to basically the -- 18 traveled at about 1,200 feet per second. Ithad a force. So
19 A. Exit, yes. 19 he moved the hand within millisecond and caused a fracture.
20 Q. Thank you. Would this -- the chest injury that 20 Q. Again, this bullet or this Exhibit Number 140,
{21 you viewed both the photographs and the autopsy or the x-rays |21 this is a break in which it's the circled in green, that's a
22 concemning, would that be immediately fatal or would it take 22 break in?
23 time to pass from that? 23 A. Joint, the acromio, a-c-r-0-m-i-o clavicle joint,
24 A) No. The gunshot wound of his trunk will not -- 24 meaning the joint between the clavicle and scapula.
Page 50 Page 52
1 will not be immediately fatal. He could have survived that | 1 Q. And showing:yon.now what's been marked as or
2 wound for up to five to ten minutes, and he would have been 2 admitted a[ Exhlblt 45 .;.‘5
3 ableto engage in activities. 3 THE COURT: Ms- Brown?
4 Remember, the famous Ronald Regan was shotin the | 4 MS. BROWN: Yes.
5 chest. He did not even know he was shot until they were | 5 THE COURT: How much longer are you going to go
6 driving him back to the White House. He began to coughout | 6 with this witness?
7 blood, that was when he changed over to go to the naval | 7 MS. BROWN: It's going to be a little while
8 hospital. So he was shot in the chest and was not even aware 8 longer.
9 and was engaged in activities, that is a very good example. | 9 THE COURT: We're going to take our break right
10 Q. And I'm showing you now/Exhibit 1349:Bo you 10 now.
11 recognize that photograph? \y—=mm"" 11 MS. BROWN: Thank you.
12 A. Yes, ma'am. 12 THE COURT: We've been in session for an hour and
13 Q. And what is that? 13  a half, and I'm going to give the court reporter a break.
14 A. This is the X-ray of Harry after death, and it 14 She doesn't feel very well, and we're going to take a
15 shows splintered fragments of a metal projectile, rarely |15 15-minute break.
16 projectiles inside the chest and extending into the left 16 (Whereupon, the admonishment was given to the
17 shoulder and the left inner, this is 1mportant inner aspect |17 jury by the Court not to talk about the case with anyone
18 of the left atm. =S 18 until the case is submitted to the jury for deliberation.)
19 Q. And showing you novk /s 19 THE COURT: We'll be in recess until a quarter
20 A. This is, again, an X-ray y OF thie [eft armm on the 20 . 'til. Thank you very much.
21 left shoulder. You could actually see a fracture of the left {21 Doctor, during the recess, you're admoms_hed not
22 shoulder joint. You see the space up above the space between |22  to talk to anyone associated with this case except the three
23 the scapula and the clavicle. 23 attorneys.
24 THE COURT: Why don't you identify that for us. 24 THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.
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J1 THE COURT: Thank you, sir. 1 could kill you suddenly. Many people who suffer it do not
2 (Whereupon, a2 brief recess was taken.) 2 know they suffer from it until they do a liver enzyme panel.
-3 THE COURT: We're back in session in State of 3 Common causes of it, alcohol, drugs of ali types and
4 Nevada versus Tatiana Leibel. Mr. Gregory is present for the 4 sometimes even drugs of abuse. It depends on your genetic
5 State. Ms. Brown, Ms. Henry are both here. Ms. Leibelis | 5 makeup. Even drugs as common as marijuana can cause
6 here, as is the interpreter, one of our interpreters. 6 hepatitis. Some people, it's something you may be able to --
7 Doctor, you're still on the stand. You're still 7 it's a very very ubiquitous disease.
g under oath, sir. Let's bring the jury in. 8 In this case, what you should do if you don't
9 Thank you, folks. Have a seat, please. 9 believe it, it is to take microscopic section and look at it
10 Attorneys stipulate to the presence of the jury? 10

16
17
is

20
2121
122

1

12 /}za ‘
13 ¢
1480 M8, BROWN, I

15 Q\\Going back t¢Exhibit Number 140, where you

MR. GREGORY: Yes, Your Honor.

MS. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown, would you continue.
Honor.

:

O TIR  e—aae e
identified a brokéf_l one in the slioulder by that green
circle, would that break in the shoulder affect flexibility
in the arm after it was inflicted?

10 A. The fracture dislocation of a joint wouldina

big motion but if you iry to move, you may hear what we call
crepifus, c-r-e-p-i-t-u-s, and I've actually done cases
whereby at the scene, law enforcement interp reted a fractured
shoulder to be rigor mortis because you try to move the
shoulder, the fracture in the base, the motion, soon after,

P L
PP PSR I S o

17

in the microscope. You will see the large globals of fat in
the liver. What is the significance of this? The liver is
the organ, it's the largest organ in the body only second to
the skin. Why is it a large organ? It supplies -- it's the
only organ that has three independent sources of blood
because it's a big organ that plays a very important function
in the human body.

It is the organ that detoxifies your blood. It
removes toxins and chemicals from your blood to clean it up.
Why does it do that? - The human brain is a very sensitive
organ. The brain does not do well if specific chemicals in
the body are elevated, specifically ammonia, and your body
tums out large amounts of ammonia, that is why you have
large amounts of ammonia in the urine. That is actually what
gives urine the smell. So the liver takes it out and it

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
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1 death, fracture, spasm. If you've ever had a fracture, spasim
o of the muscle, it's pain. So the muscleis spastic. If you
3 die, the spasm of the muscles with time will relate slowly.
4 So this is such a fracture could simulate rigor mortis and
5 misinterpreted as rigor mortis, and I've actually seen it in
‘6 several cases of mine. e

7 Q. Showing you whats been markes \xlnbit 454for

g identification, do you recognize this? = S

9 A Yes.

10 Q. What is that?
11 A. Can vou lower the light? There's a reflection.

THE COURT: It actually I think it's the light
from the projector. You may be able to adjust one of those
side lights that may help you.

THE WITNESS: Wonderful, wonderful. Thark you so
much. This is a picture of the liver. The human liver and
the liver of all mammals has a red, brown color-like muscle.
But if you notice, this liver is yellow. It's yellowish, and
it's diffusely yellowish. Thisis a specific disease we call
steato, s-t-e-a-t-o, steato, hepatitis.

What this simply means is a group of diseases
where you start having accumulation of fat in the liver and a
specific type of fat is what we call a triglyceride fat.
There are so many things that could cause hepatitis. It

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

11 A Yes. Sometimes you could have
12 of IratoRAl}
\r - T —r T

13
14

22
23
24
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becomes excreted in the urine.
When you have a disease, if you see, this is
diffuse. There is impairment of detoxification of the liver.
Ammonia levels will be high. IfIdid this autopsy myself,
would have performed all of the analysis. What is the
significance? When ammonia levels are high in the blood, it
causes a specific disease. We'll call hepatic
encephalopathy. Hepatic encephalopathy will make it to
manifest episodes of irrationality.
Q. Irrationality?

s

[~

. - - P
liver episodesy)

where you act out of characterand Some
~people that even engage in activities that are simply
irrational that you and I as rational beings would never
understand why.
And in doing my review, having this, I look at
the tg;i;’_q ;J:hich, again, showed us a very significant
finding that further confirms that this case ignota,
Jgmicide,
Q. Andin -- you said earlier that you needed what
would need slides of the tissue to make further diagnosis?
A. If you have doubt, assuming if I'm training, you
know, younger doctors, medical students, I would tell them to
take a historical section, you should in a homicide like

- sa an
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this. An alleged homicide case, you should and must
according to the standard.

Q. And as to the brain, should tissue be take from
the brain?

A, Tissue from the brain and from every organ from
the body.

Q. And to your knowledge, were any tissue samples
taken in this case? o

b

’—\

ised (] rcqucsted tlssucé\" Twas)

=
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1
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autopsy that you were shown?
A. Yes, ma'am,__
Q. Anc ,_xh1b1t 149:
A. Yes, ma ‘am.
Q. And is this also one of the photographs you were
shown?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. These photographs then have been since used to
show Harry's reach as to whether or not he could use the

do you recognize that?

= mee—e

e

10 }{o d there was none taken: ““5nd the bram ou should see 1f 5 weapon. Would this be a correct way to determine that?
e %
1~you take’ icEoscopic sections 75 of the- bram you should seea {11 A. No.
12 spgc{@c chanoe in the brain cells that would explain the {12 Q. And why not?
13 c’u’rm 'ty/ }It affects a specific type of self in the 13 A. Actually, the measurement, the way they measure
14 human-bram: we will call astrocytes. They will become (14 it from the axilla to the tip of the finger is Inaccurate.
15 balloon because of ammonia toxicity and it affecg the |15 Ifyou want to measure range, you start from the neck to the \
16 functioning of your different regions of your(‘t;E“,that 16 tip of the finger, not from the axilla. Why, because if I'm
17 would, mamfest w1th“1rrat10na itys 17 manipulating a gun or any object, I'm using my whole body. I
18 Q. Okav Y you mentioned also in the toxicology 18 can put my body in different concoctions and different
19 report that there was -~ it was shown that cannabis was used? 119 convolutions. I can -- I can do things that when I'm
20 A. Yes. Inthe toxicology report, it showed that 20 standing stationery, someone watching me will assume I cannot A
21 Harry used marijuana less than two hours before he died. Why j21 do. i !
22 do I know it's less than two hours, because of the types of |22 So, again, this is one of the patterns of
23 cannabinoid found in his blood and the levels. 23 erroneous assumption of things in this case. Measuring the
24 If you smoke marijuana, your Delta-9 THC whichis ;24 ridge from the axilla is wrong. If you want to measure the
Page 58 Page 60
the active component of marijuana Delta-9 THC after two hours ; 1 ridge, you start from the neck, actually from the midline of
should drop less than two micrograms, but Harry's THC level 2 the body and then meaning that somebody cannot perform a
was 20. So it tells you will he used marijuana within two | 3 specific act because of the length of the upper extremity is |
hours of his death. Unfortunately, marijuana is a 4 erroneous, it's wrong, it's a wrong determination because
psychodelic drug. It's a hallucinogen. So if you're i 5 human beings can concoct your body and twist your body in
suffering from a disease like hat hepatic encephalopathy and 6 unimaginable ways. Even some of us who have the talent can |
then you smoke marijuana, you are at the much greater risk of | 7 roll your body into a ball. So this is totally wrong, and so
engaging in irrational behavior, including suicidal behavior. 8 assumptions remaining in this based on such an erroneous
Q. And you're one of leading brain experts in the or o scientific methodology.
10 experts in brain disease; is that correct? 10 Q. And have we discussed possible scenarios or
11 A. Could you repeat. 11 examples in which we could possibly demonstrate if Mr. Leibel
12 Q. You're one of the leading experts in brain 12 shot himself, that could be done with that 24-inch arm and
13 disease? 13 sofa?
14 A I wouldn't say myself, but I have I have been 14 A. Yes, ma'am. Yes, ma'am.
15 recognized as one of the leading experts. That was why the {15 MS. BROWN: And, Your Honor, may the record
16 U.S. Congress invited me on two occasions to advise them in i16 reflect that Dr. Kubiczek did measure my arm when he was
17 matters related to brain disease, yes, ma'an. 17 testifying it was between 24 and 25 in length.
18 Q. Infact, that's a matter of a lot of your 18 THE COURT: He did measure it, and I don't recall
19 publications; is that correct? 15 exactly. The jury will recall what the measurement was and
20 A. Yes, ma'am. = 20 it's their memory that couats.
21 Q. Showing you what's been markef Exh1b1t 140 or 21 MS. BROWN: Okay.
22 identification, do you recognize that = — 22 THE COURT: Mr. Gregory, if you want to stipulate
23 A. Yes, ma'am. 23 to what you believe the evidence was, you can do that or
24 Q. Isthis one of the photos that was taken at the 24 leave it up to the jury.
Capitol Reporters 3 ’é’ é)o (15) Pages 57 - §1
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1 MR. GREGORY: I would leave it up to the jury. 1 A. Okay. Bring in your hand, okay, and erroneously
2 MS. BROWN: And Exhibit Number 119 is the dummy | 2 and that will cause exactly that. And wait, wait; wait, you
3 gun? 3 see, it goes to here. '
4 THE COURT: I'm sorry, I couldn't hear you. 4 Q. Uh-huh.
5 MS. BROWN: That's okay. I was just asking if 5 A. Raises the shoulder. This illustration shows
6 Exhibit 119 was the dummy gun. 6 that atypical suicide was actually what happened here.
7 THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. 7 Q. Okay. But I'm not trying to shoot myself in the
8 THE WITNESS: There's no bullet in it, right? g8 shoulder and wrist, correct?
9 MS. BROWN: Excuse me? s A. No, the second shot, he was trying to position
10 THE WITNESS: There's no bullet in it? 10 it. Remember, he is beginning to bleed inside.
11 MS. BROWN: There's no bullet. Actually, the 11 Q. Uh-huh
12 firing pin has been removed. We're safe. 12 A. He's becoming a bit confused because he is
13 THE WITNESS: Okay. 13 bleeding, and he's trying to shoot himself again, trying to
14 THE COURT: Good question though, doctor. 14 manipulate and he is confused and, I mean, he fell backwards.
15 O\WI\ And I'm going to be sitting on 15 Q. Okay.
16 1 Txbubit 120, the couch. 16 A. Okay.
17 RT: Any of you in the jury are welcome to 17 Q. Okay. Thank you. And aoam these are possible
18 stand if you want to see. 18 scenangstzf,ﬁfg-,;—_ﬁ:;f - e
19 Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) Could you step down, doctor. |19 A. 418! g~ 'Eif’yﬂl tie everythmu together. The“"*w\\
20 A. Your Honor, may [? 20 /ﬁ ‘dence of hepatic encephalopathy combined with theb\\'\\
21 THE COURT: You may, yes. 21 ! psychodehc hallucinogenic effect of the marijuana, the \\é
22 Q. (BY MS.BROWN:) We talked about arm positionin |2 %‘ cannabinoids, there is no reasonable degree of certainty to | B
23 this example, so with the same length? 23 rule this a homicide. This is a suicide. The most you can j
24 A. This will give you -- this was -- move this arm. 24 5§ etch it is atmcal suicide. e
ﬁ“"““mmf.:,:m\bww
—_ Page 62 Page 64
1 Q. Okay. 1 Q. Andsoyouro injon in this matter based on a
2 A. Soyour hand -- that's to be -- okay. 2 ("/reasonable d‘e”'f‘éé"é‘f Thedical certaint _}‘*s; = L
3 Q. Okay. A ThatTAtiana did not shmw yoHarry is & = T
4 A. To the side more. ‘{ 65-year-old white male, died as a result of a single gunshot
5 Q. Okay. N5 wound of his chest. The manner of death is suicide. What
6 A. This will give you, yes, hold that. e of S\.IlCldC an atyp1ca1 suicide. prem e
7 Q. Okay. ' 7 ; g you. T have nothing further.
g A. That will give you classic pattern. Depending on 8 THE COURT: Mr. Gregory?
o your height and that but if you were his height, this will be MRﬂGEG@WO\l, Your Honor.

10 on a higher level, and you could and it could giveyou |10 ¢ CROSS-EXAMH\IATION’*Q\&%,\

¥MR..GREGORY: S \é’/

11 exactly what we have there. 11

12 Q. That's what we're talking about with this? 12 Q. Doctor, you area pathologst&corre—cﬁﬁ/
13 A. Which is taller height. 13 A. Yes. :

14 Q. Yes. 14 Q. Much like Dr. Kubiczek?

15 A. He could higher and this would go shoo 15 A. Yes, Dr. Kubiczek is a very good friend of mine.

n i s 16 Q. Yeah, and you actually work with Dr. Kubiczek

A He shoots - Bimmiself m the chest He's not;\et\‘:\\ 17 sometimes, don't you?

18 dead and just like some very famous people, they try cyanide, R}l18 A. Yes.

b9 theyare not yet dead. They are waiting for minutes and then >L9 Q. As well, as the Washoe County Medical Examiner's

20they use secondary mechamsm ,,,,,,, A20  Office?
121 Q. entally shot myselt. 21 A. Yes. :
2 A. Exactly, you're trying to hold this right as 22 Q. There's cases you actually work tooether

23 you're moving around. 23 correct?

24 Q. Uh-huh. 24 A. Yes, I examine brains for the Washoe County

- T Canital Renarters 3 ég / Eiin-ii-Sorira@ >\
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1 Medical Examiner's Office. 1 Q. Okay. Do you know that there wer 6<'er 600 j “
2 Q. Allright. You're not a certified gun expert, 2 photographs taken in this case? N \%.
3 are you? 3 A. Idon'tknow. Photographs were sent to me. I've ¢
4 A. No, sir. | 4 seen photographs sent to me.
5 Q. And you're not a physicist, are you? ' 5 Q. Okay. Did you review 600 and some photographs?
6 A. No, sir. 6 A. Idon'trecall. Ididn't count them. I could
7 Q. Okay. You are not a toxicologist, are you? 7 check in my laptop. Ihave it here with me, but all of the
g A. Iam. I'm board certified in clinical pathology. g same pictures sent to me, I reviewed.
s Toxicology is part of clinical pathology. - 9 Q. Did you review all of the laboratory reports in

10 Q. Oh, okay. 10 this case?

11 A. Yes. 11 A. Yes.

12 Q. Are you a reconstruction expert? i12 Q. Soyou rev1ewed th

13 A. No, sir. 113 A. Yes, I reviewediig Novembe

14 Q. Are you crime scene expert? 14 Q. Okay. You reviewedthe ingerprint analysis,

15 A. I'm a crime scene expert in relation to the 15 correct?

16 medical aspect of a crime scene. 16 A, Sormyleemrre

17 Q. Do you go out to the crime scenes? 17 Q. The ﬁnoerpnnt anal s1 ~you rev1ewed that?

18 A. Yes. In fact, the standard of forensic pathology 18 A Yé;a:ﬁfl fEVleW hat &{,f 5 when the case

19 is that for every suspicious case or homicide, the ‘19 was §ent to e, . prepannc F¥or testimony the other day, 1

20 pathologist must, must go out to the scene. 20 don't typically review such reports because 1 don t testify

21 Q. You understand there's a certification for crime , to them.

22 scene experts? 122 Q. And as I understand, at the time you prepared

23 A. Yes. Part of our board certification includes ;23 your report, you did not have the measurements of the crime
24 crime scene examination but the medical aspect of a crime {24 scene that were taken by the Washoe County Crime Lab,
Page 66 ! Page 68
1 scene examination, we don't go to take trace evidence at the | 1 correct?
2 scene, no, but we will go to examme the body in relationto | 2 A. 1 don't know. I don't recall, but there are the
3 the 2, Seene o see the ¢ L@l{i;_, Gt the hody, wi w1th thescene | 3 measurements that were sent to me, and I've reviewed them,
4 ¥ad also 10 adwse %fo : ;g“_'_g;t_so that they don't ;pake | 4 andIdo notagree with majority of your assumptions. Based
5  erroneous gésumpt;@gs like we have in.this. casw ST | 5 onthe measurement, there were a pattern of --
6 Q”T**‘ want to talk a little bit about what thmcrs you 6 Q. Doctor, my question was, at the time you wrote
7 considered in rendering your opinjon in this case? 7 your report, did you have those measurements?
g8 A Yes. i 8 A. Ihad measurements of the crime scene that were
9 Q. You indicated you saw some photographs. We know | 9 provided to me, yes.
10 you saw the x-rays, right? 1120 Q. Okay. Who provided those to you?
11 A Yes. 111 A. The defense attorney.
12 Q. Did you see all of the autopsy photographs? 12 Q. And how is it they provided those to you before I
13 A. Yes. 13 even had them?
14 Q. Did you see all of the photographs of the scene 14 A. Idon't know. I don't know because I'm not
15 taken by the Douglas County Sheriff's Office? '15 involved in the case that -- my team forwarded it to me.
16 A. Idon't know ifit's all, but I've seen 16 What I reviewed in November, I saw pictures of the scene. I
17 photographs sent to me, and I saw all of the same photographs {17 saw some cartoon demonstrations. Then about last week or two
18 sent to me. 18 weeks ago, there was another formal report, a crime scene
19 Q. So you were provided with reports or photographs |19 report.
20 by the defense, correct? 20 MR. GREGORY: Your Honor, [ would ask you to
21 A. Yes. 21 direct to the witness to answer the question.
22 Q. You have no idea if those were all of the 22 THE COURT: He is answering it. You asked him
23 photographs in the case? 23 how he got them before you did. He's telling you when he got
24 A. .Idon't know, sir. 24 them.
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i MR. GREGORY: Okay. 1 Q. Butsoyou reviewed Tatiana's statements,
2 THE WITNESS: There was another report, a more 2 correct? T e
3 comprehensive report with pictures, diagrams that were sent “A. - Yeeeand there's reason why I did that as a
4 tome weeks a couple of weeks ago. 4 ¢ physician. I wantto know if her story changed. You knc::;v;\’“-qg
5 Q. (BYMR. GREGORY:) Did you review all of the { 5 remember, I do this so many times. What is one of the things |}
6 police reports in this case? “\?@6 you want to change? You want to find out is the defendant, 2
7 A. Yes, in November, when I got the case, yes. ‘7gthe person been accused of shooting somebody, did her story 4
s Q. About how many reports did you review? g change iy g EmmET B2
o A. There were PDF files, I would say about seven or g Q. Okay. So yﬁzgﬁstc ed to her statements,
10 eight PDF files. /’ == ? 10 correct?
11 Q. Okay. You did not review tli€ 58 reportsithat 11 A. Sorry?
12 were done in this case? Ne” i 12 Q. You listened to her statements, correct?
13 A. 1 don't know if the 58 were part of the several 13 A. To her interview by the police.
14 PDF's but if 58 police reports, remember what I told you, I |14 Q. You didn't listen to any other interviews from
15 don't base my opinion on police reports. Since there are 58 |15 any other witnesses?
16 policereports, you don't expect me to give 58 opinions of |16 A. No, no. Remember -- remember -
17 the 58 police reports. : 17 Q. It'sa yes or no question.
18 Q. Well, if you don't consider police reports, why 18 A. Isaidno.
19 did you lock at any of them? 19 Q. Thank you. Thank you. Did you discuss the case
20 A. 1look at them because as an expert witness, if I 20 with any of the witnesses at all?
21 did not look at them, you will criticize me that I did not 121 A. No. Remember, I'm not a witness expert. I'm not
22 look at them. 22 here to testify.
23 Q. So you choose to look at some of them but not all 23 Q. Sir, it's a yes or no question.
24 of them? 24 A. Could you repeat it?
— Page 72
1 Q. Did you discuss the case with any of the
orwardedtome, . oms < 2 witnesses?
3 Q. Okay. Didyou Teview the evidence that was 3 A. No, sir.
4 obtained from the cell phones in this case? 4 Q. Did you discuss the case with any of the police
5 A MNogpo. T 5 officers?
6 Q. Did you listen 6 A. No, sir.
7 all of the witnesses in tHistease?  ommee 7 Q. Did you discuss the case with Dr. Kubiczek?
8 A Xes, Ves. g8 A. Yes,sir. _
9 Q. Allofthe witnesses? s Q. Didyou discuss the case with Tatiana?
10 A. It was quite long. There were two of them. 10 A. No.
11 Q. pBhjus WO : |11 Q. Butyou listened to her statements?
12 A \Ewe ' 112 A. Yes.
13 Q. Okay 13 Q. Since you listento all of her statements, you
14 A. That took me almost one night. I woke up at, | 14  are familiar with some of the discrepancies in those .
15  like, 2:00 o'clock. By noom, 1 was still looking at them. {15 statements=c M S S v O
16 They were very long. 1 1647 “* Essentially, I wouldn't categorize them as S~
17 Q. There were some 60 witnesses listed on the board ' ,;17 discrepancies because like today if you bring me back™
18 when we started this trial. You reviewed two of those IJ;\ 8 tomorrow to ask me the same questions, I wouldn't testify to %:%,&
15 witness statements? { “ag them exactly the same but essential call, the essence of her \
20 A. No, of Tatiana. 20 what transpired that this was a suicide did not | &7
217 Q. Okay. e — - — |
T i o T domh need to reveTeR: S
—23 [[ of the material. Remember my expertise, I'm not la 53 A. Now, minutia, we'ré human beings. Nobody has 100

|24 “yepforcement expert. S S =" |24 percentrecall memory that might not - which T would dismiss |
i E N = :
Peoan 40 2T ARY 3483
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1 says, that you will review it. Review the other evidence 1 Q. Okay. And in that report, you didn't cite any
2 because all we have here is not just witness statements. | 2 kind of authority for your -- the science that you're talking

3 The good example is the Ferguson, remember, he 3 about here today, right? Vi
4 was shot. 4 A. No, no, it depends. Remember, T've done this so - 4/
5 MR. GREGORY: Your Honor, I didn't ask for an 5 many many times, many times, depending on the jurisdiction |3
6 example. I would ask for the witness to respond to the | 6 and some states is different. As an expert, they don't want
7 questions. 7 you to cite other authorities because you're coming as an
8 THE COURT: All right. Well, I think he's given 8 authority yourself. :
9 ~ you a response. Why don't you ask your next question. | 9 Now, if a Court would ask me to provide the basis

10 Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) Sir, did you examine this 110 to provide published literature, I would provide that. But

11 couch before you rendered your opinion? 11 as I'm sitting here today, nobody has asked me to provide

12 A, Yes, pictures of the couch. 12 such literature.

Ju
w

Q. Pictures of the couch. Did you actually come and
observe the couch?
A. No, I did not think it was necessary for me.

[
e

Q. Okay. How long did it take you to prepare that
two-page report?
A. Tt took me weeks. It took me several weeks. I

16 Q. Okay. Didyou goto the house and inspect the 16 didn't just -- I reviewed the case first. 1 spent time with
17 house? 17 it. Ithought about it. I did some reading. One day I woke
18 A. No, sir, it wasn't necessary for me. 18 up early. It took me about four or five hours to write it.
19 Q. Did you inspect the gun? 19 Q. Okay. Are you familiar with the term cut and
20 A. No, sir, I'm not a gun expert. 20 paste as it refers to word processing?
21 Q. Okay. And yet you've testified today about 21 A. Yes, I know cut and paste and somebody like me
22  distances and whatnot with sooting. 22 who does -- I write over 100, 200 reports every year.
23 A. Yeah, that's what we call the medical aspects of 23 Sometimes some power in the report, things like definition of
24 ballistics, so medical aspects of ballistics. Idon'tneed |24 a forensic pathologist.
— Page 78 Page 80
1 toexamine a gun. __goESeomeeesiimn,, 1 Q. Okay.
L OKAY. =g ‘ .12 A The College of American Pathologist, such things
K. Alllneedtodois 1"\3\ 3 are copied and pasted on general terminology, general
"4 today, I saw the gun earlier today. When I came this 3 4 concepts.
5 moming, I examined the gun and the replica of the gun, and \is Q. So you might cut and past some general
6 sawit. They could not have shipped it tome in California, f% 6 principles, but you don't cut and paste things that are
7 and I did my medical analysis. I'mnota ballistics expert {7 specific to a case, do you?
g but as a forensic pathologist, I'm expert in the medical s A. No,Idomt
e %, aspect of ballistics, that is why I know the type of bullet. ¢ "5 Q. Didyou cut and paste when you prepared the
10 E au__:,;xihy .I know_ thechstance S % A AT ~§”é§”5;: 9 ﬁrm»«:wm
11 Q. SoyourdidnEshoot the gin ey —— # A Yes. This case, I described the College of |
12 A. Oh, no, I've never shot a gun in my iife, really, American pathologists. I defined what forensic patholo"g‘yg\
13 T'venever. was. I described the general concepts of reasonable degree \
14 Q. Allright, interesting. Your report in this case of medical certainty. So such general concepts, I don't

21 the guidelines because each state has its

own guideline, that
summary of my cqnclgsioggs,,%

FTAS A SUMIIATY, COTTeCt

15 was two pages long; is that right? doubt. 1actually have a templet. Tl go and pick it out |
= \\ . v‘/
16 A. Yes. . 16=ofmy template and put it on therezsr——rm e
. 3 el R gl f
17 Q. And you would agree with me that it's a very 17 Q. BuftheOpimion in this case, you wouldn't
18 conclusory report. You gave conclusions, but you don't state |18 certainly have cut and pasted?
19 -kow=you arrived at se conclusions? 19 A. No, the opinion, I wouldn't copy and paste
%6 A. When T was asked to write a report, I was given —=|20 because it's umque to the case.

Q. So one of your opinions in this case was, quote,
the experts are scientifically invalid and are grossly
outside the established and generally accepted guidelines and
principles of forensic pathology. Is that one of the quotes

Canital Renarters
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Page 83 !
i

1 from your report? 1 phraseology. Itis how Ispeak. If you watch me in anotherf
2 A. I don't know if you're reading it, yes. 2 case testify, you will hear me using the same termiriology as . é
3 Q. Would you like to see your report? 3 Idohere. Thisismy style. There's nothing wrong with it,{;

4 A. If you don't mind. 4 the same language, and I may not have copied it. This is \
5 THE COURT: Are you refreshing his recollection? 5 just what I write. So if you review on my reports, you see
6 MR. GREGORY: I'm refreshing his recollection. 6 some commonalities which is not unusual.
7 At page two, you'll see an asterisk. 7 Q. Okay. Have you ever had your testimony deemed to
8 THE COURT: Why don't you have it marked so the : 8 be unreliable?
9 record is clear. s A. I would not say I was deemed unreliable. This
10 MR. GREGORY: Yes. ‘10 was a case eight years ago, a case in Pennsylvania, a man had
11 Q. I'mhanding you State's Exhibit or excuse me, 11 Hodgkin lymphoma from walking with --
12 Exhibit 148. Would you take a look at that and review it? }12 Q: It's a yes or no question.
13 A. Thank you. 13 A. Yes, yes. I'm trying to explain what happened.
14 Q. And then let me know if it refreshes your 142 Q. No. 4
15 recollection. 15 A. The outcome of that case --
i6 A. Yes, yes. 16 Q. Sir, listen.
17 Q. Okay. So you would agree that one of your 17 _ THE COURT: Doctor, doctor, give him the answer
18 conclusions is that that Douglas County Sheriff's Office and 118 and then if he wants an explanation, he'll ask for it.
13  experts -~ 19 THE WITNESS: Yes.
20 A. What page, sorry? 20 THE COURT: If Ms. Brown wants an explanation,
21 Q. Pagetwo. 21 she'll ask for it, but just answer his question, please.
22 A. Page two, what paragraph? 22 Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) So the question is have you
23 Q. Scientifically invalid and are grossly outside 23 ever been found - has a Court ever found your testimony to
24 the established and generally accepted guidelines and 124 be unreliable?
Page 82 Page 84
1 principles of forensic pathology? 1 A. Yes, once, once eight years ago, and I'm trying
2 A. Yes, si1. 2 to explain the basis for that, which in my opinion looking
3 Q. Inthe materials that you submitted regarding 3  back now -- '
4 your expertise, you referred to a case Scanlon versus Life | 4 THE COURT: Sir, we didn't ask you for the basis.
5 Insurance Company of America. Do you remember workingon | 5 Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) You're aware of the Court s
6 that case? 6 findings in that case?
7 A. You lost me. Idon't understand the question. 7 A. Yes.
8 THE COURT: Well, repeat it and listen carefully. g Q. Andyou're familiar then that the Court concluded
s Q. (BY MR. GREGORY?) Okay. In your materials you | ¢ andIquote, this Court has carefully considered the parties
10 gaveus and you listed all of cases you've been involved {10 respective positions and based on the present record, finds
11 with. 11 that the methodology used by Dr. Omalu in reaching his
12 A InmyCV. :12  opinions in this case is not reliable and even if it was
13 Q. Your CV. {13 found to be reliable, his opinions are too speculative to,
14 A. Okay. 12 quote, fit the facts of this case. End of quote. Do you ]
15 Q. And in one of the cases you indicated you were 15 recall that? ‘1
16 involved in was a case called Scanlon versus Life Insurance |16 A. Yesin fact --
17 Company of America. Do you remember that case? 17 Q. Do you recall that?
18 A. That wasina U.S. -- United States Court In 18 A. Yes.
15 Seattle. The summary judgment was rendered in that case, and 119 Q. Okay.
20 the federal judge actually referenced me numerous times in |20 A. The mistake —
21 his summary judgment. 21 Q. Sir?
22 Q. Okay. Would it surprise you in the report you 22 THE COURT: Sir, he didn't ask you a question.
23 authored in that case, you put the exact same conclusion? 123 Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) Did the Court also quote his
24 A Ttwould not surprise me. These are not my 24 opinions are also not grounded in science, end of quote?

: =27 L5
Canital Renarters Qé EDS (21) Pages 81 - 8
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1 drying? 1 recognized this is my professional view of expertise. Like jf
» A. I'mnot saying you should ignore it. You should 2 you, you're an expert in the law, I'm not. SoifIneed

3 weighit. Given, it's like -- 3 legal advice, I'll come to somebody like you. So if law Y

4 Q. It'sa factor, right? . 4 enforcement in my county needs the expert to make such ¥

e e,

THE COURT: Wait a minute. He's not done

ansv/er e =
Z“THE WITNESS: Hierarchy. I'm a forensic \\»\

pathologist, years of education, and I

{=2

cardiac life support. You may not like what I say but
objectively, you weigh, who do you believe? Do you believe

\ . -
Thenhe $21d7_cmmme Sy -
e e g T

“~THE COURT: You answered the question.
115 THE WITNESS: What I always say --

16 Q (BY.MR.GREGORY)=Sa.do you i
1744 1 didn't say disregard. 1 said you evalu .
i]ié You evaluate it, that is why you have me. You didn't stop at

b
¥,

e ST TR S Ay T

Zore that there were two
shots fired in this case?

A. No. Ifthere was no autopsy, the number of shots
fired will be paramount, but there was an autopsy performed

give an opinion,’a :
. . . .. !
paramedic has siX months of medical training, advanced %
10 A. No, because most times my opinion is based on the

me, even with all my experiences, will you believe me or what/

2

\
9 the paramedic. You brought 2 doctor. Youevaluateit. You J
26?;»&0335@61' 'Ehe t‘qtality, th?. totality.

conclusions, they will call me, so I came. I told them, no,
no, this is why it's not a homicide. I was shot that down
7  immediately. That was not done in this case.

8 Q. Had you had the flip be true where they thought

9 it was a suicide and you thought it was a homicide?

o WU

U . i
}:’Ll autopsy findings and assuming the case we went to yesterday .
/2 inmy county, sometimes 1 do an autopsy. ruleit on the

command. I have a meeting with the D.A. The D.A. tells me

force trauma, seriously bodily harm.

But the science, remember, I'm a messenger of the
science because of my training, not me as an individual. So
if T explain the science to the best of my ability, we
wouldn't be arguing with the science. We respect what the
21 science says. If you don't agree with it and, okay, you seek
22 asecond opinion.
23 Q. Should we ignore that there was a lack of
|24 gunpowder smell when the first responders went on scene?

20

1 that shows the only medic forensically significant and

2 forensically concentration shot, was only one shot that

3 killed him. The second shot is what we call incidental

4 findings because he would have still died from the single

5 gunshot wound of the chest. The one to his hand and to the

6 graze wound were of no significant forensic consequence, end

7 of story.

8 Q. Are we supposed to ignore the fact that this was

9 a long gun that was used instead of 2 handgun?

A No, you should not ignore the fact, but you
shouldn't make some assurnptions that are not supported by
science.

Q. Should we ignore the fact that the gun was cocked
for a third shot?

A. ‘You shouldn't ignore it. Can somebody shoot
himself in the chest and still cock the gun at that time,
yes, and the body, yes.

Q. You've talked about cases where investigators
look at a scene and think it's a homicide initially but after
further investigation, they realize it's a suicide, correct?

A. No, they thought it was a homicide and they
called me to the scene.

Q. Andyou set them straight?

A. No, I didn't set them straight, no. Everybody

Page 98 |

we really think this case is a homicide but since you voted {
on coming, we will charge for something less, maybe for blunt E
)

3

L e

AL

e e T

T

Page 100

) .. .
AL T esmellas a very subjective under-scientific
T = e = -
variable. Again, the Smiell, how can you determipe thata

Tty e ] N
caseisa homicide and not a homicide based on the ¢ smell of

“Fpo% e~ That 1s almost bordering on Voodo.
= Well, if the battalion chief with 20 something
years of experience as a bomb tech says he can't smell

gunpowder, do you take issue with that?

> WD

B

5
6
7

G

| & A Well, as an expert, Lcan provids a scientific
e

10 OFSGJou do take issue with his opinion?

11 A. That is below the limit which the law sets.

12 There has to be a reasonable degree of medical certainty, the

13 threshold.
14°Q. So you do take issue with that battalion chief's
i15 opinion?

16 THE COURT: Wait a minute. Would you repeat the
17 question, please. '

18 MR. GREGORY: I asked him if he takes issue with
15 the battalion chiefs opinion that he did not smell gunpowder
20 in the room.

21 MS. BROWN: Your Honor, that doesn't relate to
22 the issue of whether it's a homicide or a suicide. It
23 relates to an issue of reporting.

24 THE COURT: The reason I asked him to repeat it

1

OV n24Al D Aanarfare

=7 Qf '
SE 86 (25) Pages 97 - 1
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|16

Y, |20

15 ’%f’you 1 smell my Cologne on you, you wouldn't disregard it.

ffJust, you know what, that is a scientific test. Soina
court like this, we could use personal discussion but ina

' court of law, you cannot use such a subjective interpretation
i of scientific evidence.

{3, Should wedgrere the paremedics)found pooling?
{ ic:

. TR S S S .
z1 M\J Again, I've said you dor't-ignore anything. You
22/ put every

rthing together and you look at the totality because

e R e e R LT L I TR T

i what Ir How. the paramedic notice pooling, pooling of

247 what? What significance does that have With the patterns of -
\3’?—2{::’ T e A A D T8 wtmin S et s

A RO D

17
18
19

st

i O

BT e ot 2y e

Sayin

ENr T o= T T oo

1&@?*‘2&?{’&”’5{: &e?ﬁfﬁé‘éiﬁ?e you a&ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ*tﬁ‘ﬁéffd

16 equation, I heard that in your --

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. -- running in the heat, right?

19 A. Yes, sir.

20 Q. Okay. And the combination of those two things,
21 it might bring on a quicker onset of rigor?

22 A. Generalized.

23
24

Q. Okay. Is there any evidence in this case that
Harry Leibel was doing anything as aggressive as running a

Rough Draft State of Nevada vs
February 4, 2015 Tatiana Leibel. aka Tatiana Kosyrkina - 14-CR-0062
t Page 101 Page 103
1 because I didn't understand the question. Is the question | 1 Q. And did you take the blanket and inspect it and !
2 suggesting that the witness believes the - believes that the | 2 do any kind of testing on the blanket? /
-~ 3 battalion chief did smell ganpowder? 3 A. It was not indicated.
4 MR. GREGORY: Can I ask a different question? 4 Q. Did you take the robe and do any kind of testing \‘}
5 THE COURT: Would you, please, or rephrase that s with the robe? ) ]
6 One. /’/—»’?“”\f““":\) 6 A. It wasnot indicated.
7/Q. (BY MR GREGORYY Should this ju frear,’the 7 Q. And you've told me that you didn't take the gun
4 battalion: ini ardi -";‘gngﬁff;')éw\até??““ g8 and test fire the gun, correct?
o A.&Yes, that:should be rdedecause of s A. No, sir.
1 ‘ sgier wic. If ymﬁalam —- there’s a test. 10 Q. You gave an example of rigor mortis mindset in
1 W Therewd scientific test to confirm what you're subjective {11  quicker than normal, and your example was a marathon runner?
12\\3 feeling is. 12 A. That was one exam le I gave. That way you have
13\.}\ 1 could come as you're wearing a Cologne and I'm 13 _generalized-onset of “whole body-=1 F5et within minutes
14-1%,]156(1 to smelling my own Cologne and I come to you and I tell 15"&/@% Jod \Ed@;ﬂ%es “Eéﬁwﬁ,u__ﬂ«i ”_"’

I
\//f Page 102 Page 104
5.; _injury.on i him at autop psy? o 1 marathon?
2 Q. Sonow youTe saying we should consider 2 A j{e was usmg»b;lws W%qgé%s'ﬁnam lllfa%nc: 2 gun };g:}%_en
3 evenhing, 1 3,_he was|ifi ol adtenaline state. e
B AT Tsaid n a case like 4 4 O = While he's settmg on the couch?
Sv&«%tﬁlz};ét‘f @’f’?}i’g“é‘,‘; @ . at it, you 5 A. Committing suicide, yes. It's an adrenalin
6 %ikeontthe:thimgs you shouldn't evaluate. That shouldn't | 6 state. People who commit suicide, it's an abnormal mental
7  be a foundation for my scientific opinion. 2 state from start and done. It's actually a mental, like
g Q. But you didn't review the entirety of the case? 8 gitation, That is why it's always compulsive.
s A. Sorry? off_Suicide is-part of the compulsiveBEHAVIOE D)
10 Q. You didn't review the entirety of the case? 10 Q. Y ou indicated that the concept of an average
11 A Ireviewed the case that was pertinent to my 11 spasm was created by an exotic doctor who wanted to get
12 opinion. I've neysrzeyiewed or witnessed statements inany (12 attention for himself. ‘
13 caseand ove\;&;S ,000 caseSi] have done in my career, I've |13 A. That wasn't -- some doctor -- sOme doctor many
14 never reviewed alFor the witness' statements. Ireview |14 yearsago chose to name it cadaveric spasm. Why he gave it
15 material that are pertinent to my role in this case as an |15 that name, why cadaveric spasm, the cadaver to have spasms, '
16 expert in forensic pathology and neuropathology. I'mmnota |16 it's not a very accurate name, but It is in place. That's
17 paramedic expert. Am 1 making sense? 17 why I said it's some people call it or you look at
18 Q. So you indicated how important it is to do 18 literature, it's called cadaveric so the body is rigor
19 testing. Did you do any testing of the wound in the hand, |19 mortis. '
‘120 the residues? 20 Q. Okay. You've indicated you're not a gun or
21 A. Idid whatis called a visual analysis, visual 21 ballistics expert, right?
2 inspection. 22 A. Yes.
-23 Q. Visual of the photo, correct? 23 Q. Okay. Andyetyou given have an opinion
A. Yes. 24 regarding the distance that the muzzle was to Harry Leibel's

Joa
|

Parae 10T - 104 (26)
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A. Yes, as a forensic pathologist, we're trained in

Q. Now, a ballistics expert is going to take that

body, correct?

the medical aspect of ballistics, just like we're trained in
the medical aspect of biomechanical body because to
understand gunshot wounds, you need to understand the
fundamentals of gun. Why does a gun fire? Why is a gun
lethal?

robe that the bullet werit through and look at the gasses and

come up with some conclusions based on science as far as how {10

Y
use temperature of the body to determine when somebody died. @/
We don't do that because of multiple variables involved.

Q. If a ballistics expert testified differently than
you just did,;would you defer h1m to becagusg_lw s an expert?
A. Nofbecause [dealwith T

.balhstms EXDET xpert.is.Not.an exy

! octof is. S0 30 if it comes to opinion relatmc fo ndmos on

a human body, I wouldn't defer to a ballistics expert, no.
Q. Okay. You know more than they do about that?

A, Tt's not about knowing more. This is my area of

ert on the fumanT 0 ,y ythe

¢

R

far away the gun was; is that right? 111 expertise and training, and it's not about one person knowing {
A. Ballistics does not do tissue. We doctors are i12  or not knowing. It's not about that at all. '
thex &1 do that. /,-‘;-_;@;, o 13 Q. TI've never heard the term loose contact, a loose
Q( »{ Jbout t1ssue\v 1 mean the robe. 14 contact wound. Is that a scientific term?
D y do that, but wetake |15 A Yes.

'Photo orahﬁc {fspection is
‘actually to take the tissug itself !

3 tO_ conﬁmn but,photo ap)nc i18  that the muzzle of the gun is not completely, is not tight on
- doc?ﬁEEﬁfmh is accurate = . 19 the skin. When you have the muzzle, circumference muzzling,
Q. So what test did you perform in coming up with 20 that is indeed the tight contact or hot contact.
your analysis that it was one to two inches away? 21 Q. You agree with me that the second shot, there was
A. This is something that I want to establish is !22  no way that Harry Leibel was holding the muzzle with his left
common knowledge. If there's any forensic pathologist that ;23 hand?
doesn't know that, his license should be taken away from. |24 A. No,Ididn't say that. I sa1d he was.o»

Q. Okay. What does that mean?
A. Loose contact, have contact, what it means is

\om\lmm»wmv—l

TR ORI R O o
NHomm\lmmuxwmr—-o

Page 106

This is elementary. The range of shot of a gunshot wound,
it's something very basic for us as forensic pathologist. I
can tell you even when he's 18 inches, specific changes you l
can see. I can tell you when it's one foot. It is all part
of our training.

Q. Okay. But you didn't perform any tests before
you agrived at that conclusion?

A. Visual inspection.

Q. You looked at the photos and you made your

Page 108

6 G/((Q Lmk my questuihn'a httle more directly.

7 At the time of the second shot, was Harry Leibel's left hand

opinions from that?
A. Yes, sir. k 2 muzzle and that was when there was a mlsﬁ:e The hand went
Q. What was the circumference of that sooting that 1oasen the shoulderZ==""= BT ——/‘/
we saw on the back of Harry's left hand? 113 Q. y'queshon wasn't whether he was trymcr o hold

A. I cannot measure it. They should have measured
on autopsy. It was not measured.

Q. Okay. Soyou have o idea what the circumference
was?

A. No.

Q. Does that impact the distance?

A. No, we don't use circumference typically because
of what is called multi variable regression analysis. There
are multiple factors involved, including the size of the

hand, so many factors, so we don't typically use second ) 22
forensic of difference to make decision just like we don't |24

\

2
.’ ™
21 muzzle trymv to locate, maybe agam to shoot hunse?huT

on todt. My_questwmwasmhefhermhe was holdmo onto it.

=

holdmg, the gun, the barrel. He did not mean to shoot
i lf that is what a mlsﬁre s, o I/

bepd iszis.a rifle. So he was trying to -- this is
.."r_-atyplca R \"—%\'\
Q You said something about the human brain thatl

RIE
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just wanted to ask you about. So you said if somebody came
up behind Harry and actually touched him with the muzzle, he.
would have known it immediately, right?

A. Yes, as primitive reflex located in the brain
stem and it's not trying to be defensive.

Q. Ewven if he was sleeping, would that be true?

A. Haven't you like you're sleeping and then a fly
is on your face and you slap it?

Q. Okay. So thenyou gave an example of a president

\OW\IO\U!DWNH

\ |10 getting shot and not even knowing he had been shot. Helpme {10
11 understand how that works? 11
A Why I answered that was to explain that you can 12

be shot in the chest and not die instantaneously. 13

Q. Wasn't it your testimony he didn't even know he 14

had been-sho y— 15

A i@dlﬂ;ﬁﬂég %) 16
N 17

R ”i’"ﬁﬁuﬁe was shot. They pushed |18

He didn't know then. He even told the secret service yougy 19

shoved me too hard. Get off me. Then suddenly he started .

Page 111

Q. But what made the arm forcefully move?

A. The -- remember, the gun went through. The
bullet was able to go through the entirety of the chest into
the arm because it still had kinetic energy?

Q. So it was the force of the fragments coming up
through his body that --

A. The force of the shot.

Q. The force of the shot?

A. Yeah, and, remember, because it's close range.

The momentum of the shot emptied completely into his body and

that was why the bullet passed through and through, and it

was also a rifle shot. Rifle -- the bullet of rifles
sometimes could travel up to 300 feet per second. Handguns
is about 1,200. So the force of the shot because it was a
rifle pushed because the shoulder joint was slightly flexed,
not fully extended, shoved the shoulder outwards and caused
fracture.

Q. Do you agree with the ballistics expert that as
those fragments traveled through those body, they would lose
kinetic energy?

A. Yes, they would lose energy that is why they
settled in the body. But as they continue because it's a
rifle shot, it will continue traveling, the bullet if it goes
through the entirety. By the time it entered the arm, it

22
23
24
T Page 110 ‘
1 A. Inyour heait?
2 Q. Yes.
3 A Yes, sir. Yes, sir.
"4 Q. Iwantedto make sure I understood your testimony 4
5 regarding the first shot, and what was the path it traveled | 5
6 of the projectile? = : o, | 6
_7.A.__The’ hr.o,'ggglg,,wai w L, back leftward) | 7
5 Q. Okay~ What type of ammunition was used? . | 8
g A. Ituseda type of ammunition I saw was the type I 3
10 would splinter upon enfrance of soft tissue. Again, thisis |10
11 now you're going into ballistics. I'm not an expert in that, 111
12 yeah 12
13 Q. Okay, great. IfI understood correctly, you're 13
14 saying when his body takes that shot, it dislocated or l14
15 fractured his clavicle? 15
16 A. No. |16
517 Q. Okay. Tellme. 117
/|18 A. _His hand was not.extended begause if the hand is 18
1o  extended. the force of the impact wouldn't dislocate the |19
20 clavicle. So when it's such a pattern, not because of this, {20
51 this is what we study. When it's such a pattern of clavicle 21
2 —acromial fra ture.dislocations like you saw in the X-1ay;
‘\’C;ti;&mg&ne i1 thie autopsyLe] GriyWhat it shows |23
Ve armm was forcehilly [ W, still flexed. |24

22 é@.*"/ﬁkay. And what is your opinion as to how all

Page 112

Q. %erstanding your opinion in that first shot,
your opinion is that Harry Leibel's arm -- left arm was down,
correct?

A. No, I thought his left upper extremity was
manipulating the rifle, and it wasn't extended. It wasn't
like --

Q. Where was it?

A. Somry?

Q. Where was it?

A. It was close to his body and reaching out close,
trying to control the reaching out of the barrel of the gun
to support it to shoot himself, and he's a taller guy. The
attorney who made the demonstration is shorter, so his trunk !
would be higher than the attorney's.

Q. Okay. So his arm is like this when he shot?

A His arm -- all I could say, they were not there
when it happened. Alllcan sayis his hand
out. [l

Sou

was not extended

AR

that shrapnel traveled down his arm and exited right here,
how did that happen?
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)

A. That happens when it's -- if you notice, you're :
axilla when you slightly flex comes down, okay? Why it
happens, you have blood vessels and nerves going to your
upper extremities, so you need some lactic. Otherwise, you
tear your blood vessels. So whenever you move your arm
slightly, it could travel through the chest, through the
axilla without exiting the skin into the arm.

Q Okay. So how did those fragments -- what causes
fragments to turn?

A Thefrraoment remember, when we take X-Tavs, we

ey

in front of the jury? l(.

A. Why she said that was because she said that where {
he measured was similar to -- what p,e - measured was.similar to |
Harry's upper arm length. )

Q. The way they measured Ms. Brown's arm was similar i)
to the way it was measured by Dr. Kubiczek when he looked at /
Harry Leibel.

A. Yes. When he brought up the measurement of the
expert is because of legal issues.

Q. Sothe measurements of her arm was inaccurate

WO Wi Y U W N

OlD(D\lG\UIlle\JH

o}
o

11 take 1t5anatezmc osition. So when you sef.down.anatom down anatomic ‘
12 },aésmon you think the fragment is turned dow:nwards amI &
13 making sense? =

[N
S

Q.1 dqg}t Kknow. i 14 @n&\q To measure somebody's reach, yoﬁ need to startd
Wi ;15 from the midline of the body. Ifyou don't want to start]f

16 from the midline, you start from the neck and then go, andfl
17 you don't go inwards because you're measuring reach. Reach, (

i
(5]
3:
/

[
[2)]

,\_gn_»youvsee 11ke it, looka ke he
f.you raise yOuL. hand shcrh ly

=
-~

18 _aleanin 18 you go outwards, outwards to the tip but if you notice )
19 report did nc not say it wenLleﬁward backwa 10  that case, it's not inward. From the axilla inward.

20 ,gndﬂth 1d. i ay that 20 Q. So this demonstration was inaccurate because g ‘:
21 w1th me that it was baekward“‘igﬁygg@_ d and upv p ard 21 Ms. Brown's arm wasn't measured? §
22 Dr Kub1czek testified that the arm was up like 22 A. The demonstration was not about the length of her

23 arm. g}gdernonggggpnq.gvas;:ust}t_g;sh* =thatassuming ¢ this

24
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{6,,/" z, 2 g
4 Dr Kublczek said 1 1t was mgljgp\g\mshot woun

| 1 Q. Arewe supposed to disregard then the length of
und @9}‘ 2 Mr. Leibel's are?
=1 3 A. Sorry?
2 Q. Should we disregard the length of Mr. Leibel's
5 amm? .
‘6 A. Again, we shouldn't disregard, :
B B CL P i e

we:is

g8 him personally before ca}ne here.

9 Q. You talked about the measurements of the arm 9 wS?Su“bgive it weloht lm ev1dent1ary we1ght The weight
10 being done incorrectly, right? 10 I will give it would be low because of the methodology that
11 A Yes, sir. 11 is inadequate. So I'll giveita low score, push it down.
12 Q. Do you dispute that the tape measure ot the 12 This process is called differential diagnosis, so I'll score

13 accuracy of the tape measure that was depicted in that {13 it low, not that T would disregard it, no.

14 photograph? 14 Q. In the demonstration for the first shot, the gun

15 A. No. Remember, the -- yes, I dispute it. 115 -~ the butt of the gun was on the floor; is that right?

16 Remember, the -- 16 A. 1dom't know where it was. Nobody can tell you

17 Q. You dispute the accuracy of the tape measurement? |17 exactly where it was.

18 A. Yes, I dispute it. Remember, the judge's opinion 18 Q. No, I'm asking inthe demonstration, the butt of

19 youread, that if your methodology is lacking or wanting, |19 the gun was on the floor; is that correct? £
20 your results are inaccurate. So methodology is insufficient, |20 A. It could have been on the floor or we want o "g
21 is inadequate, is wrong. And so the outcome of that 21 demonstrate that it is probable that a man like Harry couls
»2 methodology, scientific issue would be dismissed. 22  kill himself with a rifle.

— 123 Q. A few minutes ago you did a demonstration with 23 THE COURT: Sir, what I'm askmcr you to do is to
24 Ms. Brown and she told you that Dr. Kubiczek measured her arm | 24 listen to his question. The question was during the

>
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11 A. No, that'is true.

12 Q. And when you did the demonstration for shot

13 number one, Ms. Brown had both of her hands on that gun,
14 didn't she?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Okay. Andthe muzzle of the gun was touching her
‘17 torso, correct?

18 A. Yes.

15 Q. Andshe was seated at the front, the very front
|20 edge of the couch; is that right?

21 A. Possibly, yes.

2 Q. Righthere?
A. Yes.
Q.. Okay. And then for shot number two, now she's

1

122
23
24

l

eientific. cvidencgyand I'm telling you this i
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Trial - Wednesday Rough Draft State of Nevada vs
February 4, 2015 Tatiana Leibel. aka Tatiana Kosyrkina - 14-CR-0062
} Page 117 Page 119
1 demonstration, was the butt of the gun on the floor. He | 1 back reclined on the couch, correct?
, didn't ask you during the shooting. 2 A. Yes, because the human body, when you're shot,
T3 THE WITNESS: Okay. 3 you're bleeding, you're going to fall back.
4 THE COURT: He asked you about the demonstration. | 4 Q. Andit's your testimony, again, I just want to
5 That's the only question you're asked right now. Theremay | 5 make sure] understand, when that second shot was fired,
' & be other questions later but during the demonstration, was ! ¢ Harry was manipulating the barrel of the gun with his left
7 the butt of the gun on the floor, that's yes or no. 7 hand?
8 THE WITNESS: I don't recall if it was on the | 8 A With both hands.
g floor. ‘ 9 Q. Both hands?
10 THE COURT: He doesn't recall. |10 A. Hewas manipulating the gun.
11 Q. (BY MR. GREGORY?) You don't know? j11 Q. Okay.
12 A. Iwasn't paying attention because that wasn't {12 A. It was a misfire.
13 what the demonstration was for. 13 Q. How do you know it was a rnisfire?
14 Q. Since you'renota ballistics expert, you 14 A. Because of my education and training, cases I've
15 couldn't tell us what the kick of the gun would doif it was |15 seen, experience. Misfires happen a lot. In fact, sometimes
16 against the floor, can you? 16 you actually see the misfire before the fatal shot or
17 A What? 17 sometimes they actually do it intentionally. Wecallit |
18 Q. What the Kkick of the gun would do? 18 hesitation,-&hﬂews_iggabt;ig _‘rwqunds;. They test the gun first on i
l 15 A, Wedon't call it kick, backfire. 19 themselves and actually shoot your hand sometimes before they ||
20 Q. Backfire? 20 now give the fatal shot.
121 A Itrecoil, the recoil. Could you repeat the 21 Q. You were talking about rigor mortis. You talked
22 question? 22 t from a bullet can cause rigor?
23 Q. Yezh. You're nota ballistics expert S0 you 23 Al s tase pn.the side:
o4 can't testify what would happen if you put the butt of the 124 W ditio
| o
' Page 118 i
T 1 gun oa the floor and shot it, what would happen to the gun? Il 1
| » A Every gun has a recoil capability, every gun s | 2 Byt wa [a de.
3 there would be recoil. 3 Q=ESGthersame thi g would be-salc “of ;
4 Q. Did you test the trigger pull of the gun? 4 then, wouldn't the heat cause rigor mortis over on this side |
s A No, that is ballistics, that is above my pay 5 @g@y B —
6 grad. 6 AZRIZ wergointy Side.ofsthe:body,
. THE COURT REPORTER: That is what? (Piiechenabdomerhearts> Soft fissue-doesmot activate |
8 THE WITNESS: Above my pay grade. Abovemypay | 8 ' ﬁri?gg‘bmq;ti?égjg@'\_@m@is i@bﬂiﬁﬁoﬂg}g‘é int
o grade | 5 tbecause of the Tigidit ;‘«_Qi;‘t;he;muséiﬂes. '
10 Q. BY MR. GREGORY:) You didn't weigh the gun? 110 So, doctor, you disagree with the opinions of the

aramedics in this case?
I wouldn't -- I don't disagree with people =
be%usc.,thgtris_nol,;my:;rg,.olc,,» I cant play God{,

P g O

e h“'w;\_—-?w‘ ..
. &« t support-the.allega P this is a ﬂ%
R e T I LS 7 . . e
E]_1,(11111(;;(16. The paramedics has the conistitutional right and
the professional right to say whatever he wants to say. I'm

not here to agree or disagree with anybody. (L. iply:hiere
ith-my-training, expertise and £X erience. IJlooked at

A

T Taddrnoydll Hory, ThsiSwidde
Q. You don't give much weight to what the paramedics
said?

anitnl Renorters
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— Page 121 Page 123
1 A. I thinkI said this before. i1 MR. GREGORY: It is the law.
2 THE COURT: Well, wait a minute. If you 're going | 2 THE COURT: Sustained. _
3 to make that staternent, ask him about a particular statement i 3 Q. (BYMR. GREGORY?) So you disregard
4 that one or more paramedics would have said. The questionis | ¢ Dr. Kubiczek's opinion? 7
5 too vague for him to even pose an answer to it. 5 A. Sorry.
6 Q. (BY MR GREGORY:) Well, the paramedics indicated | 6 Q. You disregard Dr. Kubiczek's opinions? E%
7 that they thought it didn't look like the shootmg hadjust i 7 A Idon't-- y
8 occurredﬂ':mg::?‘f* R ‘/"”’“ - 8 MS. BROWN: Objection, Your Honor. Again, he'k
o 71 said what you just sai the paramedics talke N E: asking for opinions, if he disagrees with one. 3
¥ You're free to think whatever you want to think, but you' g |10 THE COURT: Overruled. Well, again, though, youtf
do need to be fairly specific so remember that, sir. So T )

{1 not to try to interpret evidence of how to interpret it. The \
42 paramedics is free to think whatever he wants and support his -

right to do that, but he does not have the right to interpret
the sc1ent1ﬁc ewdence anyway he wants, thatis a pomt I'm )

I e s

16 O>=#H4 the police officers in thls case, you
17 disregard what they have stated?

18 A. The police officers are going to --

19 MS. BROWN: Again, that's too general.

20 THE COURT: Sustained. You're welcome to ask him |20
21 those questions but you have to be more specific about what |21
22 he disagrees with. 22
3 Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) In concluding or comingto |23

your conclusion, did you give any weight to statements made 24

understand the question, but it's almost like a compOUnd
questlon and so it's -- unless you want a narrative answer, |
then you need to ask about specific opinion, Sir. b

Q. (BY MR. GREGORY?) You read Matt Noedel's report i,
in this case? |

A. Sorry?

Q. You read Matt Noedel's report; is that correct?

A. Who is Matt Noedel, I'm sorry?

Q. Maybe you didn't read his report. He's the
ballistics expert.

A. Iperused through it. Ididnot read it because
I was not coming in here as a ballistics expert.

Q. Okay. You would know if you read his report that i

Page 122

by police officers?
A. The weight, like I have said in my differential
diagnosis process, in this case, my methodology, the weight
of what a police officer said in terms of the cause of death
is down. The weight -- my foundational purpose of that is
weighed down. The pohce is free to assume and say whatever
:ha; tright.

i ey e

: witl the mterpretaﬁ@edmal ev1dence ,')l»"
11 Q. Okay. So = Tstaboat Dr. Kubiczek's opinion, do
12 7You disregard his opinion?

13/A. His opinion, like I have said, he said multiple

f gunshot wounds. [ told you personally this is not the case

\ of multiple gunshot wounds. Dr. Kubiczek was not the one who
determined this to be 2 homicide. In fact, in the report, it
says the manner of death would be determined by the Douglas

County Sheriff's Coroner. Why did do that, I don't know.

.p_w NI

111

16

18
19

| ‘ 19‘\ He's pretty much defemng a medica] duty to a police
20 wofficerm

S

21 Q. Are you aware that that's the law in the State of
22 Nevada?

20

23 MS. BROWN: I would object, Your Honor. That's
24 not the law.

21 REDIRECT EXAMINATION
22 BY MS. BROWN:
123 Oz oo owmc you what has been marked as

he gave conclusions regarding the distances of the shots that
were fired? %
A. The distance I think that I remember vividly but f
I think he may have said that the wound on the chest wa§ |
about two or three inches, am I correct? Help me out, | A
please.
Q. Tm just asking if you read the report?
A. Yes, I perused through it. Ididn't spend time
on the report as I spent with the autopsy report.
Q. Because you are not an expert in that area, you
would defer to his opinions in that regard?
A. Not in matters relating to medical determination
of cause and manner of death, no.
Q. What about distance of shots fired?
A. Shot on the body, no.
Q. Aliright. Thank you. I have nothing further.
THE COURT: Ms. Brown?
MS. BROWN: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Ms. Jackson, are you ok?
THE COURT REPORTER: Yes.

; G
wee me st Capitol Reporters 3 & r\ (31) Pages 121 1.

P —



CRECEVLD o o mxraze sy A0 TR 00026
JAN 04 202 .
‘;.::gnn.;_ﬂ et l_\? v \L \J\\\ XW (a.ﬁ%x—@(& A‘.’(Q‘\\
C_:L i R'%QQQWQ'@%\O \Qq QSO Vﬂl%u(ux\f\bi ng@n&
Ca = MRS 199.120 falee Qibdw#:&‘ueﬂeé@@e‘f‘@e&
Ca » NRS (29 .190—104. wo%mmwm ;
¢ * Bast Dot -CGonvickion /Cuww/( '
Co * Do, Bonnel Owaly fdsial Tob .4,
C = _\/\%i-vw%@u\ NRS 5’5& Q00 ~ 734 QQO

W\JUVE\\;%\A\%\«% ase. added é_@v.e.age. Q4?Q_§Q€M\&Q qupbedions.

- Page Number

2093 |

\/

(O



CASE NUMBER

EXHIBIT C\

,—\_——\/-—7/—3

Ormendiment W ¢ U0 YU X\

e 4 P h]
! {

3694




Amendment 4 Unreasonable searches and seizures.

The right of the people to be secure in their persons, houses, papers, and effects, against
unreasonable searches and seizures, shall not be violated, and no Warrants shall issue, but upon
probable cause, supported by Oath or affirmation, and particularly describing the place to be
searched, and the persons or things to be seized.

Amendment S Criminal actions—Provisions concerning—Due process of law
and just compensation clauses.

No person shall be held to answer for a capital, or otherwise infamous crime, unless on a
presentment or indictment of a Grand Jury, except in cases arising in the land or naval forces, or
in the Militia, when in actual service in time of War or public danger; nor shall any person be
subject for the same offence to be twice put in jeopardy of life or limb; nor shall be compelled in
any criminal case to be a witness against himself, nor be deprived of life, liberty, or property,
without due process of law; nor shall private property be taken for public use, without just
compensation.

Amendment 6 Rights of the accused.

In all criminal prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public trial, by
an impartial jury of the State and district wherein the crime shall have been committed, which
district shall have been previously ascertained by law, and to be informed of the nature and cause
of the accusation; to be confronted with the witnesses against him; to have compulsory process
for obtaining witnesses in his favor, and to have the Assistance of Counsel for his defence.

Amendment 7 Trial by jury in civil cases.
In Suits at common law, where the value in controversy shall exceed twenty dollars, the right

of trial by jury shall be preserved, and no fact tried by a jury, shall be otherwise re-examined in
any Court of the United States, than according to the rules of the common law.

Amendment 8 Bail—Punishment.
Excessive bail shall not be required, nor excessive fines imposed, nor cruel and unusual

NVCODE 1

© 2020 Matthew Bender & Company, Inc., a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. Use of this product is subject to the
restrictions and terms and conditions of the Matthew Bender Master Agreement.

369



Artlcle 1ADeclaratlon of ngh

S e

. Inalienable rights.

1

2. Purpose of government; paramount allegiance to United States.
3. Trial by jury; waiver in civil cases.

4. Liberty of conscience.
5
6

. Suspension of habeas corpus.
. Excessive bail and ﬁnes cruel or unusual punishments; detention of witnesses.

NVCODE 1
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8. Rights of accused in criminal prosecutions; jeopardy; due process of law; eminent
domain.

1. No person shall be tried for a capital or other infamous crime (except in cases of
impeachment, and in cases of the militia when in actual service and the land and naval forces in
time of war, or which this state may keep, with the consent of congress, in time of peace, and in
cases of petit larceny, under the regulation of the legislature) except on presentment or
indictment of the grand jury, or upon information duly filed by a district attorney, or
attorney-general of the state, and in any trial, in any court whatever, the party accused shall be
allowed to appear and defend in person, and with counsel, as in civil actions. No person shall be
subject to be twice put in jeopardy for the same offense; nor shall he be compelled, in any
criminal case, to be a witness against himself.

2. No person shall be deprived of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law.

3. Private property shall not be taken for public use without just compensation having been
first made, or secured, except in cases of war, riot, fire, or great public peril, in which case
compensation shall be afterward made.

Amendments.

The 1912 amendment to this section was proposed and passed in Statutes of Nevada 1909, p. 346;
agreed to and passed in Statutes of Nevada.1911, p. 454; and ratified at the 1912 general election.

The 1996 amendment to this section was proposed and passed in the Statutes of Nevada 1993, p.
3065; agreed to and passed in Statutes of Nevada 1995, p. 2880; and ratified in the 1996 general election.

The 2018 amendment to this section was proposed and passed in the Statutes of Nevada 2015, p.
4074, to take effect November 27, 2018; and ratified in the November 6, 2018 General Election.

Proposed Amendment.

An amendment to this section was proposed and passed in Statutes of Nevada 2015, p. 4074, to take
effect November 27, 2018, if the proposed amendment is agreed to and passed by the 2017 Legislature
and approved and ratified at the 2018 General Election.

Rejected Amendment,

An amendment to this section was proposed and passed in Statutes of Nevada 2007, p. 3595. It was
further agreed to and passed by the 2009 Legislature, see Statutes of Nevada 2009 p. 3213. The
amendment was submitted to a vote at the 2010 general election and disapproved. If approved, this
section would have read:

“1. No person shall be tried for a capital or other infamous crime (except in cases of

NVCODE 1
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impeachment, and in cases of the militia when in actual service and the land and naval forces in
time of war, or which this state may keep, with the consent of congress, in time of peace, and in
cases of petit larceny, under the regulation of the legislature) except on presentment or
indictment of the grand jury, or upon information duly filed by a district attorney, or
attorney-general of the state, and in any trial, in any court whatever, the party accused shall be
allowed to appear and defend in person, and with counsel, as in civil actions. No person shall be
subject to be twice put in jeopardy for the same offense; nor shall he be compelled, in any
criminal case, to be a witness against himself.

“2. The legislature shall provide by law for the rights of victims of crime, personally or
through a representative, to be:

(a) Informed, upon written request, of the status or disposition of a criminal proceeding at
any stage of the proceeding;

(b) Present at all public hearings involving the critical stages of a criminal proceeding;
and

(c) Heard at all proceedings for the sentencing or release of a convicted person after trial.

“3. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 4, no person may maintain an action against
the state or any public officer or employee for damages or injunctive, declaratory or other legal or
equitable relief on behalf of a victim of a crime as a result of a violation of any statute enacted by
the legislature pursuant to subsection 2. No such violation authorizes setting aside a conviction or
sentence or continuing or postponing a criminal proceeding.

“4, A person may maintain an action to compel a public officer or employee to carry out any
duty required by the legislature pursuant to subsection 2.

“5. No person shall be deprived of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law.

“6. Private property shall not be taken for public use without just compensation having been
first made, or secured, except in cases of war, riot, fire, or great public peril, in which case
compensation shall be afterward made.

“7., Except as otherwise provided in paragraphs (a) to (e), inclusive, the public uses for
which private property may be taken do not include the direct or indirect transfer of any interest
in the property to another private person or entity. A transfer of property taken by the exercise of
eminent domain to another private person or entity is a public use in the following circumstances:

(a) The entity that took the property transfers the property to a private person or entity and

the private person or entity uses the property primarily to benefit a public service, including,

NVCODE 2
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without limitation, a utility, railroad, public transportation project, pipeline, road, bridge, airport
or facility that is owned by a governmental entity.

(b) The entity that took the property leases the property to a private person or entity that
occupies an incidental part of an airport or a facility that is owned by a governmental entity and,
before leasing the property:

(1) Uses its best efforts to notify the person from whom the property was taken
that the property will be leased to a private person or entity that will occupy an incidental part of
an airport or a facility that is owned by a governmental entity; and

(2) Provides the person from whom the property was taken with an opportunity to
bid or propose on any such lease.

(¢) The entity:

(1) Took the property in order to acquire property that was abandoned by the
owner, abate an immediate threat to the safety of the public or remediate hazardous waste; and

(2) Grants a right of first refusal to the person from whom the property was taken
that allows that person to reacquire the property on the same terms and conditions that are offered
to the other private person or entity.

(d) The entity that took the property exchanges it for other property acquired or being
acquired by eminent domain or under the threat of eminent domain for roadway or highway
purposes, to relocate public or private structures or to avoid payment of excessive compensation
or damages.

(e) The person from whom the property is taken consents to the taking.
“8. In all actions in eminent domain:

(a) Before the entity that is taking property obtains possession of the property, the entity
shall give to the owner of the property a copy of all appraisals of the property obtained by the
entity.

(b) At the occupancy hearing, the owner of the property that is the subject of the action is
entitled, at the property owner’s election, to a separate and distinct determination as to whether
the property is being taken for a public use.

(c) The entity that is taking property has the burden of proving that the taking is for a
public use.

NVCODE 3
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(d) Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, neither the entity that is taking
property nor the owner of the property is liable for the attorney’s fees of the other party. This
paragraph does not apply in an inverse condemnation action if the owner of the property that is
the subject of the action makes a request for attorney’s fees from the other party to the action.

“9. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, if a court determines that a taking of -
property is for public use, the taken or damaged property must be valued at its highest and best
use without considering any future dedication requirements imposed by the entity that is taking
the property. If property is taken primarily for a profit-making purpose, the property must be
valued at the use to which the entity that is taking the property intends to put the property, if such
use results in a higher value for the property.

“10. In all actions in eminent domain, fair market value is the highest price, on the date of
valuation, that would be agreed to by a seller, who is willing to sell on the open market and has
reasonable time to find a purchaser, and a buyer, who is ready, willing and able to buy, if both the
seller and the buyer had full knowledge of all the uses and purposes for which the property is
reasonably adaptable and available.

“11. In all actions in eminent domain, just compensation is that sum of money necessary to
place the property owner in the same position monetarily as if the property had never been taken,
excluding any governmental offsets except special benefits. Special benefits may only offset
severance damages and may not offset the value for the property. Just compensation for the
property taken by the exercise of eminent domain must include, without limitation, Anterest and
reasonable costs and expenses, except attorney’s fees, incurred by the owner of the property ' that
is the subject of the action. The district court shall determine, in a posttrial hearing, the award of
Anterest and award as interest the amount of money which will put the person from whom the
property is taken in as good a position monetarily as if the property had not been taken. The
district court shall enter an order concerning;:

(a) The date on which the computation of interest will commence;

(b) The rate of interest to be used to compute the award of;interest, which must not be
less than the prime rate of;interest plus 2 percent; and

(¢) Whether the interest will be compounded annually.

“12. Property taken by the exercise of eminent domain must be offered to and reverts to the
person from whom the property was taken upon repayment of the original purchase price if,
within 15 years after obtaining possession of the property, the entity that took the property:

NVCODE | 4
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(a) Fails to use the property for the public use for which the property was taken or for any
public use reasonably related to the public use for which the property was taken; or

(b) Seeks to convey any right, title or‘interést in all or part of the property to any other
person and the conveyance is not occurring pursuant to subsection 7.

The entity that has taken the property does not fail to use the property under paragraph (a) if
the entity has begun active planning for or design of the public use, the assembling of land in
furtherance of planning for or design of the public use or construction related to the public use.

“13. If any provision of subsections 7 to 12, inclusive, or the application thereof to any
person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the provisions or
application of subsections 7 to 12, inclusive, which can be given effect without the invalid
provision or application, and to this end the provisions of subsections 7 to 12, inclusive, are
declared to be severable.

“14. The provisions of subsections 7 to 12, inclusive, apply to an action in eminent domain
that is filed on or after January 1, 2011.”

NVCODE 5

© 2020 Matthew Bender & Company, Inc., a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. Use of this product is subject to the
restrictions and terms and conditions of the Matthew Bender Master Agreement.

3701



k
ey

CASE NUMBER

EXHIBIT (g

Nk%(WL%O MQlSD

\&f\{ \V\% éVLOQQ/ﬂCQ,

370



O 2

Falsifying Evidence

199.210. Offering false evidence.

- 199.220. Destroying evidence.

. 199.230. Preventing or dissuading person from testifying or producing evidence.
199.235. Repealed.

199.240. Bribing or intimidating witness to influence testimony.

199.242. Limitations on defenses to prosecution for influencing testimony of witness.
199.250. Witness accepting bribe.

199.210. Offering false evidence.

A person who, upon any trial, hearing, inquiry, investigation or other proceeding authorized
by law, offers or procures to be offered in evidence, as genuine, any book, paper, document,
record or other instrument in writing, knowing the same to have been forged or fraudulently
altered, is guilty of a category D felony and shall be punished as provided in NRS 193.130.

HISTORY:
C&P 1911, § 92; RL 1912, § 6357; CL 1929, § 10041; 1971, p. 150; 1979, p. 1421; 1995, ch.

443, § 26, p. 1175.

NOTES TO DECISIONS
Cited in:
Siragusa v. Brown, 114 Nev. 1384, 971 P.2d 801, 1998 Nev. LEXIS 161 (1998).

199.220. Destroying evidence.

Every person who, with intent to conceal the commission of any felony, or to protect or
. conceal the identity of any person committing the same, or with intent to delay or hinder the
administration of the law or to prevent the production thereof at any time, in any court or before
any officer, tribunal, judge or magistrate, shall willfully destroy, alter, erase, obliterate or conceal
any book, paper, record, writing, instrument or thing shall be guilty of a gross misdemeanor.

HISTORY:
C&P 1911, § 93; RL 1912, § 6358; CL 1929, § 10042.

Research References and Practice Aids
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Negligent spoliation of evidence, interfering with prospective civil action, as actionable. 101 A.L.R.5th
61.

199.230. Preventing or dissuading person from testifying or producing evidence.

A person who, by persuasion, force, threat, intimidation, deception or otherwise, and with the
intent to obstruct the course of justice, prevents or attempts to prevent another person from
appearing before any court, or person authorized to subpoena witnesses, as a witness in any
action, investigation or other official proceeding, or causes or induces another person to be
absent from such a proceeding or evade the process which requires the person to appear as a .
witness to testify or produce a record, document or other object, shall be punished:

1. Where physical force or the immediate threat of physical force is used, for a category D
felony as provided in NRS 193.130.

2. Where no physical force or immediate threat of physical force is used, for a gross
misdemeanor.

HISTORY:
C&P 1911, § 94; RL 1912, § 6359; CL 1929, § 10043; 1967, p. 465; 1979, p. 1421; 1983, p.
1683; 1995, ch. 443, § 27, p. 1175.

NOTES TO DECISIONS

Evidence sufficient.

There was sufficiént evidence to show that defendant dissuaded a witness under this statute because
he told the baby's mother not to testify, and he also told his girlfriend and mother to guarantee that the
baby's mother did not testify. Anderson v. State, 132 Nev. 939, 2016 Nev. App. Unpub. LEXIS 109 (Nev.
Ct. App. 2016).

Cited in:
Phillips v. State, 121 Nev. 591, 118 P.3d 711, 2005 Nev. LEXIS 66 (Sept. 15, 2005).
Research References and Practice Aids
Cross References
As to injunction to restrain unlawful act against witness or victim of crime, see NRS 33.015.

ALR -
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Admissibility in criminal case, on issue of defendant's guilt, of evidence that third person has
attempted to influence a witness not to testify or to testify falsely. 79 A.L.R.3d 1156.

Admissibility and effect, on issue of party's credibility or merits of his case, of evidence of attempt to
intimidate or influence witness in civil action. 4 A.L.R.4th 829.

Validity, construction, and application of state statutes imposing criminal penalties for influencing,
intimidating, or tampering with withess. 8 A.L.R.4th 769.

Construction and application of federal witness tampering statute, § 18 U.S.C.A. 1512(b). 185 A.L.R.
Fed. 1.

199.235. Repealed.

Repealed by Acts 1985, ch. 82, § 255, effective April 6, 1985.

199.240. Bribing or intimidating witness to influence testimony.

A person who:

1. Gives, offers or promises directly or indirectly any compensation, gratuity or reward to
any witness or person who may be called as a witness in an official proceeding, upon an
agreement or understanding that his or her testimony will be thereby influenced; or

2. Uses any force, threat, intimidation or deception with the intent to:

(a) Influence the testimony of any witness or person who may be called as a
witness in an official proceeding;

(b) Cause or induce him or her to give false testimony or to withhold true
testimony; or

(c¢) Cause or induce him or her to withhold a record, document or other object
from the proceeding,

is guilty of a category C felony and shall be punished as provided in NRS 193.130, and may
be further punished by a fine of not more than $50,000.

HISTORY:
C&P 1911, § 56; RL 1912, § 6321; CL 1929, § 10005; 1967, p. 465; 1979, p. 1421; 1983, p.
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1683; 1995, ch. 443, § 28, p. 1176.

NOTES TO DECISIONS
This section includes the bribing of any person who may be called as a witness.

No good reason appears to require that a subpoena shall first have had to be issued before a person
can be considered a prospective witness; a witness can be a witness without a subpoena. Fox v. Sheriff,
Clark County, 86 Nev. 21, 467 P.2d 1022, 1970 Nev. LEXIS 442 (Nev. 1970).

Effect of nonessential error in information.

An information charging the defendant with offering compensation to induce a witness to withhold
testimony in a pending criminal case against him was not fatally defective in charging that on April 26,
1969, the defendant offered a witness $500 not to testify against him at a preliminary hearing scheduled
for June 8, 1969, which date was a Sunday on which a preliminary hearing could not have been
scheduled, as the allegation that a preliminary hearing was scheduled for June 8 was not essential. Fox v.
Sheriff, Clark County, 86 Nev. 21, 467 P.2d 1022, 1970 Nev. LEXIS 442 (Nev. 1970).

“Understanding” between the parties.

This section requires an agreement or understanding between the giver of the bribe and the receiver;
if the giver makes an offer and he reasonably believes that the receiver has accepted, then there is an
*understanding” between the parties. Fox v. Sheriff, Clark County, 86 Nev. 21, 467 P.2d 1022, 1970 Nev.
LEXIS 442 (Nev. 1970).

Cited in:
Morley v. Walker, 175 F.3d 756, 1999 U.S. App. LEXIS 8409 (9th Cir. 1999).
Research References and Practice Aids
Cross References
As to injunction to restrain unlawful act against witness or victim of crime, see NRS 33.015.
As to protection of victims and withesses, see NRS 178.569 et seq.
As to immunity of material witnesses from prosecution, see NRS 178.572 et seq.
ALR -

Admissibility in criminal case, on issue of defendant's guilt, of evidence that third person has
attempted to influence a witness not to testify or to testify falsely. 79 A.L.R.3d 1156.

Admissibility and effect, on issue of party's credibility or merits of his case, of evidence of attempt to
intimidate or influence witness in civil action. 4 A.L.R.4th 8289.

Validity, construction, and application of state statutes imposing criminal penalties for influencing,
intimidating, or tampering with witness. 8 A.L.R.4th 769.
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Construction and application of federal witness tampering statute, § 18 U.S.C.A. 1512(b). 185 A.L.R.
Fed. 1.

199.242. Limitations on defenses to prosecution for influencing testimony of witness.

It is not a defense to a prosecution under NRS 199.230 or 199.240 to show that:
1. An official proceeding was not pending or about to be instituted; or

2. The testimony sought or the record, document or other object to have been produced
would have been legally privileged or inadmissible in evidence.

HISTORY:
1983, p. 1682; 1985, p. 247.

199.250. Witness accepting bribe.

A person who is or may be a witness upon a trial, hearing, investigation or other proceeding
before any court, tribunal or person authorized to hear evidence or take testimony, who asks or
receives, directly or indirectly, any compensation, gratuity or reward, or any promise thereof,
upon an agreement or understanding that his or her testimony will be influenced thereby, or that
the person will be absent from the trial, hearing or other proceeding, is guilty of a category C
felony and shall be punished as provided in NRS 193.130.

HISTORY:
C&P 1911, § 57; RL 1912, § 6322; CL 1929, § 10006; 1967, p. 465; 1979, p. 1421; 1995, ch.
443, § 29, p. 1176.
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Jury Trial - Wednesday Rough Draft State of Nevada
January 28, 2015 - Tatiana Lelbel aka Tatiana Kosyrkina - 14-CR=00&
Pag@- Page 127 ¢

1
2
3

5
6
7
8
9
i0
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
1i8
i9
20

22
23
24
25

Eotograprls of the grime scene?

21 |

moment to look at those. Have you reviewed those items?
A7 Yes, I'have.

Q Looking. at items 3 through 14

were those

e

F Yes.-One 1s. the outs1dé of the, residence.
Q. Doﬁ'ﬁé'ﬂfr_n&whmh_gy__'are rig ht now. It
ask_r.fJ if those are photog;aphers of the crlme_ngzge
)N Yes, thcy are,
Q. Okay. And [ do those photographs accurately depict
what you observed at the crime scene on February 23rd?
A. Yes.

MS. BROWN: I'd object, your Honor, as to a time
frame on those.
- - THE COURT: When -- You indicate that they
accurately depict what you observed. Give us a time frame.
" THE WITNESS: Around 4:00 o'clock in the
afternoon.

THE COURT: On the first day of your visit to the
scene?

THE WITNESS: Yes. On February 23rd 2014.

THE COURT: And are all of them within that time
frame?

THE WITNESS: Give or take several minutes on
either side, but roughly 4:00 o'clock, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. Objection is overruled.

1 MR. GREGORY: Move for admission of Exhibit 4.
2 MS. BROWN: Your Honor, if all of these
3 photographs are referred to 4:00 o'clock in the afternoon, I
4 have no objection.
5 THE COURT: So any of them through 20? He's
6 going to go -- He gave him 3 through 20, I believe. Sodo
7 you stipulate to the admission of 3 through 20?
8 MS. BROWN: Well, some of them aren't of the
9 scene.
10 MR. GREGORY: To clarify, your Honor 3 th:ough
11 14 hels testified are at.the. SCEnE; PR ET
12 THE COURT“Okay _So 3 through 14?
13 MS. BROWN: Wlth the caveat t hat’“'th“éy were taken
14 at 4:00 o'clock in the afternoon, I have no objection.
15 THE COURT: Within that time frame. It's not
16 exactly at four.
17 MS. BROWN: Correct.
18 THE COURT: Okay. Then 3 through 14 -- 3 has
19 already been admitted. But4 through 14 are admitted if you
20 intend to offer them, sir.
21 MR. GREGORY: I do, your Honor.
22 THE COURT: Then they're admitted.
23 Q. (By Mr. Gregory) Investigator Garren, you didn't

24

N
ut

take the photos; correct?

Lom\lmlﬂsbwl\)l-‘
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Q. (By Mr. Gregory) So first Investigator Garren,
Lanyou describe the. outsxde of the. hom home‘7 R
A. ;E s aTvVB’%TEry single famlly res1dence,,awb_mWn

wood COVET: covering on th “the house.
Q Kﬁ‘d 160King at Exhibit Nurnber 3, does that
crr

a H‘éccuf';i_t'gly“de‘_f‘lqt’the wa; that_the _r_esxdence

A Yes, it does.
MR. GREGORY: I'd move for admission of Exhibit
3.
THE COURT: Any objection?
MS. BROWN: No, your Honor.
THE COURT: 3 is admitted.
Q. (ByMr. Gregory) While that's coming up,
Investigator Garren, if you can look at Exhibit Number 4.
A. Yes, sir.
Q. Whatd does Exhibit 4 depict?
A. “The second | ﬂmp of the stairway, the
W
wall toqthe leff is a.y wall between-thefhvmg, room arlc_lﬁe

- c:dmma room. area of the house. And the living room was s off

to the right. ht. There's a small hallway and a master bedroom
off to the right as well. ’
Q. Does that photograph accurately depict the way
that the living room and that hallway looked that day?
A. Yes, it does.

O o 2oL WNR

[ o
(RO ARE S I ]

16
17
is
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

A. No, I did not.
Page 128

Q. And what I'm asking if those photos accurately
show what you observed when you were on scene?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Thank you. Let's look at Exhibit Number
4. That's the hallway that you just described?

A. Correct.

Q. So what is the vantage point of this photograph?

A. At the top of the stairway to the second floor
landing. the kitchen is immediately to your left. On the

other side of that wall you have the living room to your
right and the dining room to your left and then the small
hallway and master bedroom to the right there through that
door.

Q. And so the room that we're looking in to with the
guns is the living room?

A. That's correct.

Q. Looking at Exhibit Number 5, what does that
photograph depict?

A. Looking in to the living room just a little bit
further down to the right.

Q. The photograph is a little bit dark. Can you
indicate where the television set is in the room? .

A. The television is directly straight across the
room above the fireplace. There's a reclining chair to the

right. 3 70 ?
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1 information that you extracted from Ms. Leibel's phone? | 1 A. Yes.
2 A Yes, it does. 2 Q. And about what time did that call take place?
3 MR. GREGORY: Your Honor, I'd move for admission | 3 A. 9:13 a.m.
4 of Exhibit 60. 4 Q. And does it indicate who that call was coming
5 MS. BROWN: No objection. 5 from?
6 THE COURT: 60 is admitted. 6 A. It was from Lana Ramo.
7 MR GREGORY:: Your Honor, I have a copy of 7 Q. Was that call answered?
8 (Exhibjt 60or the defense, for your Honor, and for the | 8 A. It's not printed on here, but according to the
9 Jurorsfthat I'd like to hand out at this time. 9 calllog, it's listed as a missed call with the extraction of

10 THE COURT: Well, first show your copies tothe |10 the data.

11 defense and I'll ask if the defense agrees that those are |11 Q. And then what is the very next entry?

12 copies of the Exhibit. 12 A. The next entry is an incoming text message from
13 MS. BROWN: It would be very hard to say without {13 Lana Ramo.

14 a detailed examination, your Honor. It' 14 Q. And what does it state?

15 THE COURT: Frankly, Mr Gregory is an ofﬁcer of 15 A. It says, can you please tell me what's going ‘on

[
o

16 because I'm packing all of my stuff to the car.
17 Q. And then what are the next one, two, three, four

[N
~J

18 : 18 entries?
19 jury can follow along. So if yomnt fime: to Vcompére them, (19 A. They're four incoming calls from Lana, the same
20 I'll grant you that time. If you decline to exercise that |20 individual
21  time, I'll take that as a waiver of any objecnon 21 Q. And were those calls answered?
22 MS. BROWN: Your Honor/I ) |22 A. According to the call log extraction, those were
23 I'll make any corrections as I - TS |23 four missed calls.
24 THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. 24 Q. And then entry number 47, what is that?
25 You may now for demonstrative purposes share that |25 A. It's an outgoing text message to Lana.
Page 154 Page 156
1 with the jury if you'd like. This is not the exhibit. This | 1 Q. What time?
2 is what has been represented by Mr. Gregory to be a copy of | 2 THE COURT: That's 47-1.
3 the exhibit. You won't have this when you go back to 3 THE WITNESS: Correct, 47-1.
4 deliberate this case. However, you will have the original | 4 THE COURT: Thank you.
5 exhibit. 5 Q. (ByMr. Gregory) 47-1 is what?
6 Q. (ByMr. Gregory) Investigator Garren, in looking 6 A. It's an incoming, or it's on outgoing text
7 at that exhibit and reviewing the extraction during the 7 message to Lana.
8 course of your investigation, did you find any text messages | 8 Q. So an outgoing message from Tatiana's phone to
9 that were nearing time to the 911 call in this case? 8 Lana?
10 A. There were some before and there were some 10 A. Correct.
11 activity afterwards. 11 Q. What time did that take place?
12 Q. Okay. Let's go before. 12 A 9:56am. ; 4
13 A. On the day of the 23rd? 13 Q. Now, I see there next to the time it say
14 Q. Yes. When you would get there if you would tell 14 minus eight. What does that mean? =
15 us what page. 15 A&. UIC is coordinated universal time. It's
16 A. Page2l. 16 synonymous with Greenwich me time. And using world time
17 Q. Isthere anything near in time to the time of the 17  server dot com, | entered the date and time to reflect what
18 911 call? 18 the time would be in our time zone, the Pacific time zone,
19 A. That would be on page 22. I was going to start 19 and it comes up during daylight savings time as minus eight
20 at the beginning of the 23rd, but on page 22 about halfivay |20 _houfs) :Sotheres a feature on the device wlfé‘r?"féh""céﬁ set
21 down the page it's an incoming call. 21 allther reports to,mdlcate.UIC time miinus eight hours: wh1ch
22 Q. What entry are you looking at? 22 would ive accurate time.in; our-time zone.
23 A. Entry -- It's signified by 46 and underneath it's 23 Q.GSo that 9:56:27 anfwould be our time?
24 the number 5. ' 24 A. Comreet— Pa01ﬁc ¢ standard time.
25 Q. And that's an incoming call? 25 Q. And what was the content of that text message?

Bin-U-Seript® Capitol Reporters 57 / O (39) Pages 153 - 156
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mminutes later at 9:50, not yet. Harry go crazy. Ineed him
to calm down. I'll contact you little bit later, kiss.
10:16.p-m., Lana text messages to Tatiana. Are
you really ¢ o g
tomorrow? R
At 11:54 p.m., Lana text TRESS 3 ‘;\e\tmna can
you please tell me what's going on. And then 311016 pam,
which was the last text message that evening on Tatiana's

phone, [ start little bit later. I send you message.

Now, there's other information on those
extraction reports which includes web history and searches
that are conducted. You're free to look at those in the

the morning where there!s a Google S€arch conducted on
Tatiana's phone, and the search is for gun stores in Reno,

Nevada. ==
’ @

A ({ﬁ another Goag
e

; hat orning, there's a text message from

"Unfortunately, that text message was deleted 1 would 16ve

/|22 going on until at
Lana 1o, Tatlana Actually, excuse me, JTatiana:to, TLana. ¢ y

1 or those phone calls.
2 The next t thing e, know | that happens is éct @

18 What SPEOIng “on ﬁrst wi A Harry “[ichas plans. Hehasa
19 friend coming over. Se Ond with Tatiana, her daughter, Lana,
20 is absolutely blowm oup her phone every five minutes or so,
21 trying to find out? Afhat's going on, what's going on, what's
:56, you have the uncomfortable situation k
23 text. :
24  Well, as Ifndicated in my opening statement

>
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e
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Page 6

to know what it said. You'll see when you look at the phone
extractions, that deletions on Tatiana's phone are somewhat
of an anomaly. In other words, she doesn't always delete
text messages right away.

Going further into the mommc now at.9: 9:00 is
when things start to get mterestmc Lana wants to know
when her mom is coming, if she's coming at all, and so she
starts mal'dna repeated attempts to contact her mom.

At 9 (aLana tries to call Tat1ana It sa
1mssed “call. Two mmutes 1aterf,,

pac:kmo a ,,‘f
kmmutes later she tries calhncr Tat1ana

missed call’
tries again, mlssed call and 1t's not unt'\ , hat she
finally gets a response from Tatiana, and 1f'S' text message
that I talked about in my opening stateme ,‘ I'm still home.
I have an uncomfortable situation. Illf xplam a little bit
later. /4
Lana then texts her. back at rlO/Jo\\ I need to

know now what 1?g7>.1r7g on. Are you coming of not because I
already told her I'm moving out. I'm here with here, and [
need to know. Tatiana did not respond to those text messages

s the

Page 8

1 what's A '%comfortable is that Harry is dead. What other

)

Toxt message that I'have an uncomifortable situation.
¢ What else is it consistent with, all of the testimony from

10 the first responders. You heard from a battalion chief. You

11 heard from a captain. You heard from a paramedic. You heard

12 from an engineer, and you heard from two sheriff's deputies

13 who responded.

14  What did they see when they responded shortly

15 after the 911 call? They find Harry on the floor. The blood

16 looks to be drying and coagulating. They do not smell

17 gunpowder. Dr. Omalu testified, well, it's kind of like when

18 you wear cologne, you get so used to it, you don't smell it.

19 Okay, but it's doubtful to me that the battalion chief was

20 wearing a cologne that smelled like gunpowder when he went

21 into that residence.

22  He is a bomb tech with years of experience. He

23 did not smell gunpowder. Nobody else smelled gunpowder. One

24 of the guys testified he smelled a slight odor of gunpowder.
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. Page 189 Page 19‘*..‘_'

1 THE.COURT: It's not admitted for evidence as to 1 correct? j

2 whether Mr. Leibel committed suicide. It is admittedasto | 2 A. That's correct.

3 whether Mrs. Leibel was cons1stent 3 Q. And she signed the written consent for you to

4 MS. BROWN: Thank 5 you. 4 search-h “:hoﬁé f1s that correct?

5 THE COURT: And it's for that reason only that 5 A7 That's correct.

6 the jury may consider that evidence. 6 Q. And that phone ig1

7 Q. (By Ms. Brown) And towards the end of this 7 A. No, it's not.

8 interview, it was clear - ou made it clearto Ms. Leibel | 8 Q. And at that pom‘ d1fferent clothm , ,

9 0 9 to her and the clothes she had been wea wearing durmg the day
10 10 were taken?

11 11 A. That's correct.
12 a iy 12 Q. She was told to £ome.back the next 1 )
13 MR GREGORY our Honor I obJect to the 13 A. Iasked herif she & would come back and' she o
14 hearsay. 14 agreeds
15 THE COURT: The question is whether he accused {15 Q. And she did show up the next morning?
16 her. That's not hearsay. Overruled. 16 A. Yes, she did.
17 THE WITNESS: Yes, Idid. 17 Q. And again she was -- talked to you,about what had
18 Q. (By Ms. Brown) And at -- you told her everything |18 hagp_ened? e TR
19 jin the investigation pomted to her bemg th 'su ect 1s 19 A% Correct.
20 that CORLECE? ™~ = |20 Q. Andsatthe.end of that mtemew sh _M
21 A That's,correct. 21 allowed toleave? " o
22 MR GREGORY: Objection, your Honor. Hearsay. |22
23 THE COURT: The question is whether this witness
24 accused her; is that correct? Is that the question?
25 MS. BROWN: Yes.
Page 190 Page 192

1 THE COURT: It's overruled. 1 A. Later that night, yes.

2 MS. BROWN::And she.told d you repeatedly that you 2 Q. And that was done during the day following

3 needed to dfmoreinvestigationyy 3 Mr. Leibel's death?

4 MR, GREGORY: Your Honor, objection. Hearsay. | 4 A. I'm sorry What was that?

5 She's asking for content of the interview, statements by her | 5 250 day after Mr. Leibel's death?

6 ownclient. It's hearsay. 6

7 THE COURT: I think that you're getting beyond 7 g process of -- or do you prepare

8 simply was she consistent. Now you're getting to the content 8 L of getting an arrest warrant?

9 of what she had to say and I think that that does become | 9- wivas prepared and issued by the
10 hearsay. 10, judse.and 1t‘s hlS detenmnanon whether he believes there! s
11 MS. BROWN: Your Honor, I think her response is Tf'ble,gap_sle_for the arre The e
12 not for the truth of the matter asserted, again, but for the |12 = NISTBROWN: I'fiesd Numiber 74.

13 fact that she, I ecteda these ées onses towards Investigator |13 MR. GREGORY: Your Honor, I would request a
14 Hubkey. D 14 hearing outside the presence of the jury, please?

15 THE COURT: You're offering it for that reason? 15 THE COURT: Okay. At this time I'm going to

16 I'll admit it for that reason. 16 excuse the jury for a few minutes. I'll ask you to go in fo

N B R R
O v

Q. (By Ms. Brown) Yes. And at the conclusion --
She had earlier, allo;ned Investigator Chrzanowski to go

ey

the jury room. We're going to hear some arguments of
counsel. So while you are out of our presence during this

recess, you are not to talk or converse among yourselves or
with anyone else in any subject connected with this trial or
read, watch or listen to any report of or conumentary on the
trial or any person connected with this trial by any medium
of information, including without limitation, newspapers,

television, radio or internet. You're not to form or express

25 any opinion on any subjéct corinected with the trial until the

Pages 189 - 192 (48)
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1 MS. BROWN: Tubes. 1 is that correct?
2 THE COURT: Tubes? 2 A. Correct.
3 MS. BROWN: The ventilator tube things. 3 Q. And there's a time.clock on the video =< Th}'e s
4 THE WITNESS: From that angle, yeah, it appears 4 ong that keeps Ara _,_9,11 of just the lengthi o, of t1m tA]
5 that's where the end of'the aquarium is. 5 alsoda glgglg in the Jlé'ftvhandv_corner of the v1deo?
6 Q. (ByMs. Brown) And in that corner, well, next to 6 ATThe: Scréen, 1 believé the fime clock is on the
7 the couch on the right-hand side is also a coffee table; is | 7 right-hand side and the length of the video is on the bottom.
8 that correct? 8 The window -- When I watch it, the window is to the left and
9 A. That's correct. 9 all the information and time is on the right of the screen.
10 Q. And it's a match for the one on the left-hand 10 Q. It maybe a computer?
11 side; is that correct? 11 A. Yeah
12 A. Idon't recall if it's a match or not. It 12 Q. Inany event, did you notice the time ;_:lock
13 appears to be -- It's a glass top one similar to theone |13 st_art .over.al - 1900-a:coup eofs t1mes‘ 5715 that correct?
|14 that's on the left-hand side. 14 A.7T'm not aware of that.
15 Q. Sothe one that we saw here was the one on the 15 Q. And it was Investigator Chrzanowski that first
16 left-hand side? 16 started the interview with Ms. Leibel; is that correct?
17 A. Facing the front of the couch, yes, that would be 17 A. That's correct.
18 the one on the left-hand side. ' 18 Q. And that was about 1:35 in the afternoon?
19 Q. And then showing you Exhibit 123, and again, this |19 A. Yes.
20 is an accurate representation of the scene? 20 Q. And so this interview continued throughout the
21 A. Yes. 21 day? —
22 Q. And this residence not only were these two rooms 22 A. Correct.
23 open to each other but they had a very, a high cathedral like {23 Q. For about eightshours?-
24 ceiling; is that correct? : 24 A. Correct. &
25 A. That's correct. 25 Q. And Ms. Leibel throughout this interview

Page 186

Page 188

maintained that Mr. Leibel had -

1 Q. And then there was it looks like here venting 1
2 along the beam in the top? 2 MR. GREGORY:: Objection, your Honor. Hearsay.
3 A. Some type of ventilation. 3 THE COURT: I haveti't even heard the question
4 Q. And then after you entered and saw these items, 4 yet. Let me hear the question.
5 you left the scene about 17107 5 MS. BROWN: Ms. Leibel maintained throughout this
6 A. Correct. 6 interview that Mr. Leibel had killed himself?
7 Q. So that would be about 5:10? 7 MR. GREGORY: Objection. Hearsay. The statement
8 A Yes, 5:10 p.m. 8 bythe-
9 Q. And you left there to go participate in the | @  THE COURT: I understand what hearsay is. Thank
10 interview of Mrs. Leibel? 10 you.
11 A. That's correct. 11 Response.

(12 Q. And you entered that interview about 5: 35 is 12 MS. BROWN: Your Honor, I'm just offering it not
13 that correct, 17357 13 for the truth of the matter asserted but to show her story
14 A. Iwould have to review the interview. If that's 14 remained consistent throughout the time frame.

15 the time, it's probably around that time. It was -- I drove |15 THE COURT: It's admitted for that purpose.

16 down to the station and got briefed and went in and joinedin |16 THE WITNESS: Can you ask the question again,

17 the interview. 17 please?

18 Q. And who was present? Was any other officer 18 MS. BROWN: That throughout this eight=hour,

19 present when you began -- when you joined in the interview? |19  was;questioned-she:maintaines du?mg fhat
20 A. Investigator Hubkey was. 20 i ‘T\/Ir Leibelhad comrmtted suicide:
21 Q. And from the time you began questioning 21 T ‘ FRALS COrTect,
22 Ms. Leibel to the time it was completed was about four hours; |22 MR. GREGORY: Your Honor, I object if the

23 is that correct? 23 question is to consistency. That would be what she said she
24 A. That sounds about nght, yeah, that's correct.. 24 was offering it for. The way she's phrasing the question it

.[25 Q. And there's -- thisdIErVIEW. W &*’i\ 25 goes to the truth of the matter. So I object: Hearsay.
Min-LSeript® Capitol Reporters 57 [ 3 (47) Pages-185 - 188
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171.1231. Arrest if probable cause appears.

At any time after the onset of the detention pursuant to NRS 171.123, the person so detained
shall be arrested if probable cause for an arrest appears. If, after inquiry into the circumstances
which prompted the detention, no probable cause for arrest appears, such person shall be

released.

HISTORY:
1969, p. 535
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1 moment to look at those. Have you reviewed those 1tems‘7

Page 127

25 A. Yes, it does.

1 MR. GREGORY: Move for admission of Exhibit 4.
2 KX Yes 1 have 2 MS. BROWN: Your Honor, if all of these
3 Q. Looking at items 3 throuth 4, were.those 3 photographs are referred to 4:00 o'clock in the afternoon, I
C‘photogran S of ’the‘r: -scenefl 4 have no objection.
5 2\7 ~Yes-Ones: 7che Outst e orth & Tesidence. 5 THE COURT: So any of them through 20? He's
6 Q. “Boat tell te what they are right now. I'm just 6 going to go -- He gave him 3 through 20, I believe. So do
7  asking if those are photographers of the crime scene. 7 you stipulate to the admission of 3 through 207?
8 A. Yes, they are. 8 MS. BROWN: Well, some of them aren't of the
9 Q. Okay. And do those photographs accurately depict | 9 scene.
10 -what you observed at the crime scene on February 23rd? |10 MR. GREGORY: To clarify, your Honor, 3 through
11 A Yes. 11 14 he's testified are at the scene. .
12 MS. BROWN: I'd object, your Honor, as to a time |12 THE COURT: Okay. So 3 through 147
13 frame on those. 13 MS. BROWN: With the caveat that they wete taken
14 THE COURT: When -- You indicate that they 14 at 4:00 o'clock in the afternoon, I have no objection.
15 accurately depict what you observed. Give us a time frame. |15 THE COURT: Within that time frame. It's not
16 THE WITNESS: Around 4:00 o'clock in the 16 exactly at four.
17 afternoon. 17 MS. BROWN: Correct.
18 THE COURT: On the first day of your visit tothe |18 THE COURT: Okay. Then 3 through 14 -- 3 has
19 scene? 19 already been admitted. But 4 through 14 are admitted if you
20 THE WITNESS: Yes. On February 23rd 2014. 20 intend to offer them, sir.
21 THE COURT: And are all of them within that time |21 MR. GREGORY: I do, your Honor.
22 frame? 22 THE COURT: Then they're admitted.
23 THE WITNESS: Give or take several minutes on 23 Q. (ByMr. Gregory) Investigator Garren, you didn't
24 either side, but roughly 4:00 o'clock, sir. 24 take the photos; correct?
25 THE COURT: Okay. Objection is overruled. 25 A. No, Idid not.
Page 126 Page 128
1 Q. (By Mr. Gregory) So first, Investigator Garren, 1 Q. And what I'm asking if those photos accurately
2 canyou describe the outside of the home? 2 ‘show what you observed when you were on scene?
3 A. It's a two story single family residence, a brown 3 A. Yes.
4 wood covering on the house. 4 Q. Okay. Thank you. Let's look at Exhibit Number
5 Q. And looking at Exhibit Number 3, does that 5 4. That's the hallway that you just described?
6 photograph accurately depict the way that the residence | 6 A. Correct.
7 looked that day from the outside? 7 Q. So what is the vantage point of this photograph?
8 A. Yes, it does. 8 A. At the top of the stairway to the second floor
9 MR. GREGORY: I'd move for admission of Exhibit | 9 landing the kitchen is immediately to your left. On the
10 3. 10 other side of that wall you have the living room to your
111 THE COURT: Any objection? 11 right and the dining room to your left and then the small
12 MS. BROWN: No, your Honor. 12 hallway and master bedroom to the right there through that
13 THE COURT: 3 is admitted. 13 door.
14 Q. (By Mr. Gregory) While that's coming up, 14 Q. And so the room that we're looking in to with the
15 Investigator Garren, if you can look at Exhibit Number 4. |15 guns is the living room?
16 A. Yes, sir. 16 A. That's correct.
17 Q. What does Exhibit 4 depict? 17 Q. Looking at Exhibit Number 5, what does that
18 A. The second floor or the top of the stairway, the 18 photograph depict?
19 wall to the left is a wall between the living room and the |19 A. Looking in to the living room just a little bit
20 dining room area of the house. And the living room was off |20  further down to the right.
21 totheright. There's a small hallway and a master bedroom (21 Q. The photograph is a little bit dark. Can you
22 off to the right as well. 22 indicate where the television set is in the room?
23 Q. Does that photograph accurately depict the way 23 A. The television is directly straight across the
24 that the living room and that hallway looked that day? |24 room above the fireplace. There's a reclining chair to the
25 right.

Pages 125 - 128 (32)
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Page 193 Page 195.
1 case is finally submitted to you. I'll have the bailiff THE COURT: Okay. Proceed, please.
2 escort you to the jury room. (By Ms. Brown) And on February 24th, the day-
3 We're now outside the presence of the jury. Mr. k« fter Mr. Leibel's death, you obfified an arrest warrant for
4 Gregory. 4 Mrs. Leibel; is that correct?
5 MR. GREGORY: Thank you, your Honor. I 5 A, That's correct.
6 appreciate the. opportumty I realize that the next exhibit a 1) And as part of that, getting that arrest warrant,
7 Ms. Brown was going for is an exhibit that contains the | 7%=ou prepared an affidavit that contains facts as you know
g portion of the interview that was conducted by the sheriff's | 8 themto be?
| 8 department with Ms. Leibel. My concern is, your Honor, that 9 A, Correct. =1
10 theyare eliciting hearsay. There is a way for Ms. Leibel to (10 Q. And this affidavit-contained afacts joncerning the
11  get her statements in front of the jury and it's to take the |11 mvest1gat10n up to this. omt? T
12 stand if she chooses to do that. I object to the defense |12 -
13 continually asking this witness for information regarding the 13
14 content of that interview. And I asked for this hearing |14
15 outside the presence because of the next exhibit that was |15
16 - being reached for. So I would ask that your Honor address |16
17 that issue and direct the defense to quit asking questions |17
18 that elicit hearsay. 18
19 THE COURT: Well, I haven't -- I haven't reviewed |19 . &
20 the exhibit itself. Ms. Brown, if they're within that 20 Q And there had been no-b; 10 ballistics testmg_done:‘7
21 affidavit if there's information about what Ms. Leibel said [21 A. No. T e n T
22 happened, it seems to me that it's either hearsay or you're |22 Q. "'And there had been no fmoerprmt evidence,
23  simplytrying to do what I've told you already that you could |23  analyzed at this point? —
24 do, which is to provide proof that she was consistent. And |24 A. No.
25 it's not going to be allowed for evidence as to proof of her |25 Q. And there had been no DNA Jprocessin, done at this: ,\
Page 194 Page 196
1 defense that this was in fact a suicide. Sotheremaybe-- | 1 point?
2 ‘you may have some other reason for offering it. I don't know 2 A. No.
3 what's init. But I'll tell you that if it is simply -- if 3 Q. And as I said, there had been even though the
4 you're going to tell me it's simply to demonstrate that she | 4  crime lab had been at the scene, had done some measurements,
5 was consistent, I think that there are other ways to do that, | 5 _ i
6 other than the admission of this affidavit. (A
7 MS. BROWN: Actually I wasn't going to offer it. 7
8 Ijust wanted it available if in questioning Investigator 8 1 4 =
9 Garren that I was going to ask about things that are not | 9 A We had spoken to a friend with her and arranged
10 included in it and if he needed to refresh his memory we |10 for her to be at the house in the morning. And when she
11 would have the document available. ' 11 arived on scene, she stepped out of the car, I asked her to
12 THE COURT: Then it may be subject to redaction |12 walk over to my car because her daughter was in the car with
13 ifin fact it is admitted. So your objection seems tobea |13 her. AndIwalked her over to my car between the house and
14 little premature but I think it was wise to bring it up 14 the car as out of view as [ could, I informed her we had a
15 outside the presence of the jury. The jury will be returned. |15 warrant for her arrest, I placed her in handcuffs and sat her
16 MR. GREGORY: Thank you. 16 inmycar. 1
17 THE COURT: Bring them back in. Both part1es 17 Q. ‘So again, s she had’ been free in, her- movements up
18 know where I am on this issue. 18 : : T
19 Folks, you barely had time to cut a little corner 19 ' :
20 off one of those doughnuts. Thank you, folks. Have a seat. |20 MS BROWN: Can we get all the lights on up here?
21 Stipulate to the presence of the jury, 21 THE CQURT: Yeah, we'll get them on.
22 Mr. Gregory? 22 MS. BROWN: I believe I was going blind.
23 MR. GREGORY: Yes, your Honor. 23 Q. (By Ms. Brown) Then you did the forensic
24 THE COURT: Ms. Brown? 24 examination on Tatiana's phone that you spoke about earlier;
25 MS. BROWN: Yes, your Honor. 25 is that correct? '
Min-U-Seript® Capitol Reporters 37 / é (49) Pages 193 - 196
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1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, error may not be predicated upon a ruling
which admits or excludes evidence unless a substantial right of the party is affected, and:

(a) In case the ruling is one admitting evidence, a timely objection or motion to strike
appears of record, stating the specific ground of objection.

(b) In case the ruling is one excluding evidence, the substance of the evidence was made
known to the judge by offer or was apparent from the context within which questions were asked.

2. This section does not preclude taking notice of plain errors affecting substantial rights
although they were not brought to the attention of the judge.

HISTORY:
1971, p. 775.

NOTES TO DECISIONS -

Specific grounds for objection must be stated at the time an objection is made and the
Supreme Court will not reverse a ruling admitting evidence on grounds raised for the first time on appeal.
State v. Kallio, 92 Nev. 665, 557 P.2d 705, 1976 Nev. LEXIS 716 (Nev. 1976).

If a defendant seeks to raise and preserve a claim that admitting a prior felony conviction for
impeachment purposes would be outweighed by other considerations, he should bring such
considerations to the trial court's attention, stating specific grounds of objection as this section requires.
Edwards v. State, 90 Nev. 255, 524 P.2d 328, 1974 Nev. LEXIS 374 (Nev. 1974).

Failure to offer substance of excluded evidence.

Where on cross-examination of a prosecution witness the trial court refused to allow the defendant's
inquiry into whether the witness had ever been prosecuted for a drug-related offense, but defense counsel
made no offer of proof, even assuming the inquiry should have been allowed, the trial court's alleged error
was not reviewable since the Supreme Court had no way of determining whether the defendant's
substantial rights were prejudiced by the trial court's refusal to allow the witness to respond. Van
Valkenberg v. State, 95 Nev. 317, 594 P.2d 707, 1979 Nev. LEXIS 611 (Nev. 1979).

Harmless error where proof of guilt overwhelming.

In a prosecution for murder the evidence was so overwhelming that the failure to exclude prejddicial,
irrelevant, and hearsay statements by detectives and others was harmless beyond a reasonable doubt.
Abram v. State, 95 Nev. 352, 594 P.2d 1143, 1979 Nev. LEXIS 620 (Nev. 1979).

Failure to admit evidence affected substantial right warranting new trial.

NVCODE 1
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Tatiana Leibel, aka Tatiana Kosyrkina - 14-CR-0062 Rough Draft meiii;;;'r ;lg,r;gg
) - Page 153 Page 155
Z Q “Were you aware he had any hlstory of cander . 1 hows partial measurements of
S T = 2 arm. Right arm. Sorry.
3 A. &_I:IQ& 3 ) r 55)is a continuation of
4 Q. You also indicated that the lumen contained 4 that photograph? ~—
5 50 milligrams of like tan, thick, chunky fluid? 5 A. Yes. This shows the up-close photograph of
6 A. How much? 6 right decedent's right hand and the scale and the
7 Q. I'msorry. 500. 7 measurement tape.
8 A. Yes, 500. 8 Q. And in that photograph, it shows his middle
9 Q. And what is the lumen? o finger extending to 24 inches?
10 A. Lumen refers basically to inside of the 10 A. Yes, it was 24 inches.
11 stomach. 11 Q. And this was taken, the photographs were
12 Q. In examining the liver, did you see any signs 12 taken when Mr. Leibel was in full rigor mortis?
13 of liver disease? 13 A. Yes.
14 A. Well, he had status post cholecystec A 14 Q. And one of the symptoms of full rigor mortis
15, His ag:_}_l’p_lﬁdder was removed: (S o one of the scars pres‘ Shts |15 is the muscles contracting; is that correct?
16 on his abdomen corresponds to surgery involving Temoval |16 A. Yes, he had the rigor mortis before measuring
17 of gallbladder. 17 hand or arm. '
‘|18 Q Did.you see any signs of liver disease? i18 Q. And does that photograph -- Let me take this
19 A: (Not1eallv) SR 19 up.
20 Q. Were there any microscopic slides taken of 20 THE COURT: For the record, you're displaying
21 any of the t1ssues or organs” 21 exhibit -- o
22 ‘ 22 MS. BROWN:,Number 54)
23 Q. And there weref 'dn _y stone presef_ g 23 THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am.
24 A. ._XES, there were kidney stones inthe right 24 Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) And we had discussed
Page 154 x Page 156
1 kidney. Pa prewously we met back in December, that is distinct arch
2 Q. And was Mr. Lejbel's blood submitted for 2 in the wrist here, and then you go fron m to .
3 toxicology? 3 ibit 55) you can also see the curving of the ﬁngers.
"4 A, Yes. 4 And you couldn't say how much that would affect his
5 Q. And did you get a report back on that? 5° reach; is that correct?
6 A. Yes. 6 A. Yes. It's why I give between 24, 25 inches.
7 Q. And what were the results? 7 It's approximation in length.
g A. DPeripheral blood showed presence of. mari'uana & Q. An approximation?
9 metabolites. S 9 A. Yes.
10 JUROR NO. 14: Your Honor, I got a problem. 10 Q. Just so we can try this, if this is my arm
11 His last answer to the question, what was in the blood. |11 flat against there, what would the reach, or can you
12 Ididn't hear that real good. 12 position it here? Oops. Ilost that again?
13 THE COURT: Would you repeat your answer 13 THE COURT: It's quite all right.
14 please, sir. 14 THE WITNESS: Measure going to armpit, and
15  THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor. Peripheral 15 ftried to measure distance between the armpit and tip of
16 blood that was tested showed presence of marijuana 16 the third right finger in this case, so it would be 25
17 metabolites. 17 and a quarter of an inch in length.
18 THE COURT: Did you get that, sir? 18 THE COURT: The record will reflect that the
19 JUROR NO. 14: Yes, sir. Sorry. 19 doctor is measuring Ms. Brown's arm length from
20 THE COURT: No apology is necessary. I 20 apparently -- I can't see where he started. Apparently,
21 encourage all of you if you cannot hear, you let me know. {21 her armpit to the tip of one of her fingers.
22 We'll make certain that you do. ' 22 MS. BROWN: Middle finger.
23 Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) And showing you again 23 THE COURT: Middle finger. Thank you.
24 Exhibit 54, what's shown in that photograph?- 24 Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) And if my hand is arched and

Capitol Reporters
775-882-5322

3719

. (39) Pages 153 - 156
iUl



Perjury and Subornation of Perjury

199.120. Definition; penalties.

199.125. “Oath” and “swear” defined.

199.130. False affidavit or complaint to effect arrest or search.

199.140. Use of fictitious name on affidavit or complaint to effect arrest or search.
199.145. Statement made in declaration under penalty of perjury.

199.150. Attempt to suborn perjury.

199.160. Procuring execution of innocent person by perjury or subornation of perjury.
199.170. Transferred.

199.180. Irregularity in administering oath or incompetency of witness no defense.
199.190. Deposition: When deemed to be complete.

199.200. Statement of what one does not know to be true.

199.120. Definition; penalties.

A person, having taken a lawful oath or made affirmation in a judicial proceeding or in any
other matter where, by law, an oath or affirmation is required and no other penalty is prescribed,
who:

1. Willfully makes an unqualified statement of that which the person does not know to be
true,

2. Swears or affirms willfully and falsely in a matter material to the issue or point in
question;

3. Suborns any other person to make such an unqualified statement or to swear or affirm
in such a manner;

4. Executes an affidavit pursuant to NRS 15.010 which contains a false statement, or
suborns any other person to do so; or

5. Executes an affidavit or other instrument which contains a false statement before a
_person authorized to administer oaths or suborns any other person to do so,

is guilty of perjury or subornation of perjury, as the case may be, which is a category D felony
and shall be punished as provided in NRS 193.130.

HISTORY:
C&P 1911, § 85; 1949, p. 111; CL 1929 (1949 Supp.), § 10034; 1967, p. 464; 1977, p. 640;

NVCODE 1
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1979, p. 1420; 1985, pp. 129, 788; 1987, ch. 304, § 1, p. 654; 1995, ch. 443, § 21, p. 1174.

NOTES TO DECISIONS
Discrediting witness whose testimony is material.

The willful and corrupt assertion of a falsehood under oath in a matter important enough to shake the
credit of a witness whose testimony is material will constitute perjury. Ex parte Sheidon, 44 Nev. 268, 193
P. 967, 1920 Nev. LEXIS 32 (Nev. 1920) (decision prior to 1985 amendment deleting the requirement of
corruption).

False statement must be made under oath or affirmation.

A perjury charge may be sustained only where the false statement was made in a judicial-or other

_setting where. an oath or affirmation is legally required; a voluntary statement taken in an insurance

company lawyer's office does not fall within the purview of this section. Licata v. State, 99 Nev. 331, 661
P.2d 1306, 1983 Nev. LEXIS 444 (Nev. 1983).

Sufficiency of the allegations.

Allegations of perjury which are set forth in the conclusory language of the relevant statute, without
specifying the subject of the testimony or the manner in which it is alleged to be false, are insufficient to
state a public offense. Lemberes v. State, 97 Nev. 492, 634 P.2d 1219, 1981 Nev. LEXIS 574 (Nev.
1981), overruled, Funches v. State, 113 Nev. 916, 944 P.2d 775, 113 Nev. Adv. Rep. 101, 1997 Nev.
LEXIS 117 (Nev. 1997).

There is no requirement that an information charging perjury must set forth the particular words
alleged to have been falsely stated. Lemberes v. State, 97 Nev. 492, 634 P.2d 1219, 1981 Nev. LEXIS
574 (Nev. 1981), overruled, Funches v. State, 113 Nev. 916, 944 P.2d 775, 113 Nev. Adv. Rep. 101,
1997 Nev. LEXIS 117 (Nev. 1997).

Evidence of willfulness is admissible.

Since willfulness and a corrupt intént are essential elements of the crime of perjury, evidence to prove
such issues goes to the very substance of the offense and is admissible. State v. Cerfoglio, 46 Nev. 332,
205 P. 791, 213 P. 102, 1923 Nev. LEXIS 13 (Nev.), different results reached on reh'g, 46 Nev. 332, 213
P. 102 (Nev. 1923) (decision prior to 1985 amendment deleting the requirement of corruption).

Evidence sufficient to support a conviction.

Circumstantial evidence is sufficient to support a conviction for perjury in this state. Prior statements
with corroboration are also sufficient to support a conviction for perjury. Taylor v. Sheriff of Clark County,
85 Nev. 505, 457 P.2d 961, 1969 Nev. LEXIS 408 (Nev. 1969).

No prima facie presumption arises that an affiant actually made an oath or performed any act
that could be deemed the equivalent of an oath. White v. State, 102 Nev. 153, 717 P.2d 45, 1986 Nev.
LEXIS 1123 (Nev. 1986).

The mere signing of an affidavit before an officer does not constitute the act necessary to constitute
an oath for purposes of this perjury statute. White v. State, 102 Nev. 153, 717 P.2d 45, 1986 Nev. LEXIS

NVCODE 2
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1123 (Nev. 1986).
Valid oath as essential element.

NRS 199.180 was not intended to excuse the necessity of a valid oath as an essential element of
perjury under this section. White v. State, 102 Nev. 153, 717 P.2d 45, 1986 Nev. LEXIS 1123 (Nev. 1986).

Oath must be required by law.

A perjury conviction is proper only where an oath is not only authorized or permitted but actuatlly
required by law — occasions of such solemnity and gravity that the law demands the administration of an
oath as the price of legal recognition of the act; where the statement is accorded the same legal
recognition whether it is affirmed or not, it is not required by law and will not serve as a basis for invoking
the perjury statute. White v. State, 102 Nev. 153, 717 P.2d 45, 1986 Nev. LEXIS 1123 (Nev. 1986).

Because nothing in the statutory scheme governing civil commitment of alcoholics convicted of crime
(NRS 458.290 to 458.350) mandates giving a statement under oath as a prerequisite for electing to
participate in rehabilitative treatment, the defendant's affidavit, even when attached to the notice of
election for treatment and filed in the criminal action against him, was not made in a proceeding where an
oath or affirmation is required by law, an essential predicate to a conviction for perjury; therefore, his
conviction for perjury was reversed. White v. State, 102 Nev. 153, 717 P.2d 45, 1986 Nev. LEXIS 1123
(Nev. 1986).

In determining the materiality of the testimony of a person charged with perjury, the strength
or weakness of the evidence available to disprove the accused's false testimony must not be considered;
a false statement made under oath is material and perjurious if it concerns an issue essential to the
decision of the case and could influence the court if believed. This is true even if the statement may easily
be proved false beyond any doubt, and thus, in a practical sense, could not influence the court. Sheriff,
Clark County v. Hecht, 101 Nev. 779, 710 P.2d 728, 1985 Nev. LEXIS 510 (Nev. 1985).

Testimony at a trial is material if the testimony could have influenced the court on an issue before the
court had its falsity been made known to the court during the trial of the case. Sheriff, Clark County v.
Hecht, 101 Nev. 779, 710 P.2d 728, 1985 Nev. LEXIS 510 (Nev. 1985).

Advice of counsel may be relevant to show defendant's intent.

While reliance on the advice of counse! does not constitute a separate defense, under certain
circumstances it may be relevant to show a defendant's intent. Cosio v. State, 106 Nev. 327, 793 P.2d
836, 106 Nev. Adv. Rep. 55, 1990 Nev. LEXIS 58 (Nev. 1990).

Proper evidence that defendant's divorce counsel advised other clients that it was not necessary to
be a Nevada resident in order to obtain a divorce in this state would have been relevant to show lack of
intent with regard to defendant's testimony during divorce proceeding. Cosio v. State, 106 Nev. 327, 793
P.2d 836, 106 Nev. Adv. Rep. 55, 1990 Nev. LEXIS 58 (Nev. 1990).

Cited in:

State v. Busscher, 81 Nev. 587, 407 P.2d 715, 1965 Nev. LEXIS 271 (1965); Colle v. State, 85 Nev.
404, 455 P.2d 917, 1969 Nev. LEXIS 385 (1969); Dunphy v. Sheehan, 92 Nev. 259, 549 P.2d 332, 1976
Nev. LEXIS 583 (1976); Gardner v. Sheriff, Clark County, 93 Nev. 556, 571 P.2d 108, 1977 Nev. LEXIS

NVCODE 3
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199.125. “Qath” and “swear” defined.

1. The term “oath” shall include an affirmation and every other mode authorized by law of
attesting the truth of that which is stated.

2. A person who shall state any matter under oath shall be deemed to “swear” thereto.
HISTORY:

C&P 1911, § 88; RL 1912, § 6353; CL 1929, § 10037.
Editor's note.
This section was formérly compiled as NRS 199.170.
Research References and Practice Aids

Review of Selected Nevada Legislation, Crimes, 1987 Pac. L.J. Rev. Nev. Legis. 59.

1. A person who makes, executes or signs or causes to be made, executed or signed, any false
or fictitious affidavit, complaint, deposition, or other instrument in writing before any officer or
person authorized to administer oaths, for the purpose or with the intent of securing a warrant for
the arrest of any other person, or for the purpose of securing a warrant for the searching of the
premises, goods, chattels or effects, or of seizing the goods, chattels or effects, or of seizing
anything in the possession of any other person, is guilty of perjury which is a category D felony.

2. A person who commits any of the acts or offenses defined or set out in subsection 1 shall
be punished as provided in NRS 193.130.

HISTORY: A
1925, p. 16; CL 1929, §§ 10526, 10528; 1967, p. 464; 1979, p. 1420; 1995, ch. 443, § 22, o}
1174.
Research References and Practice Aids
Cross References
As to affidavits generally, see NRS 53.010 to 53.040.

As to search warrants generally, see NRS 179.015 et seq.

NVCODE 1

© 2020 Matthew Bender & Company, Inc., a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. Use of this product is subject to the
restrictions and terms and conditions of the Matthew Bender Master Agreement.
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199.140. Use of fictitious name on affidavit or complaint to effect arrest or search.

1. A person who makes, executes or signs, or causes to be made, executed or signed, any
affidavit, complaint or other instrument, in writing, before any United States officer or person, or
before any state officer or person, authorized to administer oaths, for the purpose or with the
intent of securing a warrant for the arrest of any other person, or for the purpose of securing a
warrant for the searching of the premises, goods, chattels or effects, or of seizing the goods,
chattels or effects, or of seizing anything in the possession of any other person, and signs the
same by any other name than his or her true name, is guilty of perjury which is a category D
felony.

2. A person who commits any of the acts or offenses defined or set out in subsection 1 shall
be punished as provided in NRS 193.130.

HISTORY:
1925, p. 16; CL 1929, §§ 10527, 10528; 1967, p. 465; 1979, p. 1420; 1995, ch. 443, § 23, p.

1175.

Research References and Practice Aids
Cross References

As to affidavits generally, see NRS 53.010 to 53.040.

199.145. Statement made in declaration under penalty of perjury.

A person who, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury:

1. Makes a willful and false statement in a matter material to the issue or point in
question; or

2. Willfully makes an unqualified statement of that which the person does not know to be
true,

or who suborns another to make in such a declaration a statement of the kind described in
subsection 1 or 2, is guilty of perjury or subornation of perjury, as the case may be, which is a
category D felony and shall be punished as provided in NRS 193.130.

NVCODE 2

© 2020 Matthew Bender & Company, Inc., a member of the LexisNexis Group. All rights reserved. Use of this product is subject to the
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HISTORY:
1993, ch. 641, § 2, p. 2742; 1995, ch. 443, § 24, p. 1175.

199.150. Attempt to suborn perjury.

Every person who, without giving, offering or promising a bribe, shall incite or attempt to
procure another to commit perjury, or to offer any false evidence, or to withhold true testimony,
though no perjury be committed or false evidence offered or true testimony withheld, shall be
guilty of a gross misdemeanor.

HISTORY:
C&P 1911, § 86; RL 1912, § 6351; CL 1929, § 10035.

199.160. Procuring execution of innocent person by perjury or subornation of perjury.

A person who, by willful and corrupt perjury or subornation of perjury, procures the
conviction and execution of any innocent person is guilty of murder which is a category A felony
and, upon conviction thereof, shall be punished by imprisonment in the state prison:

1. For life without the possibility of parole;

2. For life with the possibility of parole, with eligibility for parole beginning when a
minimum of 20 years has been served; or

3. For a definite term of 50 years, with eligibility for parole beginning when a minimum
of 20 years has been served.

HISTORY:
C&P 1911, § 87; RL 1912, § 6352; CL 1929, § 10036; 1961, p. 66; 1973, p. 1803; 1995, ch. 443,
§ 25, p. 1175.

199.170. Transferred.

Editor's note.

This section is now compiled as NRS 199.125.

NVCODE 3
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199.180. Irregularity in administering oath or incompetency of witness no defense.

It shall be no defense to a prosecution for perjury that an oath was administered or taken in an
irregular manner or that the defendant was not competent to give the testimony, deposition,
certificate or affidavit of which falsehood is alleged. It shall be sufficient that the defendant
actually gave such testimony or made such deposition, certificate or affidavit.

HISTORY:
C&P 1911, § 89; RL 1912, § 6354; CL 1929, § 10038.
NOTES TO DECISIONS
Valid oath as essential element of perjury.

This section was not intended to excuse the necessity of a valid oath as an essential element of
perjury under NRS 199.120. White v. State, 102 Nev. 153, 717 P.2d 45, 1986 Nev. LEXIS 1123 (Nev.
1986).

199.190. Deposition: When deemed to be complete.

The making of a deposition, certificate or affidavit shall be deemed to be complete when it is
subscribed and sworn to or affirmed by the defendant with intent that it be uttered or published as
true.

HISTORY:
C&P 1911, § 90; RL 1912, § 6355; CL 1929, § 10039.

199.200. Statement of what one does not know to be true.

Every unqualified statement of that which one does not know to be true is equivalent to a
statement of that which the person knows to be false.

HISTORY:
C&P 1911, § 91; RL 1912, § 6356; CL 1929, § 10040.

NOTES TO DECISIONS

NVCODE 4
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the left upper arm. These injuries caused extensive internal bleeding, but death
would not have been immediate. Trial Transcript p. 38. Dr. Kubiczk stated that
based on the trajectory of the fragments, he believed Harry's left arm was elevated
at the time the shot was fired. Hé did concede the possibility that the arm could
have been down. The other injuries were caused by the second shot, a shotgun
round, but would not have been life threatening. The second shot entered on the
back of the left hand and exited on the inner part of the wrist. Wadding from the
shell was present in the wound. The pellets then grazed the left shoulder. (The rifle
found at the scene is capable of firing both .45 rounds and .410 shotgun shells.) No
tissue samples were preserved during the autopsy; however, a blood sample taken
from Harry showed 20 nanograms per milliliter of active THC in his blood —
effectively ten times the legal minimum marijuana metabolite allowed in DUI
cases prior to his death. 44 Vol. 6 p. 1047

On the day of Harry's death, three forensic investigators from the Washoe
County Crime Lab were called to the residence. When they arrived at the house,
multiple Douglas County investigators and the evidence technician were already
inside the house. Crime Lab Investigator Joey Lear took measurements in the room
where Harry's body was found so as to later diagram the scene. Lear photographed

the location of the furniture in the living room when they arrived. On the right side
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of the sofa was a coffee table. Lear testified that in order to photograph behind the
couch, the coffee table had to be moved out of the way. He also documented the
use of trajectory rods to align the holes in the front of the couch, the back of the
couch and the sheetrock behind the couch. He had been advised that Harry had
been moved from the couch after he was injured, but Lear was unaware of the
position Harry had been in before he was moved. He only knew that Harry was -
sitting on the couch and that it was reclined at the time tile shots were fired. 44
Vol. 6 pp. 1008-1018.

When investigators first documented the scene, the left side of the couch,
where Harry had been sitting, was in an upright position and the right half was
reclined. However, in order to align the trajectory rod going through the couch
with the defect in the sheetrock, the investigators had to move the couch — Lear
said the couch had to be partially reclined and, instead of on the left where Harry
had supposedly been sitting, Lear's supervisor had to sit in the center of the couch
almost on the split between the right and left side of the couch in order to make the
trajectories line up. A4 Vol. 6 p. 1010. Lear conceded that changing the location of |
the person on the couch would alter the angle of the trajectory rods and he admitted
that they simulated the trajectories, rather than taking the evidence the way they

found it. A4 Vol. 6 pp. 1008-1018.
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The following day, Sergeant Halsey went to the residence and cut out the
piece of sheetrock with the defect. 44 Vol. 6 p. 1030. Behind that he found two
pellets lying on the sill plate at the base of the wall and two pellets lodged in the
floor joist. A4 Vol. 6 p. 1031. The pellets appeared to be shotgun pellets. However,
again, no measurements were taken to document the position of the embedded
pellets. A4 Vol. 6 p. 1032,

- Mathew Noedel testified as a ballistics expert concerning his examination
and test firing of the rifle. He also testified as the State's expert in crime scene
reconstruction. A4 Vol. 7 pp. 1075-1076. With regard to the ballistics testing,
Noedel testified that the documentation submitted from when the gun was
unloaded showed the .45 Colt was the first round fired. A4 Vol. 7 pp. 1079-1083.
The x-ray of Harry's chest showed fragments of a bullet that would be consistent
with a .45 round. /d. Fragments of the bullet recovered during the autopsy were
examined microscopically and determined to be from a .45 round. /d.

The rifle was also test fired at known distances through fabric panels. Id. At
different distances, the soot and residue from the gun leave different patterns.
These panels were then compared to the evidence and photographs taken at the
autopsy. Id. Harry was wearing a bathrobe at the time of his death. The test pattern

from the 45 Colt suggested that the muzzle of the gun was between two and six

18
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inches away from the robe when it was fired. A4 Vol. 7 pp. 1084-1085. The test
patterns from the 410 showed that the shot to the wrist was fired when the muzzle
of the gun was three inches away from the wrist. Id.

Mr. Noedel also testified concerning the scene reconstruction he performed.
AA Vol. 7 pp. 1086-1090. In reaching his conclusions, he relied on original police
reports, the autopsy reports, original scene photographs and scene documentation.

He specifically noted that he relied on information, the measurements and

| photographs provided by Joey Lear in determining the bullet trajectory. Id. He also

conceded that any reconstruction is only as good as the scene documentation. /d.;
AA Vol. 7 pp. 1075-1094.

The defense called two experts during their case in chief. The first was Dave
Billau. A4 Vol. 7 pp. 1117-1130. He testified concerning the numerous mistakes
made during the initial investigation and the corruptiori of the crime scene. Mr.
Billau also testified as to his expertise in analyzing trajectory, and trial counsel
clearly then expected to go on and have Mr. Billau testify regarding the bullet
trajectories, measurements, and the staging of the couch in the room, as consistent
with Harry having fired the gun himself. But counsel failed procedurally to notice

Billau as a trajectory witness, and therefore, the court barred his testimony on
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trajectory. He was therefore limited him to review of the crime scene photographs
from which he was unable to draw conclusions, and the jury had no forensic

information from which to draw a conclusion of suicide. See 44 Vol. 7 pp. 1127,

1129-1130.

Defense:  Based on your review of the reports and evidence
available in this case, were you able to reach and conclusions
concerning trajectory?

State: Objection, Your Honor, as we discussed.

Court: Ms. Brown, I think that’s outside the scope of the
notice.

Defense: I don’t think so, Your Honor. If there’s . . .

Court: It’s not allowed.

Defense:  Excuse me?

Court: It’s not allowed. You may be able to rephrase that
question but that question is not allowed.

Id. atp.1129.

Mr. Billau finally simply testified that based on his review of the documents
and photographs prepared by the Washoe County Crime Lab, there was
insufficient information to form a conclusion concerning the trajectories in this

case. This was in part because the investigators failed to document how the sofa
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was manipulated to establish the trajectory at the crime scene. There was also no
record of whether or not objects at the scene had been moved as in-court testimony
indicated.

Dr. Bennet Omalu, a forensic pathologist, is a medical examiner in San
Joaquin County and an assistant clinical professor of pathology at the University of
California Davis Medical Center. He is also the president of Bennet Omalu
Pathology, a widely respected private consulting firm. A4 Vol. 7 pp. 1135-1164.
Dr. Omalu has performed over 8,000 autopsies, and roughly one hundred of those
have involved what he calls “atypical suicides.” 44 Vol. 7 p. 1136. Atypical
suicide is also included in the curriculum of the pathology courses he teaches at
UC Davis. Dr. Omalu is also recognized as one of the leading experts in brain
disease.

Dr. Omalu classified "atypical suicides” as those that are often mistaken for
homicides. A4 Vol. 7 pp. 1318-1145.They may include suicides involving multiple
gunshots, the victim moving about after a fatal injury, or even suicides staged to
look like homicide. Omalu opined that Harry died as the result of a single gunshot
wound, the one to the chest. He explained that the wound would not have been
immediately fatal; Harry could have lived up to 5-10 minutes and could have

engaged in activities — such as shooting himself again. He testified the second shot

2]
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was most likely a misfire. He proposed that Harry was trying to position himself

for a second shot when his strength failed.

Dr. Omalu also noted that Harry had a fracture in his left shoulder joint. This
key injury was not even mentioned in Dr. Kubiczk's autopsy protocol. A4 Vol. 7 p.
1159. Dr. Omalu testified that his analysis showed that Harry’s arm was not

extended when he was shot, but was flexed or bent. He testified that the force of

the bullet entering the body would have caused the fracture. He also testified that

this fracture could have caused the inflexibility in the left arm that was mistaken by
the first responders for rigor mortis.

Dr. Omalu also testified that the photograph of Harry’s liver taken during the
autopsy showed that Harry was suffering from liver disease. The liver was
yellowish instead of a healthy reddish brown. When the liver malfunctions, levels
of ammonia in the blood increase, which can effectively poison the brain, leading
to episodes of irrationality. However, again, no tissue slides were taken during the
autopsy, so this diagnosis could not be confirmed.

Finally, Dr, Omalu testified that the levels of THC in Harry's blood showed
he had smoked a substantial amount of marijuana within two hours of his death.

The metabolite levels were 10 times the legal level. This could have exacerbated

|the tendency toward irrational behavior, including suicide.
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Page 9 Page 11

it's just part of the normal process that we do this once the
evidence is concluded.

So I'll be meeting with the attorneys once we're
done today, and then I anticipate that tomorrow morning, I
will instruct you, and the attorneys will argue their cases,
and the case will probably be submitted to you then. We
could push through tonight and get to that point, but I think
that you probably would not have the case submitted to you
until some time around 5:00 or later, and it seems to me
that's not fair to the State. It's not fair to Ms. Leibel,
and it's not fair to you to make you go back and start a
deliberation at that hour. So now you kind of have a roadmap

© 0 J ot d» W N R

10
11
12

13 of where we'll be going and what the timeframes are.
14  Any comment that you want to make on that,
15 Mr. Gregory?
16 MR. GREGORY: No, Your Honor.
117 THE COURT: Ms. Brown, or, Ms. Henry?
18  MS. BROWN: No, Your Honor.
19  MS. HENRY: No.
20 THE COURT: Will counsel stipulate to the

21 presence of the jury while I made those comments?

Q. I'm going to give you a second to get that water
because it can be complicated.
THE COURT: We never thought it was but a couple
of witnesses have had trouble with it.
MS. BROWN: I'm always spilling it.
THE WITNESS: Okay.

Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) How are you currently employed?
A. TI'm a medical examiner San Joaquin County in ;s
California, president of Bennet Omalu Pathology, my
consulting company, and I'm also an assistant clinical
professor of pathology at University of California Davis |/}
Medical Center. I'm also a staff physician at San Joaquin
General Hospital and a Contra Costa Regional Hosp1ta1 ’

THE INTERPRETER: A contractor?
THE COURT: Contra Costa Hospital.
Q. (BY MS.BROWN:) Sorry, could you repeat that
last.
A. Contra Costa Regional Hospital.
Q. And as part of your duties as chief medical
examiner at San Joaquin County, do you perform autopsies?
A. Yes, ma'am.

P

775-882-5322

22 MR. GREGORY: Yes, Your Honor. 22 Q. Can you briefly describe your medical or
23 MS. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor. 23 educational background?
|4 THE COURT: Thank you. And please excuse me for |24 A. I went to medical school in Nigeria in West
Page 10 N Page 12 |
1 for sniffing and blowing my nose and such up here. 1 Aftica. It's a seven-year medical school curriculum i
2  Ms. Brown, your witness. 2 fashioned after the British, six years of trammg and one {{
3 MS. BROWN: The defense would call Dr. Bennet 3 vyear of clinica] internship.
4 Omalu. 4 During clinical internship, I worked as physician
5 THE COURT: Doctor, if you would come in rlcht in | 5 butunder supervision in the department of internal medicine, -
6 front of the clerk,_gpd Ialse your rlght han(i 6 general surgery, obstetrics and could not J/TKPWAOEUL and
7T ] 7 pediatrics. I performed surgeries and delivered over 400 ,
,/B)/iﬁRJ BENNET OMALU; Tl 8 babies, completed that, went to a university hospital m 1)
“s  called as a witness on behalf of the © 9 Nigeriato work as an emergency room physician for five
d10  Defendant having been first duly sworm, 10 years. :
“11 was examined and testlﬁed as follows: 11 Again, I worked as a physician attending to live
12 ~~\v..~@;_:_~_,_;£—fil =l T 12 patients. While I was doing that, I secured a world health
13 THE COURT: If you would come up, please and 13 of physician scholarship to come to the United States in
‘|14 have a seat. You can help yourself to some water if you |14 1994. I went to the University of Washington in Seattle,
15 want, Sir, if you want to place your coat back over here. |15 Washington. [was a visiting research scholar for eight
16 You don't have to put it on the floor. 16 months.
17  THE WITNESS: That's fine. Thank you. 17 I moved from Seattle to New York to Columbia
18  THE COURT: Ms. Brown? 18 University at Harlem Hospital Center until 1995 todo a ¢
19 DIRECT EXAMINATION 15 five-year residency training program focused in anatomic and \
20 BY MS. BROWN: 20 clinical pathology.
21 Q. Could you state your name, and spell your last 21 Because of my special scholarship, five years or
22 name, please. 22 regents and four years for me, I completed residency training
23 A. My name Bennet Omalu, B-e-n-n-e-t Omaluy, 23 in anatomic and clinical pathology in four years. .
24 O-m-a-l-u. ' 24 I then moved to Pittsburgh Pennsylvania to the i
Mig-i-Seript® Capitol Reporters 3'7 3 7 3 Pages 9 12
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‘ Page 13 Page 15
’ f‘ University of Pittsburgh in 1999 to do a one-year fellowship | 1 enforcement in cases?
‘ jz training in forensic pathology. Upon completing that, I | 2 A. Yes, I have worked for all sides for law
ff 3 again went to the University of Pittsburgh, Pittsburgh, 3 enforcement, for district attorneys. I also work for
{f ¢ Pennsylvania to complete a two-year fellowship training in : 4 difference attorneys in both criminal and civil matters.
L, 5 neuropathology. 5 Q. And do you have any professional associations or
U6 I completed that, went to the graduate school of 6 memberships pertinent to today's testimony?
¢| 7 Public Health University of Pittsburgh, Pittsburgh, 7 A. Yes, I belong to about 18 professional
g Pennsylvania to do a three-year masters in public healtha | 8 organizations.
9 peeled/ KWROPL/OLG L Icompleted that, went t0 Carnegie | 9 Q. Could you tell us the number of autopsies you
10 Mellon University in Tepper, T-e-p-p-e-T School of Business |10 have performed?
11 to do a three-year masters in business administration with a |11 A. My first autopsy was in 1984 while I was in
12 focus in medical management. 12 medical. School since then, I've performed over 8,000
13 After completing my training, I sat for five 13 _autopsies. s
14 board certification examination in five subspecialties of |14 Q. 8;000?
15 medicine which I passed, some boards certified in five |15 A. Yes ma'am, and I have examined over 10, 000
16 subspecialties atomic pathology clinical pathology, forensic |16 _brain > EPTESEE
7 pathology, neuropathology and medical management. {17 QO And have you been the attending physician or
18 In addition to that, I hold a masters in public 18 present deaths?
[l19  health in pathology and a masters in business administration. |19 A. Yes, I have witnessed and attended to hundreds of
120 I was certified in 2008 by the American Association of |20 deaths of people dying, from new bomn child who is several
{421 Physician Leadership as a certified physician executive. |21 hours old to the 99-year-old grandma and grandpa, and I've
V|22 After my training on board certifications, I 22 satisfied 1,000's of deaths.
"l»3  worked as an academic pathologist. I was associated |23 Q. Have you previously given testimony in your
24 professor of pathology at University of Pittsburgh, 24 forensic pathology?
~ Page 14 Page 16
/1 Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. As professor of physiology 1 A. Yes. Ihaveretained as an expert witness and
. 2 University of Pittsburgh, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, visited | 2 testified in court and m depositions over 600 times. I
\ 3 professor of University of West Virginia University, 3 tqsti ontl the average about.60-times.a year.
J),,-74 associate professor of pathology at University of California | 4 Q “Avethere “specific _]’Lll‘lSdlCthIlS that you testify
' 5 atDavis. Ibecame a full professor in to 2012, stepped down 5 in or numerous?
6 after one year because the work was getting too much for me. 6 A. testify across the United States from Olympia
7 I published extensively in the medical 7 in Washington State to Buffalo, New York to Florida, all
g literature. Ipublished two books and I published several | 8 across the United States.
5 books chapters medical experts. I've been invited twiceto | © Q. And in those cases, you have been certified as an
10 advise the United States congressional judicial committee on |10  expert in the field of forensic pathology?
11 matters relating to traumatic brain i mjury ‘A Fggensm patholocry, neuro atholo ;_,V,g'_l; my
12 Q. Thank you. Andyou statc at-presentsyou also becialtic S, ’ -
13 have private business i ‘fhodern pathology’)
14 A. Yes. N\ - _ 2
15 Q. And who do you consult withT
16 A. Iconsult with government agencies, a variety of
17 state, numerous counties across the country, nongovernmental |17 A Yes. -
18 agencies and nonprofit organizations, corporations, attorneys |18 %Has any of your testimony involved
19 working for families, working for the state, for different i - ‘
20 counties.
21 1 have also consulted with the United States
] 2 Government of matters relating to death, causation of death, Aty
7T23  mechanisms of death, matters relating to injuries. 23 Q What i is foren51c at' 010
24 Q. And have you consulted with prosecutors or law 5§73 weclalty of med1cme
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Page 17 Page 19
that deals with the study of injuries, how do human beings | 1 additional scientific analysis to generate more evidence to
sustain injuries and how could injuries result in deathor | 2 help me develop scientific opinion. For example, I would ‘1
result in any type of impairment of the human function. | 3 take microscopic sections of the tissues and organs and i H
Forensic pathology also deals with the phenomenon of death, & examine them microscopically. I would also take samples of ;
why do people die and how do people die, what causes death. 5 the body fluids and perform texicology analysis. % 1
Q. Andin studying -- testifying concerning forensic 6 When all of the results come back, I would put 1
pathology as it relates to criminal cases, what do - 7 them together, analyze them and then derive -- makea | | k
criminal cases where there's a criminal charge, what would 8 diagnosis, derive a cause of death with a reasonable degree | | \1
you be testifying concerning? 9 of medical certainty. What does that mean? If you apply all ¥
A. Could you repeat the question again. {10 ofthe scientific matters and you still cannot determinea | } |
Q. I'msorry, for example, criminal cases when 11 cause of death with a reasonable degree of medical certainty l
you're doing autopsies? 12 and that means greater than 90 percent certainty, [ would
A. Yes, ma'am. 13 make the cause and manner on the time. !
Q. Or preparing to testify, what are you looking for 14 Cause of death simply means the disease or trauma
in those situations? 15 that resulted in death. Manner of death would comprise five

categories of death in relation to the cause of death. Those
five categories are natural death, accidental death, suicide,
homicide or undetermined, and this classification will be

A. When I perform an autopsy on any case, Icomein |16
as independent participant, and I apply established and |17
generally accepted methods of medicine and scienceto {18
generate evidence, medical evidence upon whichIbasemy |19 based on the evidence no matter what any other party or law
opinions or conclusions on. 20 enforcement or the family or defendant will think. My

When I say emphasize independent participant in 21 opinion will be limited to the science, not to any other
the investigation of death, my opinions and conclusions |22 proposition or assumption.
should not be based on what law enforcement thinks or what |23 Q. And in forensic science or forensic pathology,
any other party thinks. I need to perform a scientific ~ :24 does that involve both true sciences and applied sciences?

Page 18 Page 20
1 method of autopsy on tissue analysis to generate scientific | 1 A. Yes
o evidence and build on the scientific evidence, I would make | 2 Q. Could you explain the difference between those
3 my conclusions and provide my opinions. 3 two? P
4 Q. If--alsoas a forensic pathologist in looking, 4 _ ence. There's ﬁ .
5 do you determine cause of death? 5{; : ’ ite s¢ < "’ The
6 A Yes. 6 abeilaic Shonces are like mathematics and physics. Theyare |,
7 Q. And do you determine manner of death? 7 Zabsolutes. What does that mean?” Oneé plus one is always two |
g8 A. Yes, ma'am. 87 o matter what. If you don't agree with it, you can only be 2
9 Q. Inlooking at manner of death, what then would s wrong. Itis either white or black. Two times two is four. k
10 you look at? 10 Even if you don't agree with it, there's something wrong with
11 A Inlooking at manner of death, you would lir you.
12 establish the forensic scenario, forensic scenario, 12 Physics is like that too. Physics, if you have
13 modalities of death over the centuries, scientists that can |13 light, light is light. If you're traveling at a speed of b
14 be found established that human beings die within specific 14 70 miles an hour, there is only one speed of 70 miles anf}
15 circumstances. So that investigation report usually 15 hour. There is no other speed that is fiot 70 miles an hour. {
16 generated by the medical examiner or the coroner's office {16 They are absolutes. 4
17 would summarize a circumstances surrounding the death. |17 But when you're dealing with the applied E‘ .
18 Then based on the circumstances, I would then 18 sciences, like mets and like forensic sciences, they are not
19 come determine the type of autopsy to perform because there |19 absolutes. We all are human beings, but we are not all of “-;.

the same height. We are not all the same color, but it does
not stop us from being all human beings.

N
o

are different types of autopsies. When I'm performing the |20

21 autopsy, I keep a clear mind, and objective non-bias mind. I 21 {
22 don't have any presumptions. 22 Q. Okay. _ ===, R
23 At the end of the autopsy, I have my preliminary 23 A. So the@pplied scienceit's you can make Q:.
24 findings. Then I perform additional tissue analysis, 124 absolute assUmptions—Y 61 can provide an opinion based on {

i = = =

A
A

'
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R

1 one piece of evidence. We as scientists recognize in
) )2 medicine which is an applied science. You must always
concede the wqa_kpqssﬂpi;ghg?apglj;g_ scieng If the ev1dence

£, =

S inthe Reld of sc1en<‘;e g1vé~s‘ﬁs hat
i ry-of: mann‘ervof death.that is called

“l10 You must respect that, and chrclads that your our case

11 undetermmed You do not ignore that because of what vou

14 UC Davis?
15 A. Yes, ma'am.
AI;d do j.ou mclude in that curriculum subJ ect of

i

18 A Yes, ! \Le YAy rtant»whenl‘teach other

Page 23

1 with a rifle and in the head and set the house on fire. At
2 the end of the autopsy, we confirmed that it was a suicide,
3 atypical suicide and not a homicide.

4 And then another very interesting case I had was

5 ayoung man about 27 years old. He was in his boat, and he

6 hung a big slab of concrete around his neck and fell into the

7 river and got submerged. At thescene, everybody assumed it
8 was a homicide. There was no way he could have done that and
9

submeroed himself. At the end of thc autOp sy, it was a

i1

1 2 [

14 2 Prosecuted"?»w :

15 QFESUit's also important then for law enforcement
16 to be aware of atypical suicide?

17 A. Yes, ma'am, most definitely.

18 Q. Why is it important to know about?

=

‘“‘““”I have had another F5€ of a man who shot himself

S Rt W

18 A. It's important -- like I had said, I testified
20 across the country. 1have actually testified in cases that}/
21 were ruled homicides and later changed to suicides. Bveil
22 just yesterday when the District Attorney in San Joaquin
23 County, there was a case of a baby that was ruled a homicide.
24 Ireviewed it and just yesterday about 9:00 a.m. in the
Page 24
1 1 morning, I did analysis and I said to the D.A. we cannot move
2 Xel: 5 ahead. There is not great evidence to make this a homicide.
3 resemblea homlc1de and if yoﬁ Te notvwell trained and 3 In fact, tissue analysis reveals that it was an accident.
4 experienced, you can erroneously interpret it to be a 4 There was another case in September of last year,
5 suicide. You can erroneously interpreta ical suicideto | 5 a retired fire serviceman in my county was found dead in a
6 be a homicide, ana T can give you % for the most strangest 6 park. Atthe scene, it was assumed it was a homicide because
7 cases that I've had in my experience. 7 the gun was not close to him, that somebody must have shot
8 There was a case of an elderly man. At autopsy, 8 him. At the end, I came to the scene. It tumed out that he
9 1 found three bullets inside his head and everybody around | 9 shot himself but somebody stole the gun because it was a park
me, 1 remember,.oh;itimust be a homlc1de _manccannot |10 visited by drug addicts. So it's important to know about |
lires 1 hat was 11 atypical suicide so that you don't make erroneous conclusions |
12  or misinterpret a case as a homicide when actually it is an ’
13 atypical suicide. \F
14 Q. In dealing with suicides, is the use of a rifle ’
15 in a suicide, does that automatically rule it out as suicide?
16 A. No, that is another assumption what we make that
17 people cannot use rifles to kill themselves, that is
18 inaccurate. It is erroneous. If you read the literature,
19 from my case, | published a case of sulc1de Ilooked at
20 suicides in Pittsburgh, Pennsj; aaia over ten years. People
21 frequently commit suicide with rifles, and sometimes they
, OF / 22  commit suicide in very complex mechanisms that you and I as
h 23( < su1c1de de and ﬁgtm a homimd"ﬁ 23 _sational,people would never understand, but you must
24 (1665 Cates SFSuicidey called atypical

T
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1 familiar with those? 1 and the actin myosin will bind together. Once they bind
2 A. Yes, ma'am. 2 together, the muscle becomes rigid so it becomes typically on - | \
T 3 Q. Inthose type of opinions from paramedics, would 3 the small joints of the fingers and toes, and many times it
f 4 that lead to any conclusion on your part? 4 begins on one side. It begins on one side, even the TMJ,
5 A No. IfI'm doing a case like I had said earlier, 5 temporomandibular joint, because it's a small joint.
j| 6 1 should not and would not base my opinion on what someone | 6 A good example, if you have a marathon runner who
'\ 7 elsesaid. There's a rule in -- we as doctors, we have 7 is running, his body is active under the sun, and then he
| 8 standards of factors set by the government and the agents g suffers a hear attacks and dies before paramedics will get to
EE o that monitor what we do. 9 him, he is in rigor. Why, because he was physically active
[0 As a rule of forensic pathology that when you are 10 and depleting his ATP.
{|11 investigatinga death as a forensic pathologist, you are {11 So in a case like after I started this case, 1t
12 responsible for that case. Even if it goes wrong, you're |12 was not unusual based on the over 8,000 cases I have done for |/
13 responsible and because you are responsible, you should not |13 a paramedic to describe that when he got to the scene, he or | -'f
14 be basing your opinion on some of the party, like a 14 she got to the scene, there was rigor mortis in the small |
15 paramedic. Yes, you need to be aware of what they said in |15 joints of the fingers and hand and maybe the wrist because
16 the medical reports or what that doctor said but at theend |16 the wrist is made up of many small joints, okay, on one side.
17 of the day, the autopsy is the gold standard, and thisis the |17 And on the side, he said -- he or she said there was rigor
18 established standard of medicine all over the world. Sol |18 mortis, but the side Mr. Leibel had the gunshot wound.
19 would only rely or base my opinion on what the paramedics {19 Q. What effect would a gunshot wound have?
20 said, no. 20 A. That gunshot wound was a close -- loose contact
|21 Q. And the paramedics described what they thought 21 or close gunshot - close range gunshot wound. So the fire
22 appeared to be rigor mortis in his left hand. Areyou |22 ball behind the bullet must have touched the hand, and that
23 familiar with that? 23 temperature sometimes is about 100 degrees of Farenheit that
24 A. Yes, ma'am. 24 would warm up the hand, and the heat of the fire would
~ Page 30 Page 32
1 Q. Could you describe what rigor moitis is? 1 deplete the ATP, and there would be immediate onset, so it
2 A. Rigor mortis is a first modern event. Itis o was not unusual when I read the reports that when the
3 changes of the body following death. If I may explain the | 3 paramedics got to the scene minutes after death that there
.| 4 science? 4 was rigor mortis only on the small joints of the fingers and
g 5 Q. Yes, please. 2 5 the hand and in the hand that received a loose contact wound.
"1 6 A Th%iff-%}?’&;.«aﬂs;}n/ e human _r_qg‘s_‘él;' called 6 Q. And you said rigor can start almost immediately?
7 actin myosip, a:-c-t i-n m-y-0-5°L; - ACun Myosin are likea | 7 A. Yes, it could start almost immediately. In some
8 fﬁiﬁ”&ﬁﬁ—%ﬁéﬁ‘tﬁﬁf“a}éﬁ Tove. They can't keep away from g literature, it is called cadaveric spasm.
| o each other. So what the human body does, there is another | 8 Q. And what is cadaveric spasm?
{10 protein called ATP for adenosine triphosphate. ATP is like |10 A. Its terminology some exotic doctor decades ago
11 the policeman of the body. It has so much energy. Sothe |11 justto get some recognition for himself, he named rigor
12 ATP comes in-between them and keeps them apart. ATPis |12 mortis that starts immediately after death. He says rigor
13 generated from the food we eat. 13  mortis immediately after death, and typically it's in the
i14 So when you die, your body has a reserve of ATP 14 small joints of the fingers, could be on one side. Even with
15 that will keep the actin myosin apart. Depending on the |15 rigor mortis, one is fully formed. It's not symmetrical.
16 activity of your muscles and depending on the temperature of |16 It's mot equal on both sides. It's usually greater on one
{117 other factors, you could suffer immediate depletion of your 117 side, and these are some of the things we still don't know in
18 ATP beginning the moment you die to about 12 hours later for |18 medicine. There's so many things we don't know in medicine,
19  most human beings. After 12 hours of death, you would have 119 but we respect it and take it as fact. A\
20 rigor mortis all over your body. But soon after your death, |20 Q. The paramedics also described lack of electrical
% 21 the small joints and muscles of the extremities immediately |21 activity in the heart after measuring by EKG. If a person is
i 2 after death lose ATP sooner. 22 dead, would you expect to see electrical activity in the
{’ 23 So from the moment of death to about 12 hours 23 heart?
4 |24 later, you will begin to have rigor mortis, depletion of ATP |24 A. No, no. Whena person.is dead, there is no
N R e g N e e i)
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1.4 1 that
2 2 Q. Ithink one of the paramedics described the blood
3 diedon May 5th, last year, and in the hospital when did we | 3 as being gel like?
4 know he was dead? You're watching the EKG, then suddenlyit | 4 A. Yes, thank you so much. Viscid it means gel
s goes flat. He was dead, and that is {lat. He's dead. 5 like. It's part of the injury process. Blood has moved into |})
6. But if you suffer a cardiac arrest, like a heart 6 the tissues. The proteins in the blood are not reacting with |
7 attack, a heart attack you fall down on the ground because | 7 the proteins in tissues and are becoming more viscid, and
g actually while you fall down on the ground from a heart & there's a reason for that. Assuming you cut your skin, if we [Yf!
9 attack is the brain notices blood is not coming to it, so it | 9 don't have that process, you continue to bleed. So the
makes you fall. So you lie flat on the ground so gravity |10 gelling actually controls when you apply pressure, it
pulls blood to the brain. So although you're on the ground, |11  actually stimulates and encourages the protein interaction.
not responsive, but you're not dead. 12 Q. And blood begins this process as soon as it hits
If we monitor the EKG, you have an irregular EKG, 113  theair; is that correct?
which is called an arrythmia, so you could have that for {14 A. As soon as it extricates, you know, this is
minutes, sometimes up to hours, that is why you need |15 science, some of this is very exotic, but we're dealing with |}
defibrillator to shock that person and shock the person agam |16 sub cell analysis. The moment it leaves the vessels, it
so that is not death. 17 begins within seconds, within seconds, one second divided
Once you die, the definition of death is complete 18 into 1,000 times.
cessation of all bodily functions. So it is not medically 19 Q. And once if blood is outside the body, does
physical — it is not possible for somebody to die and still i20 temperature affect the rate at which it would -- its
have electrical activity, that is a no no. P appearance would change?
22 Q. And so lack of electrical activity is actually 22 A. Yes, yes. The warmer the room, the weaker and
23 indicative of death? 23 then if, you know, you have some drugs in your system,
24 A. It's the definition of death. A lack of 24 including alcohol, you're take something medications, if \i
Page 34 Page 36 ;
1 electrical activity of the brain and the heart. 1 you're suffering from certain diseases, like Mr. Leibel had
2 Q. And if you have some electrical activity in the 2 liver disease, it will all affect the weight of all changes. |/
3 heart, you should be doing something to try to revive this 3 It's more factorial. That is why you cannot be absolute just
4 person? 4 because you see one thing, you make assumption from that, no, ‘
5 A. Yes. 5 no.
6 Q. Paramedics also gave a description that the blood 6 Q. Okay. And if these observations were made, even
7 appeared to be coagulated around the chest wound and pooling 7 in this group, would that -- would you -- would that lead you
g around the injury? 8 to any conclusion that Mr. Leibel had been deceased at any
o A. No, no, I wouldn't use the word coagulate. 5 period of time prior to the paramedics arriving? I
10 Remember, the human blood contains thousends of proteins, and 10 A. No, no, no, the presence of what you just told ;?
11 the human blood is meant to stay within the blood vessels, |11 me, the rigor on one side and the small and bload, viscid 47
12 and there's a reason for that. Once the human blood comes (12 blood outside, actually, maybe the parts of -- some part of ¢ i\
13 outside the blood vessel, maybe from trauma, the proteins in 13 the body may still be warm, that actually indicates somebody" j
14 the blood react with the proteins in the tissues. l14  who has just died. It doesn't exclude a wrong person of - |fid
15 A good example is what we call tissue, thrombin t15 and autopsy was done in this case, the autopsy indicated -- \!
Yl16 blaster. So what happens, once you have injury, blood goes {16 it does not indicate Mr. Leibel had been dead for a long time A
17 into the tissue within minutes. The proteins, like the 17 before he was taken to the refrigerator, no, we don't have |¥
thrombin, t-h-r-o-m-b-i-n will react with the tissue to blast {18 evidence of that. @
and make the blood more viscid. I wouldn't use the words |19 Q. And there's reporting that Mr. Leibel was on the [}
coagulate. It is all part of the injury process. 20 couch or when he passed away and then was pulled from the [
Again, once you have blood excrete into the 21 couch by Ms. Leibel at the instructions of paramedics or af i 1L
tissues, you could try it at home, wait a minute, it starts 22 the instruction of 911. Would that movement affect anyl}
looking like it's caked or scabbing. When you use the word |23 anything within this interpretation? ;
coagulate, it's more specific for clotting. I wouldn't use |24 A. Yes. Like I had said earlier, Mr. Leibel, before
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1 A. That's a nonfatal wound. It's a survivable 1 fashion on close range of about half an inch, one inch to two
2  wound. Not every injury would kill you. So that should not 2 inches at most.
3 be considered in the cause of death. That was not what | 3 Q. Do you want to stay up here because we're going
4 killed him, no. 4 to look at these other.
5 Q. Okay. And in this injury, it basically started 5 THE COURT: Mr. Brown, what I've asked Mr. Seddon
6 at the back of the hand or at the base of the wrist, wereyou | 6 todoisgeta Sharpie of a different color than blue:
7 able to make any determination as to the distance that wound 7 MS. BROWN: Okay.
8 was made at? 8 THE COURT: So there is a permanent record of
9 A. Yes. _ ¢ what this witness is testifying to. What you've just
10 Q. And what was that? 10 displayed the jury can see, now it's been taken off, and they
1?"’ It was a loose contact to close range and by 11 won't have that to take back to the jury room with them, so
12~ close range, I'm looking at maybe one or two inches tothe {12 I'm going to ask the witness to actually use -- there's some
13 muzzle actually touching the skin because there are large |13 writing on this exhibit with the blue that was done by
1,114 amounts of soot accentrical, and there are born artifacts, 114 another witness. And so, Seddon will be back in just a
11115  the ball of fire behind a bullet. So this muzzle was -- the |15 moment with a different color marker, and we'll have him
16 hand was in intimate contact with the muzzle, and the wound 116 repeat this so that there's a permanent record of his
17 on the chest too was a contact wound. 17 testimony.
18 But you if you notice in the autopsy, it says it 18 MS. BROWN: Your Honor, we do have a green
19 was not a contact wound, that there was no soot but if you |19 Sharpie.
20 look at the pictures of the autopsy, there is soot. 20 THE COURT: Green will do. Thank you.
21 Q. Okay. Iwant to start with the wrist injury. A 21 Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) Just on the actual photo itself,
22 previous witness circled, showing on this, I guess, it's the {22 you can explain what you were saying? '
23  wadding from the shotgun shell. This is the wound youre |23 A. This is the circumference of the eccentric soot
24 talking about? 24 and this is an accentuation of the soot giving you the
Page 42 Page 44
1 THE COURT: Would you identify that exhibit for 1 punctate soot stippling and then the margins of the wound you
2 the record, please. 2 have the born artifacts of the wound, and you notice it's all
3 MS. BROWN: I'm sorry, Your Honor. 3 eccentric. So you have the soot. The soot is stippling and
4 Q. This wouldb EkhlbltNumbE_fﬂ;Exhlblt Number | 4 thebond so this is what you want to see -- what you see in
5 51, that circled injury, is that the injury yon saw soot and ; 5 the loose contact or very close range muzzle. The hand'was
6 other iterns on? 6 1in intimate in tactical association with the muzzle of the
7 A. Yes, ma'am. If you can lower -- dim the light, I 7 rifle. "
g will show you the soot. 8 THE COURT: Ms. Brown, put that back up there.
o Q. Ifyouwould. Idont believe we have a pointer. 9 The record will reflect that the first example
10 THE WITNESS: Could I use this? 10 that the doctor gave was the outer green circle and when you
11 THE COURT: I don't think you can actually draw |11 mentioned his second example was the green circle that's in
12  on that one, but you can walk up to where Ms. Brown is, andl |12 about the middle and in his final example was a green outline
13 think that you can display up there, can't he? 13 of the wound itself. Is that accurate, doctor?
14 MS. BROWN: Yes, Ms. Henry can assist us in audio :14 THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.
15 visual 15 THE COURT: Thank you. Now the record is clear
16 THE COURT: Sir, you may. 16 asto what --
17 THE WITNESS: So where I have circled the 17 MS. BROWN: Thank you, Your Honor.
|18  circumference of the soot deposits and if you notice, it is |18 THE COURT: -- we're talking about.
19  eccentric, telling you the muzzle was closer to one sideand |19 Do you agree with that, Mr. Gregory?
20 if you notice around the emergence of the wound here are born |20 MR. GREGORY: Yes, Your Honor.
21 artifacts, the ball of fire that were in the bullet. Even |21 THE COURT: Thank you. . )
22 here, you can see the accentuation of the soot in a pinpoint |22 Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) I'm now puiting u'_,;
23 fashion. So this is a typical pattern of wound you would see 23 which would be the 45 wound to thgi@cs;_a;qafdAﬁ then
24 in a muzzle of the gun that is touching the skin in a loose (24  Exhibit Number 42 woﬁ’ﬁ?giéjljg.s%gp B?EEfgimginjg{y?
3ipL-Ser Capitol Reporters (11) Pages 41 - 44
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1 A. That's a close-up, Your Honor. Can I come down 1 margins.
2 to-- 2 THE COURT: The splaying of the margins of the
-3 THE COURT: You may, sir. 3 wounds.
4 THE WITNESS: Thank you. 4 Would you agree with me that's what he's marked,
5 THE COURT: This witness will only use a green s Mr. Gregory?
o € Sharpie if he makes any marks on this. = 6 MR. GREGORY: Yes, Your Honor.
i 7 THE WITNESS: So, again, this is an entrance 7 THE COURT: Would you agree, Ms. Brown?
¥l & wound which was describing the autopsy report of not having 8 MS. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor.
9 soot, but you can see a gate, an eccentric marginal soot and | 9 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
10 then an artifact of the wound margins. 10 Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) Since M. Leibel was wearing i
% 11 And in this one, you will actually see splaying 11 clothing, how would the soot get in through the clothing? !
1112  ofthe wound margin, indicating the bowl of gas coming behind {12 A. You know, when we see this suit I'm wearing, with .:
13 the bullet. So, actually, this one, I examined the autopsy {13 our naked eye, the resolution, it looks smooth and clean. ‘\,
{14 report, Harry was wearing a thick winter housecoat, winter |14 But if you -- 1f'you place it under a microscope, you sce big |(
, 15 housecoat and a t-shirt. 15 holes in it because it's fabric that is knitted together.
; 16 So if you have the muzzle contacting his body, 16 All of our clothes, including leather, they have big holes in
‘ 17 that will be about one, two or three inches of clothing {17 it :
between the between the muzzle and the skin. So althoughit 118 Now, soot from the muzzle of a gun is particular
is a contact wound on the clothing, you will see eccentric |19 matter. It's very fine.. It's like fine sand, even finer

N
O O W

P
N
H

soot because the clothing will take some of the soot from the
skin but remember, the autopsy said there was no soot.

than fine sand. There are still particles. The particles of | l
soot are smaller than the holes in the €lothing. Sootis Yi
probably about 1,200 feet per second and it is hot. So soot,

|22 Q. Go ahead and have a seat. 22
23 THE COURT: Now, before he goes any further, I -3 ifit's closer to the clothing than one foot and it's fired
24 want you to identify each of the marks he made on this |24 froma muzzle of'a gun can pass through layers of clothing in 4‘1'2
e Page 46 Page 48 | :
1 example. 1 which the skin. -
2 MS. BROWN: I'm going to, Your Honor. 2 Q. Butin your opinion based on the injury you're
2 THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am. 3 seeing, you're seeing a not skin to barrel contact but a
4 Q. (BY MS.BROWN:) The first circle you made was | 4 contact with clothing over the skin; is that correct?
5 concerning the soot; is that correct? 5 A. Yes, the muzzle was contacting his body but
6 A. Yes. 6 because he had clothing on his body, the muzzle was touching
7 Q. And the second? 7 the clothing, so this will qualify also as a contact wound, |
8 THE COURT: Wait. Wait. That doesn't identify 8 loose contact because mets is not absolute science. If you %
o it because the record will have no identify what the first | 9 ask me, I can stretch it back maybe half an inch, one inch |
10 circle he made was. So what you just marked is a circle that 10 but the half an inch one, inch to two inches will account for | \‘-,
11 is towards the bottom part of the picture. It comes offof |11 the thickness of the clothing. So essentially, itis a ‘:
12 another circle that is around the wound. Would you agree |12 contact wound. ' f}
13 with that? 13 Q. And in a case involving a contact wound, ifa =
14~ THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor. 14 person is awake and conscious, would they be aware at some
i5 THE COURT: Okay. So that -- that circle 15 point there's something closer in contact with them?
16 identifies somewhat you've identified as soot. Then there's |16 A, You mean if he was placed himself or someone else
17 a circle that goes -- there's a partial circle because its |17 placed him?
18 not a closed circle that goes around the wound. 18 Q. Someone else placing it? 7
19 THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor. 15 A. Okay. The human brain has the ability to zespond R
20 THE COURT: And then you made some marks thatare {20 t0 stimulus in one over 10;000-of a.second. That is why if
21 lines. 21 somebody touches you, the moment that —ISEFSOn touches you, you
2 THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor. 22  know he touched you. So the muzzle of a gun, if an
~Z3 THE COURT: And those were to identify what? 23  individual nudges you with the muzzle of a gun, you don't
24 THE WITNESS: The splaying, the splaying of the |24 evenhaveto think. You will respond, and the response is to
a - Capitol orte REf-U-Soript®
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1 knock it out. It's primitive relief we, as human beings, | 1 MS. BROWN: I was going to go to him, Your Honor.

2 have. Something, not just response to hit it out to look. | 2 THE COURT: All right. Have a seat, sir. She'll

3 So if somebody had nudged him with a muzzle of a gun, he | 3 bring it to you. -

4 would have responded in a matter of milliseconds. 4 THE WITNESS: This is a fracture of the acromio

5 Q I'm gomf czshow.you what been marked or 5 clavicle joint.

6 admitted a Exhibit 49 Do you recognize that? 6 Q. And so that green circle is --

7 A. Yes, ma AT 7 A. Is a fracture, and such a pattern of trauma, you

8 Q. And what is that? 8 would see if his arm received such a kinetic energy with it,

9 A. This is Harry's left arm, inner surface, showing 9 factually extended close to the body, like in this position
10 the gunshot wound of exit and showing contusions of the inner {10 I'm placing it. His hand was not fully extended because the
11 aspect of the left arm. 11 force of the bullet pustied away the arm and fractured the
12 Q. And could you put a circle around contusion. 12 acromio clavicle joint.
13 A. This is the focal contusion and the outer part to 13 So given the pattern I just see here, I can tell
14 laceration or exit wound. 14 you reasonably that his hand was not fully extended when he
15 Q. - So this area within the large circle is what 15 was shot. His hand was flexed, slightly extended, like
16 you're calling a contusion? 16 somebody manipulating something. His hand was in this way.
17 A. Yes, ma'am. 17 So when the bullet -- the force of the bullet, the bullet
18 Q. And the arrow points to basically the -- 18 traveled at about 1,200 feet per second. It had a force. So
19 A. Exit, yes. 19 he moved the hand within millisecond and caused a fracture.
20 Q. Thank you. Would this -- the chest injury that 20 .Q. Again, this bullet or this Exhibit Number 140,
21 you viewed both the photographs and the autopsy or the x-rays |21 this is a break in which it's the circled in green, that's a
22 concerning, would that be immediately fatal or would it take |22  break in?
23 time to pass from that? 23 A. Joint, the acromio, a-c-r-o-m-i-o clavicle joint,
24 ) No. The gunshot wound of his trunk w1]l not -- 24 meaning the joint between the clavicle and scapula.

Page 50 Page 52

1 will not be immediately fatal. He could have survived that | 1 Q. And showin 1 now what's been marked as or

2 wound for up to five to ten minutes, and he would have been 2 admitted ag E\xhlbl’g 453

3 able to engage in activities. 3 THE COURT: M. Brown?

4 Remember, the famous Ronald Regan was shot inthe | 4 MS. BROWN: Yes.

5 chest. He did not even know he was shot until they were | 5 THE COURT: How much longer are you going to go

6 driving him back to the White House. He beganto coughout | 6 with this witness?

7 blood, that was when he changed over to go to the naval | 7 MS. BROWN: It's going to be a little while

8 hospital. So he was shot in the chest and was not even aware 8 longer. ’

9 and was engaged in activities, that is a very.s good example. | 9 THE COURT: We're going to take our break right
10 Q. And I'm showing you nof Exhlb“w 1~34"__:£Do you 10 now.
11  recognize that photograph? “\ez=m==""" 11 MS. BROWN: Thank you.
12 A. Yes, ma'am. 12 THE COURT: We've been in session for an hour and
13 Q. And what is that? 13  a half, and I'm going to give the court reporter a break.
14 A. This is the X-ray of Harry after death, and it 14 She doesn't feel very well, and we're going to take a
15 shows splintered fragments of a metal projectile, rarely |15 15-minute break.
16 projectiles inside the chest and extending into the left |16 (Whereupon, the admonishment was given to the
17 shoulder and the left inner, this is 1mportant inner aspect |17 jury by the Court not to talk about the case with anyone
18 of the left arm. e 18 until the case is submitted to the jury for deliberation.)
19 Q. And showing you now 0 19 THE COURT: We'll be in recess until a quarter
20 A. This is, again, an X—ray %oF the left-atmion the 20 . 'til. Thank you very much.
21 left shoulder. You could actually see a fracture of theleft |21 Doctor, during the recess, you're admonished not
22 shoulder joint. You see the space up above the space between |22 to talk to anyone associated with this case except the three
23 the scapula and the clavicle. 23 attorneys.
24 THE COURT: Why don't you identify that for us. 24 THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.
Min-U-Seripi® Capitol Reporters 37 5—/ S (13) Pages 49 - 52
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1 THE COURT: Thank you, sir. 1 could kill you suddenly. Many people who suffer it do not
2 (Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 2 know they suffer from it until they do a liver enzyme panel.
3 THE COURT: We're back in session in State of 3 Common causes of it, alcohol, drugs of all types and -
4 Nevada versus Tatiana Leibel. Mr. Gregoryis present forthe | 4 sometimes even drugs of abuse. It depends on your genetic
5 State. Ms. Brown, Ms. Henry are both here. Ms. Leibelis | 5 makeup. Even drugs as common as marijuana can cause
6 here, as is the interpreter, one of our interpreters. 6 hepatitis. Some people, it's something you may be able to --
7 Doctor, you're still on the stand. You're still 7 it's a very very ubiquitous disease.
8 under oath, sir. Let's bring the jury in. 8 In this case, what you should do if you don't
9 Thank you, folks. Have a seat, please. 9 believe it, it is to take microscopic section and look at it
10 Attorneys stipulate to the presence of the jury? 10 in the microscope. You will see the large globals of fat in
11 MR. GREGORY: Yes, Your Honor. 11 theliver. What is the significance of this? The liver is
12 MS. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor. 12 the organ, it's the largest organ in the body only second to
13 THE COURT Ms. Brown, would you continue. 13 the skin. Why is it a large organ? It supplies -- it's the
|14 agk : 14 only organ that has three independent sources of blood
15 RExX 15 because it's a big organ that plays a very important function
16 1dent1ﬁed a broken BORE in the shoulder by that green |16 in the human body.
17 circle, would that break in the shoulder affect flexibility |17 It is the organ that detoxifies your blood. It
18 in the arm after it was inflicted? 18 removes toxins and chemicals from your blood to clean it up.
19 A. The fracture dislocation of a joint would in a 19 Why does it do that? The human brain is a very sensitive
20 big motion but if you try to move, you may hear what wecall |20 organ. The brain does not do well if specific chemicals in
21 crepitus, c-r-e-p-i-t-u-s, and I've actually done cases 21 the body are elevated, specifically ammonia, and your body
22 whereby at the scene, law enforcement interpreted a fractured |22 turns out large amounts of ammonia, that is why you have
23 shoulder to be rigor mortis because you try to move the {23 large amounts of ammonia in the urine. That is actually what
24 shoulder, the fracture in the base, the motion, soon after, |24 gives urine the smell. So the liver takes it out and it
Page 54 Page 56
1 death, fracture, spasm. If you've ever had a fracture, spasm | 1 becomes excreted in the urine.
2 of the muscle, it's pain. So the muscle is spastic. Ifyou | 2 When you have a disease, if you see, this is
3 die, the spasm of the muscles with time will relate slowly. | 3 diffuse. There is impairment of detoxification of the liver.
4 So this is such a fracture could simulate rigor mortis and | 4 Ammonia levels will be high. IfI did this autopsy myself, I
5 misinterpreted as rigor mortis, and I've actually seenitin | 5 would have performed all of the analysis. What is the
6 several cases of mine. E 6 significance? When ammonia levels are high in the blood, it
7 Q. Showing you what's been marke{ {Exhibit iSléfor 7 causes a specific disease. We'll call hepatic
8 identification, dg you recognize this?~arnsmre: 8 encephalopathy. Hepatic encephalopathy will make it to
9 A. Yes. 9 manifest episodes of irrationality.
10 Q. What is that? 10 Q. Irrationality?
11 A. Can you lower the light? There's a reflection. 11 A. Yes. Sometimes you could have a liver episodes
12 THE COURT: It actually I think it's the light 12 of irrationality, where you act out of character and some
13 from the projector. You may be able to adjust one of those (13 people that even engage in activities that are simply
14 side lights that may help you. 14 irrational that you and I as rational beings would never
15 THE WITNESS: Wonderful, wonderful. Thank youso |15 understand why.
16 much. This is a picture of the liver. The human liver and {16 And in doing my review, having this, I look at
17 the liver of all mammals has a red, brown color-like muscle. |17 the toxicology which, again, showed us a very significant
18 But if you notice, this liver is yellow. It's yellowish, and |18 finding that further confirms that this case is not a
19 it's diffusely yellowish. This is a specific disease we call {19 homicide.
20 steato, s-t-e-a-t-o, steato, hepatitis. 20 Q. And in -- you said earlier that you needed what
21 What this simply means is a group of diseases 21 would need slides of the tissue to make further diagnosis?
22  where you start having accumulation of fat in the liveranda |22 A. If you have doubt, assuming if I'm training, you

know, younger doctors, medical students, I would tell them to
take a historical section, you should in a homicide like

Pages 53 - 56 (14)

Capitol Reporters
T75-882-5322

Y in-U-Seript®

274L



Trial - Wednesday : \Q

)

Rough Draft . . State of Nevada vs
February 4, 2015 Tatiana Leibel. aka Tatiana Kosyrkina - 14-CR-0062
Page 53 Page 55
21 THE COURT: Thank you, sir. 1 could kill you suddenly. Many people who suffer it do not
2 (Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 2  know they suffer from it until they do a liver enzyme panel.
-3 THE COURT: We're back in session in State of 3 Common causes of it, alcohol, drugs of all types and
4 Nevada versus Tatiana Leibel. Mr. Gregory is present for the 4 sometimes even drugs of abuse. It depends on your genetic
5 State. Ms. Brown, Ms. Henry are both here. Ms. Leibelis | 5 makeup. Even drugs as common as marijuana can cause
6 here, as is the interpreter, one of our interpreters. 6 hepatitis. Some people, it's something you may be able to --
7 Doctor, you're still on the stand. You're still 7 it's a very very ubiquitous disease.
g under oath, sir. Let's bring the jury in. 8 In this case, what you should do if you don't
9 Thank you, folks. Have a seat, please. 5 believeit, it is to take microscopic section and look at it
10 Attorneys stipulate to the presence of the jury? 10 in the microscope. You will see the large globals of fatin
11 MR. GREGORY: Yes, Your Honor. 11 the liver. What is the significance of this? The liver is

15
16
17
18
r 119
\:{20
fil21.
\ |22
f123
i

“124

12 -’,L
1327
18 MS. BROWN: T

MS. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Brown, would you continue.
ink you..YourtHonor.

QS Going back tdExbibit Nutnber 140 where you

=2 W

idenfified a broken b

Sne in the shoulder by that green
circle, would that break in the shoulder affect flexibility
in the arm after it was inflicted?

A. The fracture dislocation of a joint would in a
big motion but if you try to move, you may hear what we call
crepitus, c-r-e-p-i-t-u-s, and I've actually done cases
whereby at the scene, law enforcement interpreted a fractured
shoulder to be rigor mortis because you try to move the
shoulder, the fracture in the base, the motion, soon after,

12
13
14
i5
i6
17
i8
19

21
22
23
24

the organ, it's the largest organ in the body only second to
the skin. Why is it a large organ?. It supplies - it's the
only organ that has three indep endent sources of blood
because it's a big organ that plays a very important fanction
in the human body. '
It is the organ that detoxifies your blood. It

removes toxins and chemicals from your blood to clean it up.
Why does it do that? - The humnan brain is a very sensitive

-organ. The brain does not do well if specific chemicals in
the body are elevated, specifically ammonia, and your body
turns out large amounts of ammonia, that is why you have
large amounts of ammonia in the urine. That is actually what
gives urine the smell. So the liver takes it out and it

Page 54

Page 56
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1 1 death, fracture, spasm. If you've ever had a fracture, spasm | 1 becomes excreted in the urine.
11 2 ofthe muscle, it's pain. So the muscle is spastic. Ifyou | 2 When you have a disease, if you see, this is
Il 3 die, the spasm of the muscles with time will relate slowly. | 3 diffuse. There is impairment of detoxification of the liver.
-4 So this is such a fracture could simulate rigor mortis and | 4 Ammonia levels will be high. IfI did this autopsy myself, I
4 5 misinterpreted as rigor mortis, and T've actually seenitin | 5 would have performed all of the analysis. What is the
' \ 6 several cases of mine. e 6 significance? When ammonia levels are high in the blood, it
7 Q. Showing you what's been markel§ Exhibit 4‘&5’ for 7 causes a specific disease. We'll call hepatic
g identification, do you recognize this? " = 8 encephalopathy. Hepatic encephalopathy will make it to
9 A. Yes. o manifest episodes of irrationality.
10 Q. What is that? 10 Q. Irrationality? )
11 A. Can you lower the light? There's a reflection. 11 A, Yes.. Sometimes you could have ayi Ve s0des
12 THE COURT: It actually I think it's the light 12/ of irrationality};where you act out of character-and some
13 from the projector. You may be able to adjust one of those |13 '“TJ'éé‘ﬁl‘e"ﬂiéf‘éﬁ‘én engage in activities that are simply
14 side lights that may help you. : 14 irrational that you and I as rational beings would never
P THE WITNESS: Wonderful, wonderful. Thank youso |15 understand why.
[/ |16 much. This is a picture of the liver. The human liverand |16 And in doing my review, having this, I look at
| {17 the liver of all mammals has a red, brown color-like muscle. 17 theygqxi& logy-which, again, showed us a very significant
18 But if you notice, this liver is yellow. It's yellowish, and |18 finding that further confirms that this caseis pota
19 it's diffusely yellowish. This is a specific disease we call |19 homicide. o
\ |20 steato, s-t-e-a-t-0, steato, hepatitis. 20 Q. And in - you said earlier that you needed what
[ 21 ‘What this simply means is a group of diseases 21  would need slides of the tissue to make further diagnosis?
2  where you start having accumulation of fat in the liveranda 122 A. If you have doubt, assuming if I'm training, you
\ ~33 specific type of fat is what we call a triglyceride fat. 23 know, younger doctors, medical students, I would tell them to i
Y (24 There are so many things that could cause hepatitis. It |24 takea historical section, you should in a homicide like }
3 : )
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‘1 this. An alleged homicide case, you should and must I 1 autopsy that you were shown?
2 according to the standard.. 2 A Yes, ma am....
3 Q. And as to the brain, should tissue be take from 3 Q. An nibit d‘ do you recognize that?
4 the brain? 4 A Yes, maame
5 A Tissue from the brain and from every organ from 5 Q. And is this also one of the photographs you were
6 the body. 6 shown?
7 Q. And to your knowledge, were any tissue samples 7 A. Yes, ma'am.
g taken in this case? s T 8 Q. These photographs then have been since used to
9 Accl iseds s show Harry's reach as to whether or not he could use the
10 { told there ‘ the . 10 weapon. Would this be a correct way to determine that?
11 —you [take mlCIOSCOPIC sectwns of the bram, you should seea {11 A. No.
12 3pe01ﬁc change in the brain cells that would explain the {12 Q. And why not?

ity ¥ It affects a spec1ﬁc type of selfm the

A. Actually, the measurement, the way they measure

{14 it from the axilla to the tip of the finger is inaccurate.
{15 If you want to measure range, you start from the neck to the }i
16 tip of the finger, not from the axilla. Why, because if I'm t
17 : 17 manipulating a gun or any object, I'm using my whole body. I- |}
18 Q. Okay' “And you mcntloned also in the toxicology 18 can put my body in different concoctions and different |/
19 report that there was -- it was shown that cannabis was used? |1s convolutions. I can --Ican do things that whenTm ¢
20 A. Yes. Inthe toxicology report, it showed that 20 standing stationery, someone watching me will assume I cannot
21 Harry used marijuana less than two hours before he died. Why {21 do. ’
22 do I know it's less than two hours, because of the types of |22 So, again, this is one of the patterns of
23 cannabinoid found in his blood and the levels. 23 erroneous assurnption of things in this case. Measuring the
24 If you smoke marijuana, your Delta-9 THC whichis i24 ridge from the axilla is wrong. If you want to measure the [P
Page 58 Page 60
1 the active component of marijuana Delta-9 THC after two hours | 1 ridge, you start from the neck, actually from the midline of {f
2 should drop less than two micrograms, but Harry's THC level 2 the body and then meaning that somebody cannot perform a | 5
3 was 20. So it tells you will he used marijuana within two | 3 specific act because of the length of the upper extremity is| i
4 hours of his death. Unfortunately, marijuana is a £ erroneous, it's wrong, it's a wrong determination because;
5 psychodelic drug. It's a hallucinogen. So if you're 5 human beings can concoct your body and twist your bodyin ¥
6 suffering from a disease like hat hepatic encephalopathy and 6 unimaginable ways. Even some of us who have the talent can |
7 then you smoke marijuana, you are at the much greater risk of | 7 toll your body into a ball. So this is totally wrong, and so
8 engaging in irrational behavior, including suicidal behavior. 8 assumptions remaining in this based on such an erroneous
9 Q. And you're one of leading brain experts in the or o scientific methodology.
10 experts in brain disease; is that correct? 10 Q. Andhavewe discussed possible scenarios or

.

Tk

775-882-3322

11 A. Could you repeat. 11 examples in which we could possibly demonstrate if Mr. Leibel
12 Q. You're one of the leading experts in brain 12 shot himself, that could be done with that 24-inch arm and
13 -disease? 13 sofa?
14 A. I wouldn't say myself, but I have I have been 14 A. Yes, ma'am. Yes, ma'am.
15 recognized as one of the leading experts. That was why the 115 MS. BROWN: And, Your Honor, may the record
16 U.S. Congress invited me on two occasions to advise themin i16 reflect that Dr. Kubiczek did measure my arm when he was
17 matters related to brain disease, yes, ma'am. 17 testifying it was between 24 and 25 in length.
18 Q. In fact, that's a matter of a lot of your 18 THE COURT: He did measure it, and I don't recall
19 publications; is that correct? 19 exactly. The jury will recall what the measurement was and
20 A. Yes, ma'am. Y 20 it's their memory that counts.
21 Q. Showing you what's been marke Exhibit 140 Lor 21 MS. BROWN: Okay.
22 identification, do you recognize that e 22 THE COURT: Mr. Gregory, if you want to stipulate
23 A. Yes, ma'am. 23 to what you believe the evidence was, you can do that or
24 Q. Is this one of the photos that was taken at the 24 leave it up to the jury.
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21 THE COURT: You may, yes.
22 Q. (BY MS.BROWN:) We talked about arm position in
23 this example, so with the same length?

i Rough Draft State of Nevida vs
February 4, 2015 Tatiana Leibel. aka Tatiana Kosyrkina - 14-CR-0062 ~
Page 61 Page 63
i MR. GREGORY: I would leave it up to the jury. 1 A. Okay. Bring in your hand, okay, and erroneously
2 MS. BROWN: And Exhibit Number 119 is the dummy | 2 and that will cause exactly that. And wait, wait, wait, you
. 3 gun? 3 see, it goes to here.

4 THE COURT: I'm sorry, I couldn't hear you. 4 Q. Uh-huh.

5 MS. BROWN: That's okay. I was just asking if 5 A. Raises the shoulder. This illustration shows

6 Exhibit 119 was the dummy gun. ¢ that atypical suicide was actually what happened here.

7 THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. 7 Q. Okay. But I'm not trying to shoot myself in the

8 THE WITNESS: There's no bullet in it, right? 8 shoulder and wrist, correct?

3 MS. BROWN: Excuse me? 9 A. No, the second shot, he was trying to position
10 THE WITNESS: There's no bullet in it? 10 it. Remember, he is beginning to bleed inside.
i1 MS. BROWN: There's no bullet. Actually, the 11 Q. Uh-huh.
12 firing pin has been removed. We're safe. 12 A. He's becoming a bit confused because he is
13 THE WITNESS: Okay. 13 bleeding, and he's trying to shoot himself again, trying to
14 THE COURT: Good question though, doctor. . 14 manipulate and he is confused and, I mean, he fell backwards.
15 | ROWN: And I'm going to be sitting on 15 Q. Okay. '
16 Exh1b1t 120 he couch. 16 A. Okay.
17 ==THE COC RT: Any of you inthe jury are welcome to 117 Q. Okay. Thank you And aoam these are poss1ble
18 stand if you want to see. 18 seenanos‘7 S5
7o Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) Could you step down, doctor. |19 A YEE =
20 A. Your Honor, may 17 20 A 'dence of hepatic encephalopathy combmed with the

2 _»'v/'l psychodelic hallucinogenic effect of the marijuana, the
cannabinoids, there is no reasonable degree of certainty to
3§ rule this a homicide. This is a suicide. The most you can
s etch it is atypical sulcxde e

st

Tora al

24 A. This will give you -- this was -- move this arm.
— Page 62
1 Q. Okay.
2 A. Soyour hand - that's to be -- okay.
3 Q. Okay.
4 A. To the side more.
5 Q. Okay.
6 A. This will give you, yes, hold that.
7 Q. Okay.
g8 A That will give you classic pattern. Depending on
9 your height and that but if you were his height, this will be

10 on a higher level, and you could and it could give you
11 exactly what we have there.

12 Q. That's what we're talking about with this?

13 A. Which is taller height.

14 Q. Yes.

15 A. He could higher and this would go shoo

Okay And then as to the seeond” :

; \9\ they are not yet dead. They aJ'e waiting for minutes and then

21 Q\ Tracel enfauy—snot myselr =R £
2 A. Exactly, you're trying to hold this r1°ht as
—=23 you're moving around.

24 Q. Ub-huh

{4 65-yea:-old white male, died as a result of a single gunshot 20

8 dead and just like some very famous peop]e they try cyanide, %

18 A. Yes.
t‘;>19 Q. As well, as the Washoe County Medical Examiner's {/.
A20  Office? '
21 A. Yes.
22 Q. There's cases you actually work together,
23 correct?

Page 64

1 Q .And so-your oplmon 1n this, matter, based on.a
oo NS 7

\s_ wound of his chest. The manner of death is suicide. What
XL pg.of of sulc1de an atyp1ca1 suicide.

7 AN you- Ihave fiothing furthef.
8 THE COURT Mr. Gregory?

9 MR—:GREGORY Thank. you Your Honor.

10 ¢ CROSS “EXAMINATION®: S
11 “=B¥MR. GREGORY: 2 L
12 Q. Doctor Siou are "4 pathologist; TorTect?

13 A. Yes.

14 Q. Much like Dr. Kubiczek?

A Yes, Dr. Kubiczek is a very good friend of mine.
Q. Yeah, and you actually work with Dr. Kubiczek
sometimes, don't you?

24 A. Yes, I examine brains for the Washoe County

Pages 61 - 64 (16)
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1 Medical Examiner's Office.
2 Q. Allright. You're not a certified gun expert,

3 areyou?
4 A. No, sir.
5 Q. Andyou're not a physicist, are you”
6 A. No, sir.
7 Q. Okay. You arenota toxicologist, are you?
g A. Iam. I'm board certified in clinical pathology.
s Toxicology is part of clinical pathology.
10 Q. Oh, okay.
11 A. Yes.
12 Q. Are you a reconstruction expert?
13 A. No, sir.
14 Q. Areyou crime scene expert?
15 A. I'm a crime scene expert in relation to the

16 medical aspect of a crime scene.

17 Q. Do you go out to the crime scenes?

18 A. Yes. In fact, the standard of forensic pathology
19 is that for every suspicious case or homicide, the
20 pathologist must, must go out to the scene.

21 Q. You understand there's a certification for crime
22 scene experts?

1 Q. Okay. Do you know that there wereg Gee
2 photographs taken in this case? N
3 A Idon't know. Photographs were sent to me. I've @
seen photographs sent to me.
Q. Okay. Did you review 600 and some photographs?
6 A. Idon'trecall. Ididn't count them. I could
7 check in my laptop. Ihave it here with me, but all of the
8 same pictures sent to me, I reviewed.
9 Q. Did you review all of the laboratory reports n
10 this case?
11 A. Yes.
12
13
14
15
16
17

4
5

Q. Okay You rewéwéd the fmoerprmt analysis,
correct’?

(Ycah T rev1ewed T.hat m Novcm_ "f’ when the case

118
15 wasBent tome. In preparing for testimony the other day, I
20 don't typically review such reports because | dont testify
21 tothem.

22 Q. And as I understand, at the time you prepared

#23 A. Yes. Partof our board certification includes 123 your report, you did not have the measurements of the crime
{124 crime scene examination but the medical aspect of a crime (24  scene that were taken by the Washoe County Crime Lab,
Page 66 Page 68
1 scene examination, we don't go to take trace evidence at the | 1 correct?
2 scene, no, but we/vlrlll go to gx:a{mne the body in relationto | 2 A. I don't know. I don't recall, but there are the
3 the scepeto see - the Mﬁ of the bQQLwnh the'scene | 3 measurements that were sent to me, and I've reviewed them,
1 “Fad also to adwse Ev? éhforc nent $0 that they do V't‘ make | 4 andIdonotagree with majority of your assumptions. Based
5 ;SIroneous a assumptlons Jike we have‘m this casé 5 on the measurement, there were a pattern of --
6 Q. " Twant to talk a Lftle bit about What things you 6 Q. Doctor, my question was, at the time you wrote
= considered in rendering your opinion in this case? 7 your report, did you have those measurements?
8 A. Yes. 8 A. Ihad measurements of the crime scene that were
9 Q. You indicated you saw some photographs. We know | 9 provided to me, yes.

10 you saw the x-rays, right? 10 Q. Okay. Who provided those to you?
11 A Yes. 11 A. The defense attorney.
12 Q. Did you see all of the autopsy photographs? 12 Q. And how is it they provided those to you before I
13 A. Yes. ' 13 even had them?
14 Q. Did you see all of the photographs of the scene 14 A. Idon't know. I don't know because I'm not
15 taken by the Douglas County Sheriff's Office? 15 involved in the case that -- my team forwarded it to me. |
16 A. I don't know ifit's all, but I've seen 16 What I reviewed in November, I saw pictures of the scene. I
17 photographs sent to me, and I saw all of the same photographs |17 saw some cartoon demonstrations. Then about last week or two
18 sent to me. 18 weeks ago, there was another formal report, a crime scene
19 Q. So you were provided with reports or photographs |19 report.
20 by the defense, correct? 20 MR. GREGORY: Your Honor, I would ask you to
21 A. Yes. 21 direct to the witness to answer the question.
22 Q. You have no idea if those were all of the 22 THE COURT: He is answering it. You asked h:_m
23 photographs in the case? 23 how he got them before you did. He's telling you when he got
24 A. I don't know, sir. 24 them. '
Capitol Reporters ) & 17) Pages 65 - 68
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. Page 69 Page 71
1 MR. GREGORY: Okay. 1 Q. But so you reviewed Tatiana's statements,
2 THE WITNESS: There was another report, a more | 2 CORTEEtl. e P s et
7/3 comprehensive report with pictures, diagrams that were sent | A ~éé,‘~é'ﬁ&f'thé?e'§_‘?he.’:s,"f;1 why I did that as TR
4 to me weeks a couple of weeks ago. o 4 physician. Iwant to know if her story changed. You know, ==
5 Q. (BYMR. GREGORY:) Did you review all of the .(’ 5 remember, I do this so many times. What is one of the things
6 police reports in this case? g you want to change? You want to find out is the defendant, ||}
7 A. Yes, in November, when I got the case, yes. *u ¢ person been accused of shooting somebody, did her story ¢ A
g Q. About how many reports did you review? 8 c]iange””*?l‘:/’:” e
o A. There were PDF files; 1 would say about seven or g Q. Okay. Soyou listened to her statements,
10 eight PDF files. /j:;ff'?‘“‘:aa\ SZ 10 correct?
11 Q. Okay. You did not review t%' 8 reporEtsig hat & 11 A. Sorry?
12 were done in this case? e = ] 12 Q. You listened to her statements, correct?
13 A. Idon't know if the 58 were part of the several 13 A. To her interview by the police.
14 PDF's but if 58 police reports, remember what ITtold you, I |14 Q. You didn't listen to any other interviews from’
15 don't base my opinion on police reports. Since there are 58 |15 any other witnesses?
16 police reports, you don't expect me to give 58 opinions of |16 A. No, no. Remember -- remember --
17 the 58 police reports. 17 Q. It's a yes or no question.
18 Q. Well, if you don't consider police reports, why 18 A. Isaidno.
19 did you look at any of them? 19 Q. Thank you. Thank you. Did you discuss the case
20 A. I look at them because as an expert witness, if 1 20 with any of the witnesses at all?
21 did not look at them, you will criticize me that I did not |21 A. No. Remember, I'm not a witness expert. I'm not
22 look at them. 22 here to testify.
123 Q. So you chooseto look at some of them but not all 23 Q. Sir, it'sa yes or no question.
24 of them? 24 A. Could you repeat it? ‘
~ . Page 70 Page 72
1 looked at all of the police reports that were—==) 1 Q. Did you discuss the case with any of the
S fopwardedtome. -, et o | 2 witnesse
30> Okay. Did you e The evidence that was 3 A. No, sir.
4 obtained from the cell yhones. i his_case? ' 4 Q. Did you discuss the case with any of the police
5 A Nozn e CIES ) 5 officers? '
¢ Q. Did you listen to th & tape recorded interv 6 A. No, sir.
7 all of the witnesses in this case? - ~maga g 7 Q. Did you discuss the case with Dr. Kubiczek?
8 » g8 A. Yes,sir. .
o Q. Allofthe witnesses? 9 Q. Did you discuss the case with Tatiana?
10 A. Tt was quite long. There were two of them. 10 A. No.
11 Q. sO8:just (YA . 11 Q. But you listened to her statements?
12 A. Ewo.vi 5. 12 A. Yes.
13 Q. Okay. 13 Q. Since you listen to all of her statements, you
14 A. That took me almost one night. I wokeup at, 12 are familiar with some of the discrepancies in those
15 like, 2:00 o'clock. By noon, I was still looking at them. {15 statemenis. G Fretlt T e
16 They were very long. 1 A Fesentially, | wouldn't categorize thorm as s
17 Q. There were some 60 witnesses listed on the board l-lﬁf discrepancies because like today if you bring me baE‘ilq;Q ‘

18 when we started this trial. You reviewed two of those
16 witness statements?
20 A. No, of Tatiana. . 2

21 Q. Okayimosmmes oo e i 2P 21 “vhange. e T S
Ty Sty e TNy =~ '—:7":’:‘__
¢ Tra case like this; Tdon't need to revicws ==, |22 Q. Okayr ==~

[ : .

18 tomorrow to ask me the same questions, I wouldn't testify to ~
No them exactly the same but essential call, the essence of her
\,_testimony of what transpired that this was a suicide did not_| #

e R . x

——
™ e

2
43 /of the material. Remember my expertise, I'm not lay._,-? 53 A. Now, minutia, we'ré human beings. Nobody has 100
|24 ' Kegiqrqem\e&t expert. e SSiF e %7 |24 percent recall memory that might not -- which I would dismiss
Pages 69 - 72 (18) Capitol Reporters , Ein-U-Sorips®
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1 says, that you will review it. Review the other evidence | 1 Q. Okay. And in that report, you didn't cite any

2 because all we have here is not just witness statements. | 2 kind of autherity for your -~ the science that you're talking
3 The good example is the Ferguson, remember, he 3 about here today, right?

a2 was shot. 4 A. No, no, it depends. Remember, I've done this so

5 MR. GREGORY: Your Honor, I didn't ask for an 5 many many times, many times, depending on the jurisdiction

s example. I would ask for the witness to resp ondtothe | 6 and some states is different. As an expert, they don't want [0

7 questions. 7 you to cite other authorities because you're coming as an

B8 THE COURT: All right. Well, I think he's given g8 authority yourself.

9 youa response. Why don't you ask your next question. | 9 Now, if a Court would ask me to provide the basis
10 Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) Sir, did you examine this |10 to provide published literature, I would provide that. But
11 couch before you rendered your opinion? 11 as I'm sitting here today, nobody has asked me to provide
12 A. Yes, pictures of the couch. 12 such literature.

13 Q. Pictures of the couch. Did you actually come and |13 Q. Okay. How long did it take you to prepare that

14 observe the couch? 14 two-page report?

15 A. No, I did not think it was necessary for me. 15 A. It took me weeks. It took me several weeks. I

16 Q. Okay. Did you go to the house and inspect the 16 didn't just - I reviewed the case first. I spent time with
17 house? 17 it. Ithought about it. I did some reading. One day I woke
18 A. No, sir, it wasn't necessary for me. 18 up early. It took me about four or five hours to write it.
19 Q. Did you inspect the gun? . 19 Q. Okay. Areyou familiar with the term cut and

20 A. No, sir, I'm not a gun expert. 20 paste as it refers to word processing?

21 Q. Okay. And yet you've testified today about 21 A. Yes, I know cut and paste and somebody like me
22 distances and whatnot with sooting. 22 who does -- I write over 100, 200 reports every year.
23 A. Yeah, that's what we call the medical aspects of 23 Sometimes some power in the report, things like definition of

24 ballistics, so medical aspects of ballistics. Idon'tneed 124 a forensic pathologist. .

Page 78 Page 80

. 1 Q. Okay.

Q. kayyemia e Tm | 2 A The College of American Pathologist, such things
_ “A. TALLT need to do 1s “skeletal examinations. Like  %,| 3 are copied and pasted on general terminology, general
# 4 today, I saw the gun earlier today. When I came this ‘s_;; 4 concepts.

morning, I examined the gun and the replica of the gun, andI '} 5 Q. Soyou might cut and past some general

saw it. They could not have shipped it to me in California, 'f»_6 principles, but you don't cut and paste things that are
| 7 and]did my medical analysis. I'm not a ballistics expert 7 specific to a case, do you?
:[*8 but as a forensic pathologist, I'm expert in the medical |8 A. No,Idon't.
& aspect of ballistics, that is why I know the type of bullet. 9 Q Did you cut and paste when you prepared the
10 K Qat is why I know the d1stance 18 o POt .
11 Q NS o TShoor the gan z il
12 A. Oh, no, I've never shot a gun in ny 11fe really,
13 [I've never.
14 Q. All right, interesting. Your report in this case
15 was two pages long; is that right?
16 A. Yes. .
17 Q. And you would agree with me that it's a very
18 conclusory report. You gave conclusions, but you don't state
19 —how:yQl; l ed usions?. — A. No, the opinion, I wouldn't copy and paste
; 20 A When | was asked to Write a report I was g1ven clvil 20 because it's unique to the case.
21 the guidelines because each state has its own guideline, that‘§ 21 Q. So one of your opinions in this case was, quote,
\wy report sh should be a summary of my conclusions. __f22 the experts are scientifically invalid and are grossly
23 Q. So youﬁwo-pawe rcport—as 4 SuImary; cotrect? 123 outside the established and generally accepted guidelines and

Amencan patholoc'lsts I defined what forensic pathology
was. I described the general concepts of reasonable degree
of medical certainty. So such general concepts, I don't
doubt. Iactually have a templet. I'll go and pick it out |
- Tofn template and put,it.on; there. e s
Q. Buf the opinion m this case, you wouldn'f

certainly have cut and pasted?

T 24 A. Yes. ‘ 24 principles of forensic pathology. Is that one of the quotes
Pages 77 - 80 (20) Capitol Reporters Hin-t-Seript®
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from your report? 1 phraseology. Itis how I speak. If you watch me in another,

A. I don't know if you're reading it, yes. 2 case testify, you will hear me using the same terminology as ¢

Q. Would you like to see your report? 3 Idohere. Thisismy style. There's nothing wrong with it,/

4 the same language, and I may not have copied it. This isi‘-

A. If you don't mind.

At page two, you'll see an asterisk.

W W oW N

record is clear.

THE COURT: Are you refreshing his recollection?
MR. GREGORY: I'm refreshing his recollection.

THE COURT: Why don't you have it marked so the

10 MR. GREGORY: Yes. 10
11 Q. I'mhanding you State's Exhibit or excuse me, 11
12 Exhibit 148. Would you take a look at that and review it? l12 Q.
13 A. Thank you. 13 Al
14 Q. And then let me know if it refreshes your 14 Q.
15 recollection. 15 A.
16 A. Yes, yes. 16 Q.
17 Q. Okay. So you would agree that one of your 17
18 conclusions is that that Douglas County Sheriff's Office and |18
19 experts - 19
20 A. What page, sorry? 20
21 Q. Pagetwo. 21
22 A. Pagetwo, what paragraph? 22

be unreliable?
A. 1 would not say I was deemed unreliable. This

was a case eight years ago, a case in Pennsylvania, a man had

Hodgkin lymphoma from walking with --

It's a yes or no question.

Yes, yes. I'm trying to explain what happened.

No. ,
The outcome of that case —-
Sir, listen.

THE COURT: Doctor, doctor, give him the answer
and then if he wants an explanation, he'll ask for it.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: If Ms. Brown wants an explanation,
she'll ask for it, but just answer his question, please.
Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) So the question is have you

i)/)

5 just what I write. So if you review on my reports, you see Bl
6 some commonalities which is not unusual.

7 Q. Okay. Have you ever had your testimony deemed to
8

9

23 Q. Scigntiﬁcally invalid and are grossly outside 23 ever been found -- has a Court ever found your testimony to
24 the established and generally accepted guidelines and |24 be unreliable?
Page 82 Page 84
1 principles of forensic pathology? 1 A. Yes, once, once eight years ago, and I'm trying
2 A. Yes,sir. 2 to explain the basis for that, which in my opinion looking
3 Q. In the materials that you submitted regarding 3 back now -- :
4 your expertise, you referred to a case Scanlon versus Life | 4 THE COURT: Sir, we didn't ask you for the basis.
5 Insurance Company of America. Do you remember workingon | 5 Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) You're aware of the Court's
6 that case? 6 findings in that case?
7 A. Youlost me. Idon't understand the question. 7 A. Yes.
8 THE COURT: Well, repeat it and listen carefully. 8 Q. And you're familiar then that the Court concluded
9 Q. (BY MR GREGORY:) Okay. In your materials you | ¢ andTquote, this Court has carefully considered the parties
10 gave us and you listed all of cases you've been involved i10 respective positions and based on the present record, finds
11 with 11 that the methodology used by Dr. Omalu in reaching his
12 A. Inmy CV. :12  opinions in this case is not reliable and even if it was
13 Q. Your CV. 13 found to be reliable, his opinions are too speculative to,
14 A. Okay. 14 quote, fit the facts of this case. End of quote. Do you
15 Q. And in one of the cases you indicated you were 15 recall that?
16 involved in was a case called Scanlon versus Life Insurance |16 A. Yes in fact --
17 Company of America. Do you remember that case? 17 Q. Do you recall that?
18 A. That was ina U.S. -- United States Court in 18 A Yes.
19 Seattle. The summary judgment was rendered in that case, and |19 Q. Okay.
20 the federal judge actually referenced me numerous times in {20 A. The mistake --
21 his summary judgment. 21 Q. Sir?
22 Q. Okay. Would it surprise you in the report you 22 THE COURT: Sir, he didn't ask you a question.
23 aithored in that case, you put the exact same conclusion? |23 Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) Did the Court also quote his
24 A. It would not surprise me. These are not my . 24 opinions are also not grounded in science, end of quote?
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1 drying? , 1 recognized this is my professional view of expertise. Like |/,
2 A. Timnot saying you should ignore it. You should 2 you, you're an expert in the law, I'm not. So if I need (
3 weighit. Given, it's like -- 3 legal advice, I'll come to somebody like you. So iflaw
4 Q. It'sa factor, right? i a enforcement in my county needs the expert to make such ! N
5 THE COURT: Wait g minute. He's not done 5 conclusions, they will call me, so I came. Itold them, no, '
6 answering— - g AT 6 no, this is why it's not a homicide. Iwas shot that down
7 _.ﬁfﬁ*ﬁTNESS: Hierarchy. I'ma forensib@\"b%» 7 immediately. That was not done in this case.

7 - pathologist, years of education, and I give an opini&ﬁf\a ! 8 Q. Had you had the flip be true where they thought
paramedic has six months of medical training, advance\d\‘%: g it was a suicide and you thought it was a homicide?
cardiac life support. You may not like what I say but ! ;‘.10 A. No, because most times my opinion is based on the
objectively, you weigh, who do you believe? Do you believe {j:_"l autopsy findings and assuming the case we went to yesterday |,

7.(L2 in my county, sometimes I do an autopsy. Iruleiton the |/}

5
/8
s

|16 Q..(BYMR=GREGORY) Sa
177K, 1 didn't say disregard: T'said you'eva AT Its S

B &Y
19,

me, even with all my experiences, will you believe me or what,

——
PR e

g I e

£

“SSTHE COURT: You answered the question.
THE WITNESS: What I always say --
Y3 0 you just disregard?

16

You evaluate it, that is why you have me. You didn't stop at ),t
the paramedic. You brought a doctor. You evaluate it. You: ’

command. I have a meeting with the D.A. The D.A. tells me
we really think this case is a homicide but since you voted
on coming, we will charge for something less, maybe for blunt \
force trauma, seriously bodily harm.

But the science, remember, I'm a messenger of the
science because of my training, not me as an individual. So
if 1 explain the science to the best of my ability, we

] 2“’0’33;_(;0@1@9{ the totality, the totality, .. e -5 120 wouldn't be arguing with the science. We respect what the
21 Q. AT wo-Supposedorrgnore that there were two 21 science says. 1fyou don't agree with it and, okay, you seek
‘122 shots fired in this case? 22 a second opinion.
K |23 A No. If there was no autopsy, the number of shots 23 Q. Should we ignore that there was a lack of
Nr|24 fired will be paramount, but there was an autopsy performed 124 gunpowder smell when the first responders went on scene?
Page 98 Page 100
1 that shows the only medic forensically significant and 1 AL ) sﬁg;a‘yery subjective under scientific
2 forensically concentration shot, was only one shot that | 2 _ variable: ‘Again, the smell; How cati-yourd Stérmine.that a
3 Killed him. The second shot is what we call incidental | 3 “Case 15 3 homicide and not a homicide based on the smell of
4 findings because he would have still died from the single | 4 ™ :déi?“:"‘;l‘hé“t' 1§ alimost bordering on Noodo,
5 gunshot wound of the chest. The one to his hand and to the | 5 Q. ell, if the battalion chief with 20 something
6 graze wound were of no significant forensic consequence, end | 6 years of experience as a bomb tech says he can't smell
7 of story. 7 gunpowder, do you take issue with that?
g Q. Are we supposed to ignore the fact that this was 8 "I can provide a scientific
s a long gun that was used instead of a handgun? o Opit ST T
10 A. Ng, you should not ignore the fact, but you 10 Q. So'you do take issue with his opinion?
11 shouldn't make some assumptions that are not supported by |11 A. Thatis below the limit which the law sets.
12 science. 12  There has to be a reasonable degree of medical certainty, the
13 Q. Should we ignore the fact that the gun was cocked |13 threshold.
14 for a third shot? 14 Q. So you do take issue with that battalion chief's
15 A. You shouldn't ignore it. Can somebody shoot 15 opinion?
16 himself in the chest and still cock the gun at that time, |16 THE COURT: Wait a minute. Would you repeat the
17 yes, and the body, yes. 17 question, please. '
18 Q. You've talked about cases where investigators 18 MR. GREGORY: I asked him if he takes issue with
16 look at a scene and think it's a homicide initially but after |19 the battalion chief's opinion that he did not smell gunpowder
20 further investigation, they realize it's a suicide, correct? {20 in the room.
21 A. No, they thought it was a homicide and they 21 MS. BROWN: Your Honor, that doesn't relate to
22 called me to the scene. 22 the issue of whether it's a homicide or a suicide. It
23 Q. Andyou set them straight? 23 relates to an issue of reporting.
24 A. No,Ididn't set them straight, no. Everybody 24 THE COURT: The reason I asked him to repeat it
Capitol Reporters 7 = <F. 25) Pages 97 - 100
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1 because I didn't understand the question. Is the question | 1 Q. And did you take the blanket and inspect it and Jf
2 suggesting that the witness believes the -- believes thatthe | 2 do any kind of testing on the blanket? ’( /
-3 battalion chief did smell gunpowder? 3 A It was not indicated. \
4 MR. GREGORY: Can I ask a different question? 4 Q. Did you take the robe and do any kind of testing
5 THE COURT: Would you pleasc or rephrase that 5 with the robe?
IR R 6 A. It was not indicated.
uryAis the | 7 Q. And you've told me that you didn't take the gun
2 . _frunpowderV g and test fire the gun, correct?
j;s'ers that shou be disregar d“ Shecause of 9 A. No, sir.

"'““'-2' ic; If you S el gunpowder = therc sa test. 10 Q. You gave an example of rigor mortis mindset in

11 quicker than normal, and your example was a marathon runner?
g 12 A ~That was:one. exaly le Loave _That way-you have

I could come as you're wearing a Cologne and I'm 13,8

14_;_' used to smelling my own Cologne and I come to you andItell |1 ey =V i hot

{157 jyoul smell my Cologne on you, you wouldn't disregard it. |15 Q. And so hyeah, because you added heat 16 that

{ | Just, you know what, thatis a scientific test. Soina 16 equation, I heard that m your --

[ court like this, we could use personal discussion butina |17 A. Yes.

court of law you cannot use such a subjective interpretation |18 Q. -- runping in the heat, right?

19 A. Yes, sir.

20 Q. Okay. And the combination of those two things,

21 it might bring on a quicker onset of rigor?

22 A. Generalized.

23 Q. Okay. Is thereany evidence in this case that

24 Harry Leibel was doing anything as aggr essive as running a

'_.,.,:m-“—w.c.zn,.‘.., —

Shonld we: c-nor

TR Vi O“'

P
i ,.' 2

Page 104

1 marathon?

' ; m]ury on him.at.au top_ sy‘7 _
; Q S5 now you re saying we should consider ‘ﬁ

“‘Q == IWhil he's settmv‘on The couch?

5 ﬂentlrety “of the case.iTHe ﬁrst time you ook at it, you 5 A. Committing suicide, yes. It's an adrenalin
6 strikewaf the fhings you shouldn't evaluate. That shouldn't | 6 state. People who commit suicide, it's an abnormal mental
7 be a foundation for my scientific opinion. 7 state from start and done. It's actually a mental, like

itation:That:i is why: 1t S always compulsive.

T s

g Q. But you didn't review the entirety of the case?
9 A. Sorry?

RN T AT
[ =]
o

Q. You didn't review the entirety of the case? 10 Q. Yéiu md1cateTHat the con concept oF an‘averacre
11 A. Ireviewed the case that was pertinent to my 11 spasm was created by an exotic doctor who wanted to get
o |22 opinion. I've neygete iewed or witnessed statements inany |12 attention for himself. ( A
); 13 caseand ovefs, 000 _cases 1 have done in my career, I've |13 “A. That wasn't -- some doctor -- some doctor many
if 14 never rewewgd"a 5T The witness' statements. Ireview (14 years ago chose to name it cadaveric spasm. Why he gave it ‘

-

15 material that are pertinent to my role in this case as an |15 that name, why cadaveric spasm, the cadaver to have spasms, -}
16 expert in forensic pathology and neuropathology. I'mnota |16 if's not a very accuraié name, but it is in place. That's

17 paramedic expert. Am I making sense? 17 why I said it's some people call it or you look at
_ |18 Q. Soyou indicated how important it is to do 18 literature, it's called cadaveric so the body is rigor
b 19 testing. Did you do any testing of the wound in the hand, |19 mortis.
20 the residues? 20 Q. Okay. You've indicated you're not a gun or
21 A. 1did what is called a visual analysis, visual 21 ballistics expert, right?
2  inspection. 22 A Yes.
w23 Q. Visual of the photo, correct? 23 Q. Okay. And yet you given have an opinion
128 A. Yes. 24 regarding the distance that the muzzle was to Harry Leibel's
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body, correct?
A. Yes, as a forensic pathologist, we're trained in

the medical aspect of ballistics, just like we're trained in
the medical aspect of biomechanical body because to

1 use temperature of the body to determine when somebody died.f;‘i
5 ;
3

4

5 understand gunshot wounds, you need to understand the | 5_A. N
6

7

8

S

We don't do that because of multiple variables involved. :Q

o> W N

fundamentals of gun. Why does a gun fire? Why is a gun allistics.expertis.not an ex 1
Setor is. Sorif it comes to-optmion Tel

o

T

ating to findings on

lethal? 7
Q. Now, a ballistics expert is going to take that s % Fuman body, ] wouldn't defer to a ballistics expert, no.
robe that the bullet werit through and look at the gasses and | 9 Q. Okay. You know more than they do about that? %
10 come up with some conclusions based on science as faras how |10 A. It's not about knowing more. This 1s my area of ™% b
11 far away the gun was; is that right? 11  expertise and training, and it's not about one person knowing ¢ *{

12 A. Ballistics does not do, f_ti'_ssue. We doctors are 12 or not knowing. It's not about that at all.

13 Q. T've never heard the term loose contact, a loose
14 contact wound. Is that a scientific term?

15 A. Yes.

16 Q. Okay. What does that mean?

A

17 A. Loose contact, have contact, what it means is
18  that the muzzle of the gun is not completely, 1s not tight on
nrnentatis cur 19 the skin. When you have the muzzle, circumnference muzzling,
20 Q- S5 hat test did you perform in coming up with 20 that is indeed the tight contact or hot contact.
21 your analysis that it was one to tWo inches away? 21 Q. You agree with me that the second shot, there was
22 A. This is something that I want to establish is 22 no way that Harry Leibel was holding the muzzle with his left
23 common knowledge. Ifthere's any forensic pathologist that ;23 hand?
24 doesn't know that, his license should be taken away from. 124 A No, I didn't say that.g
Page 106
1 This is elementary. The range of shot of a gunshot wound, | 1 mani yulating the.gun. Remember, L
» it's something very basic for us as forensic pathologist. I 2 Ashes d, going more
3 can tell you even when he's 18 inches, specific changes you | 3 _.state and while hé wis f‘ﬁ%‘-’ﬁip{‘ﬁlﬁte it, mi
4 cansee. Icantell you when it's one foot. Itisall part | 4 T
5 of our training. : 5 g ﬂSC ain{i L was a ISHIC,
6 Q. Okay. But you didn't perform any tests before 6 Q. Letmeask Thy question a little more directly.
7 you arrived at that conclusion? 7 At the time of the second shot, was Harry Leibel's left hand
g A. Visual inspection. 8 _in-afif: e muzzled cizEmsco
o Q. You looked at the photos and you made your N g o it, yes. His hand =3 N
10 opinions from that? (30 was,likel said, in intimate contact or in contact with thé%\g
11 A. Yes, sir. | { muzzle and that was w_ggréggre was adn}iﬁ fire. The hand went ;
12 Q. What was the circumference of that sooting that r=en the shouldere: = = g
13 we saw on the back of Harry's left hand? 13 Q. "My question wasn't whether he was trying to hold
14 A. Icannotmeasureit. They should have measured '14 _onto it. My,guestion:was.whefh _he was holding onto it.
15 on autopsy. It was not measured. 157K Yes, s trying to mamipulate if, Ty N
16 Q. Okay. So you have o idea what the circumference |1 bolding, the gun, )
17 was? =xhi that i
18 A. No. 3 it you
19 Q. Does that impact the distance? | oftthe gunle Trmmme
20 A. No, we don't use circumference typically because & was manipulating the barrel, closetothess ——
21 of what is called multi variable regression analysis. There {21 muzzle, trying to locate, maybe again to shoot himself but ¥
| |22 are multiple factors involved, including the size of the e ' 2 rifle. So_ he was tr ing to -- thisis |,
‘#i123  hand, so many factors, so we don't typically use second } 2% et typical: = “;w:j:”
! |pa forensic of difference to make decision just like we don't |24 Q. You said something about the human brain that 1
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just wanted to ask you about. So you said if somebody came

- up behind Harry and actually touched him with the muzzle, he

would have known it immediately, right?

A. Yes, as primitive reflex located in the brain
stem and it's not trying to be defensive.

Q. Evenifhewas sleeping, would that be true?

A. Haven't you like you're sleeping and then a fly
is on your face and you slap it?

Q. Okay. So then you gave an example of a president
getting shot and not even knowing he had been shot. Help me
understand how that works?

A. Why I answered that was to explain that you can
be shot in the chest and not die instantaneously.

Q. Wasn't it your testimony he didn't even know he

Q. TS

He didn't know then. He even told the secret service yoiL
shoved me too hard. Get off me. Then suddenly he started i

coughing. So what why I give that example was, yes, you can
be shot in the chest and don't die immediatel and still be,

4

E

52 settled in the body. But as they continue because it's a

Page 111

1 Q. But what made the arm forcefully move?

2 A. The -- remember, the gun went through. The

3 bullet was able to go through the entirety of the chest into
4 the arm because it still had kinetic energy?

5 Q. So it was the force of the fragments coming up
6 through his body that --

7 A. The force of the shot.

8 Q. The force of the shot?

o A. Yeah, and, remember, because it's close range.

11 that was why the bullet passed through and through, and it [}
12 was also a rifle shot. Rifle -- the bullet of rifles T
13 sometimes could travel up to 300 feet per second. Handguns
14 isabout 1,200. So the force of the shot because it was a
15 rifle pushed because the shoulder joint was slightly flexed, -
16 not fully extended, shoved the shoulder outwards and caused |/
17 fracture.

18 Q. Do you agree with the ballistics expert that as

19 those fragments traveled through those body, they would lose
0 kinetic energy?

51 A. Yes, they would lose energy that is why they

23 rifle shot, it will continue traveling, the bullet if it goes

24 QFTANdYC S would still have € eciricity in you? 24 through the entirety. By the time it entered the arm, it
— Page 110 Page 112
1 A. In your heait? 1 still had energy. And, remember, if st
2 Q. Yes. 2 cause the contusion so this igh:vel
3 A. Yes, sir. Yes, sir. 3 ey >
4 Q. I'wantedto make sure I understood your testimony 4~ Q “nderstanding your opinion in that first shot,
5 regarding the first shot, and what was the path it traveled | 5 your opinion is that Harry Leibel's arm -- left arm was down,
6 of the projectile? — = 6 correct?

--As-The projectile

Q. OkBy. What typ :
A, It used a type of ammunition I saw was the type I
would splinter upon entrance of soft tissue. Again, this is
now you're going into ballistics. I'm not an expert in that,

yeah.

Q. Okay, great. 1f I understood correctly, you're
saying when his body takes that shot, it dislocated or
fractured his clavicle?

A. No.

Q. Okay. Tell me.

A ,%jHésa_hawng was.not, extended.-begause if the hand is
extended, the force of the mmpact wouldn't dislocate the
clavicle. So when it's such a pattern, not because of this,

this is what we study. When it's such a pattern ofiglavicle
acromial-frac ou saw in the X-ray,

7 A. No, I thought his left upper extremity was
g manipulating the rifle, and it wasn't extended. It wasn't
s like -
10 Q. Where was it?
11 A. Sorry?
12 Q. Where was it?
13 A. It was close to his body and reaching out close,
14 trying to control the reaching out of the barrel of the gun
15 to support it to shoot himself, and he's a taller guy. The
16 attorney who made the demonstration is shorter, so his trunk
17 would be higher than the attomney's.
18 Q. Okay. So his armis like this when he shot?
19 A. His arm -- all T could say, they were not there
20 when it happened. All1can say 1;,11.15 hand was not extended
21 _Oul.s P SR
22%5==0Okay. And what is your opinion as to how all
23 that shrapnel traveled down his arm and exited right here,
24 how did that happen?

Capitol Reporters
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10 The momentum of the shot emptied completely into his body and 51’; '
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J71 A. That happens when it's -- if you notice, you're in front of the jury?

axilla when you slightly flex comes down, okay? Why it
happens, you have blood vessels and nerves going to your
upper extremities, so you need some lactic. Otherwise, you
tear your blood vessels. So whenever you move your anm
slightly, it could travel through the chest, through the
axilla without exiting the skin mnto the arm.

Q. Okay. So how did those fragments -- what causes

" fragments to turn?

A. The, fragment, remember, when we twawe

S

o W 3o oW N

10
11
12 (208
13

i14
15
16

1on T you t you thmk k the fragment i is tumed do

[ Pt ey

: 6 Dr Kubiczek testified that thg?rr;r’l\\;/.as up Tike

22
23 this at, the tlme of the shot?,..

he measured was similar to -- what he measured was.similar to
Harry's upper arm length. =
5 Q. The way they measured Ms. Brown's arm was similar >1
6 tothe way it was measured by Dr. Kubiczek when he looked at
7 Harry Leibel.
8
9

1
2 A. Why she said that was because she said that where
3
a

A. Yes. When he brought up the measurement of the
expert is because of legal issues.

Q. So the measurements of her arm was inaccurate
also?

A Tt'gAot scien

) To measure somebody's reach, you need to start

“6n the midline of the body. If you don't want to start.
from the midline, you start from the neck and then go, and )
you don't go inwards because you're measuring reach. Reach, <
you go outwards, outwards to the tip but if you notice in W\
that case, it's not inward. From the axilla inward. ?

Q. So this demonstration was inaccurate because
Ms. Brown's arm wasn't measured?

A. The demonstration was not about the length of her
arm. 'I‘he»de_monstranon was ust 1o show tha assummg this

T R

6 .a.Ver ~‘gooawf'r:ﬁ_arxd of 1

7" Case, there was thm s. ith s 1 dlscussed it with

g him personally before L came here.

5 Q. You talked about the measurements of the arm
being done incorrectly, right?

A. Yes, sir.

12 Q. Do you dispute that the tape measure or the
13 accuracy of the tape measure that was depicted in that
14 photograph?

15 A. No. Remember, the -- yes, I dispute it.
16 Remember, the --
17 Q. You dispute the accuracy of the tape measurement?

A. Yes, Idisputeit. Remember, the judge's opinion

Page 116

Q. Are we supposed to disregard then the length of
Mr. Leibel's are?

A. Sorry?

Q. Should we disregard the length of Mr. Leibel's

arm?

6

7

8,

s you gwe it wewht Tike the ev1dcntlary welght The weight ;
0

1

10 I will give it would be low because of the methodology that | it
11 is inadequate. So I'l give it a low score, push it down. \
12 This process is called differential diagnosis, so I'll score

13 it low, not that I would disregard it, no.

14 Q. In the demonstration for the first shot, the gun
15 - the butt of the gun was on the floor; is that right?
16 A. 1don't know where it was. Nobody can tell you

17 exactly where it was.

Q. No, I'm asking in the demonstration, the butt of

775-882-5322

19 you read, that if your methodology is Jacking or wanting, {19 the gun was on the floor; is that correct? ¢
20 your results are inaccurate. So methodology is insufficient, |20 A. It could have been on the floor or wewantto & N
21 is inadequate, is wrong. And so the outcome of that 21 demonstrate that it is probable that a man like Harry could:}
22 methodology, scientific issue would be dismissed. 22 kill himself with a rifle. N
23 Q. A few minutes ago you did a demonstration with 23 THE COURT: Sir, what I'm asking you to do is to ;>
24 Ms. Brown and she told you that Dr. Kubiczek measured her arm | 24 listen to his question. The question was during the -
Capitol Reporters 3‘7 6 3 (29) Pages 11? - 1;16
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1 gun on the floor and shot it, what would happen to the gun? i 1

2 A Every gun has a recoil capability, every gun sO 2 e‘

3 there would be recoil 3

4 Q. Did you test the trigger pull of the gun? 4 then, wouldn't the heat cause rigor mortis over on this side

5 A No, that is ballistics, that is above my pay 5 of his body?

6 grad. 6 1801 nty Side of.the body, .

7 THE COURT REPORTER: That is what? 7 ey heart:ySoft tissue does not activate ;‘

8 THE WITNESS: Above my pay grade. Abovemypay | 8 " RigoEmortis is inabilit ’:coyn‘\fof@,ajomt

o grade. 5 b herigidity of the muscles. w
10 Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) You didn't weigh the gun? 110 Q=86 doctor, you dléégree[ with the opinions of the
11 A. No, thatis true. 11 paramedics in this case?

12 Q. And when you did the demonstration for shot 12 A. Iwouldn't -- I don't disagree with people

13 number one, Ms. Brown bad both of her hands on that gun, |13 because that is not my role. I can't play God. Al T

14 didn't she? 14 /75aying 1§ the Vident T this Cas = o

15 A. Yes. 15 Q.

16 Q. Okay. Andthe muzzle of the gun was touching her 116 A. <Ld0gs t the allegatiofi that i
17 torso, correct? 17 hgnﬁ&?ﬁ?Tﬁ;gﬁ?ibafiéawigs”!ﬁi;‘tﬁ'e“égfiéﬁfuﬁonal right and
18 A. Yes. 18 ixi'“t}ft‘;ia?afessional right to say whatever he wants to say. I'm
19 Q. And she was seated at the front, the very front 19 ot here to agree or disagree with anybody. Jm simplyhere:

20 edge of the couchy; is that right? 20 _withm Eraimng, %xgeﬁisg and §x2g:iglge. T looked at
21 A. Possibly, yes. 21 Facientific evidenceyand I'm telling you this i)

2 Q. Right here? 22 homidide” Tatianadidnot kill Harry. This isShicide.
53 A Yes. 23 QO You ﬁoﬁ‘f“ﬁi@%ﬁﬁ%ﬁi?éiéhtg’fé*ﬁﬁgtcih€§wﬁiﬁﬁmés
24 Q. Okay. And then for shot number two, now she's 24 said?
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1 demonstration, was the butt of the gun on the floor. He | 1 back reclined on the couch, correct?
2 didn't ask you during the shooting. 2 A Yes, because the human body, when you're shot,
T3 THE WITNESS: Okay. 3 you're bleeding, you're going to fall back.
4 THE COURT: He asked you about the demonstration. | 4 Q. And it's your testimony, again, I just want to
5 That's the only question you're asked right now. There may | 5 make sure I understand, when that second shot was fired,
6 be.other questions later but during the demonstration, was | 6 Harry was manipulating the barrel of the gun with his left
2 the butt of the gun on the floor, that's yes or no. 7 hand?
8 THE WITNESS: I don't recall if it was on the g A. With both hands.
s floor. 9 Q. Both hands?
10 THE COURT: He doesn't recall. 10 A. He was manipulating the gun.
11 Q. BYMR. GREGORY:) You don't know? 11 Q. Okay.
12 A. Iwasn't paying attention because that wasn't 12 A. It was a misfire.
43 what the demonstration was for. 13 Q. How do you know it was a misfire?
14 Q. Since you're not a ballistics expert, you 124 A. Because of my education and training, cases T've
15 couldn't tell us what the kick of the gun would do if it was {15 seen, experience. Misfires happen a lot. In fact, sometimes
16 against the floor, can you? 16 you actually see the misfire before the fatal shot or {
17 A. What? 17 sometimes they actually do it intentionally. We callit -
18 Q. What the kick of the gun would do? 18 hesitation, hesitation wounds. They test the gun first on |
19 A. We don't call it kick, backfire. 19 themselves 'a“'flﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁgfly:ﬁs‘}?c;éﬂlour hand sometimes before they
20 Q. Backfire? 20 now give the fatal shot.
21 A. It recoil, the recoil. Could you repeat the 21 Q. You were talking about rigor mortis. You talked
22 question? |22 bullet can cause rigor? PR
23 Q. Yeah. You'renota ballistics expert so you 23 ‘
24 can't testify what would happen if you put the butt of the |24
7/ Page 118

-




——,

; 0

9

Staté of Nevada vs Rough Draft - Trial - Wednesday
Tatiana Leibel. aka Tatiana Kosyrkina - 14-CR-0062 February 4, 2015
Page 121 Page 123
A. 1 think I said this before. 1 MR. GREGORY: It is the law.

THE COURT: Well, wait a minute. If you're going
to make that statement, ask him about a particular statement
that one or more paramedics would have said. The question is
too vague for him to even pose an answer to it.

Q. (BY MR GREGORY:) Well, the paramedics indicated
that they thought it didn't look like the shootmg had Just

PR @ N o e W N e

42 paramedics is free to think whatever he wants and support his
right to do that, but he does not have the right to interpret
the sclennﬁc ev1dence anyway | he wants, that isa point I'm

e et 5l D

Q’.ﬁ?}» d he police officers in this case, you
disregard what they have stated?
A. The police officers are going to --

{1 not to try to interpret evidence of how to mterprvt it. The

8 MS. BROWN: Objection, Your Honor. Again, hék,
| o asking for opinions, if he disagrees with one. '; \
110 THE COURT: Overruled. Well, again, though, you' [
11 do need to be fairly specific so remember that, sir. SoT {
12 understand the question, but it's almost like a compound

:——/

2 THE COURT: Sustained. .

3 Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) So you disregard
4 Dr. Kubiczek's opinion?

5 A. Sorry.

6 Q. You disregard Dr. Kubiczek's opinions?

7 A. Idon't-- if

f

question and so it's -- unless you want a narrative answer, f‘
then you need to ask about specific opinion, SIr. t‘
Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) You read Matt Noedel's report if¢

s

16 in this case? it
17 A. Sorry?
18 Q. You read Matt Noedel's report; is that correct?

e=with-the interpretation of medical ev1dence S
11 Q. Okay. So what aBout Dr. Kubiczek's opinion, do
Zyou disregard his opinion?
,A His opinion, like I have said, he said multiple

/ gunshot wounds. [ told you personally this is not the case
of multiple gunshot wounds. Dr. Kubiczek was not the one who
determined this to be a homicide. In fact, in the report, it
says the manner of death would be determined by the Douglas
County Sheriff's Coroner. Why did do that, I don't know.
\ He's pretty much defemng a medical duty to a police
200 Qfficer=<
21 Q.” “Afe you aware that that's the law in the State of
22 Nevada?
23 MS. BROWN: I would object, Your Honor. That's
24 not the law.

19 MS. BROWN: Again, that's too general. 19 A. Who is Matt Noedel, I'm sorry? ;
20 THE COURT: Sustained. You're welcome to ask him |20 Q. Maybe you didn't read his report.: He's the ’
21 those questions but you have to be more specific about what 121 ballistics expert. 1
22 he disagrees with. 22 A. [perused through it. Idid not read it because .
23 Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) In concluding or coming to {23 I was not coming in here as a ballistics expert.
24 your conclusion, did you give any weight to statements made 24 Q. Okay. You would know if you read his report that
Page 122 Page 12“
1 by police officers? 1 he gave conclusions regarding the distances of the shots that n
2 A. The weight, like I have said in my differential 2 were fired? ":“
3 diagnosis process, in this case, my methodology, the weight | 3 A. The distance I think that I remember vividly but
4 of what a police officer said in terms of the cause of death | 4 ~Ithink he may have said that the wound on the chest wa 1
5 is down. The weight -- my foundational purpose ofthatis | 5 about two or three inches, am I correct? Help me out, i
6 weighed down. The pol1ce 1s free to assume and say whatever | 6 please. I
7 ;s Thesr i 7 Q. I'm just asking if you read the report?
8 7 ;, “Buf . ~ | 8 A Yes, Iperused through it. I didn't spend time
7 ’ sc1ent1ﬁc and inedxcal and'I completely and totally dxsaoree i 9 on the report as I spent with ‘the autopsy report.

Q. Because you are not an expert in that area, you
would defer to his opinions in that regard?

A. Not in matters relating to medical determination
of cause and manner of death, no. ¢
Q. What about distance of shots fired?

A. Shot on the body, no.

16 Q. Allright. Thank you. Ihave nothing further. !
17 THE COURT: Ms. Brown?

18 MS. BROWN: Thank you, Your Honor. A
19 THE COURT: Ms. Jackson, are you ok?
20 THE COURT REPORTER: Yes. v
21 REDIRECT EXAMINATION }]l
22 !

BY MS. BROWN: ,

Capitol
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1 the general measurement from the armpit to theend of the | 1 copy of our discovery statute and the requirement of the

2 fingers, this would be an accurate way o measure that? | 2 brief summary I needed for purposes of listing you as an
T 3 A. Yes. 3 expert in our potice of experts; is that correct?

4 Q. Butit's not an accurate way to measure reach? 4 A. Yes, ma'am.

5 A. Reach, yes, it's not. 5 Q. And so that request from me for a brief statement

6 Q. Okay. And when you're talking about the marathon | 6 regarding the subject matter of which the expert testimony is

7 runner and you said that can lead to basically set an onset | 7 expectedto testify was what you responded to with the report

g of generalized rigor mortis if they die in the sun? 8 that Mr. Gregory was referring to? '

5 A. Yes, ma'am. 9 A, Yes, ma'am. .

=
o

Q. And generalized would be more all over the body
as opposed to an isolated?

A. Yes, ma'am. ,

Q. Okay. You did not have access to M. Leibel to

[
oo

i3
14 do any testing on him; is that correct?
115 LA=EEC ou repeat that?

1¢°Q. You didnt AT actess TO'1he body OF Mr: Leibel );
1%2-to.do any testing at all gnmm, s that « correct? =

/ ‘not. s .
/4’ Q. And the one thing that you were specifically K
looking at, the liver and the brain, you requested

' microscopie slidesion those tissues; is that correot? /1

= Sirom

18/A. No, mé'ain,

vallable? )

Tt

10 Q. .And showing you what's been admitted as

¢~ Exhibit 73} you recognize this scene as the one you were
12 “ghown? Do you recognize this scene?

13 A. Yes, ma'am.

14 Q. And what is that?

15 A. The scene of the house with the sofa and Harry -
16 lying on the couch.

17 Q. Andin this photograph, there's several places

18 where there's blood, including smeared on the couch; is that
19 correct?

20  THE COURT: Do you want to display it so that
21 people can see what you're talking about?

22 Doctor, you can see it up there. You can see it

23 right in front of you also I believe.

24 THE WITNESS: Essentially, smears of blood

. Q. Showing you what's been marked as(
identification, can you go ahead and read through that.
A. Yes, I remember that e-mail.
Q. What is that e-mail?
A. Tt was an e-mail you sent me instructing me on
how to write my report that the law states.
THE COURT: Don't -- sir, don't say what it says.
THE WITNESS: Sorry.
THE COURT: It's not in evidence. Laya
foundation.
Q. (BY MS. BROWN:) So do you -- you recognize this
e-mail?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. And it was one I sent to you back in November?
A. Yes, ma'am.
Q. Andis it a fair and accurate cOpy of that e-mail
I sent to you?
A. Yes, ma'am. =
__MS. BROWN: Your Honor, I would offer;‘ i

W W N oW N

I T =
P S I S PV \C T B =

B MR. GREGORY: No objection.
23 THE COURT: Then it's admitted.
24 Q. (BYMS. BROWN:) And this e-mail I sent you a

Page 128

1 indicating where he was moved from the sofa.
2 Q. (BY MS.BROWN:) Let me just ask, there's
3 different areas of blood, including there's Mr. Leibel in the
4 foreground, there's smears of blood on the couch and pools of
5 blood on the couch?
6 A It's a small amount. Well, yes, yes.
i 7 Q. Okay. And they are different consistencies and
8 thickness?
9 A. Yes.
10 Q. In listening to the taped interviews of
11 Ms. Leibel, you could tell she had a heavy Russian accent; is
l12  that correct?
!13 A. Yes, I remember I called you to ask you what her

A

f14 ethnicity was. I have an accent. You know, she has an |

15 accent. You told me she was Russian.

16 Q. And Mr. Gregory was questioning you about a case
17 called Pritchard v. Dow?

18 A. Yes, ma'am.

19 Q. When did that judgment he was reading from occur?
20 A That was about -- this is 2015, about eight years

21  ago.

22 Q. And what was the issue that came up in Pritchard
23 V. Dow?

24 A. The issue was Mr. Pritchard had Hodgkin lymphoma.

Pages 125 - 128 (32)
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1 He had walked for Dow Chemicals, a big corporation for 25 | 1 shoulder and I checked and the autopsy pictures to see if |{;

2 years where he was exposed to some chemicals. He was also 2 DrK k.dis ected it to _'po €1 he did-not ‘

3 adding onto that after the fact he was an alcoholic, that was : 3 Q “You can't tell from that pho1 ograph or that X-ray

4 notrevealed to me. So they wanted me to do a medical legal 4 whether that's a post martem wound or pre? £

5 report, what we call a causation report. It's not a criminal frbecausethe x-rays were taken O

6 case. It's acivil case. So that Dow Chemicals would pay T— ~

7 Mr. Pritchard compensation for his cancer.

8 So Dow Chemicals being a corporation hired a very )

9 big law firm, and their strategy was to exclude me because if - s
10 they exclude me, the case was closed. So I was deposed. It |1 the fracture will remain the same. The acromio clavicle /
11 was during the deposition, I realized there was some 11 70y S
12 information that the attorney, Mr. Pritchard's attorney kept |12 Would “object’ Tause
13 from me but by then, it was already too late. 13 we're going way beyond the scope of my questioning.

14 And the judge requested for papers to support my 14 THE COURT: That's sustained.

15 opinion. I provided papers. The judge arbitrarily decided |15 MR. GREGORY: Your Honor, I may recall him then.

16 that she needed a paper to show technical tenminology, we ;16 Then we'll go to a different subject and that is rigor

17 call odds ratio. 17 mortis.

18 THE COURT: Would you spell that, please. 18 Q. You testified about -- —

19 THE WITNESS: Odds, o-d-d-s, odds ratio. 19 MS. BROWN: Your Honor, again, we're going beyond

20 THE COURT: Odds ratio. 20 the scope, if it's about the marathon runner.

21 THE WITNESS: If you're odds ratio is greater 21 THE COURT: Go ahead.

22 than one, even if it's 1.1, your ratio cause the disease, but ;22 MR. GREGORY: I was going -- ‘

23 the judge said in her court, we have to use an odd ratio of |23 THE COURT: The objection was withdrawn.

24 two. Of course, there was no paper of mine thathad anodds 124 Q. (BY MR. GREGORY:) Where was the rigor mortis in
Page 130 Page 132

1 ratio of two, so she ruled I was very qualified but my 1 Harry's arm?

2 methodology was flawed. 2 A. The rigor mortis, to the best of my

3 And looking back now, I agree with her, but she 3 understanding, in the small joints of the upper extremity,

4 said I was highly qualified though, but a good thingisI | 4" the fihgers, the hand, the wrist jomt. I don't remember

5 learned from that mistake. T've done over 8,000 -- thousands s exactly, maybe in the elbow. I don't remember exactly.

6 of cases. ] have not repeated such a mistake, and Ithink | 6 Q. So if the arm is on the floor in the upward

7 the mistake I made in the previous case is making an 7 position, would that indicate rigor in the elbow?

8 assumption is the case we're making in this case. g8 A. Not exactly.

9 Q. Thank you. I have nothing further. cl ... What would it indicate?

10 THE COURT: Mr. Gregory? i It col ld mdwate
11 RECROSS-EXAMINATION c
12 BY MR. GREGORY:
13 Q. Harry's left shoulder, the X-ray you talked
14 about, there was two different things you said. You called
15 it a fracture, and I think you called it something different.
16 How do you characterize that? ised on O
17 A. Theoneontheskinisa graze. e wound 17 Q Thank You. “Thave nothing further.
18 ognd, the shot tra ectdry grazed the shouldeg Thisison (18 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
19 n, thatawas a |19 Doctor, thank you for being here. You may step
20 int. Lhe acroxmal 20 down.
21 séting the sca ‘« 21 THE WITNESS: Thank you, sir.
22 iSdofcat a t t1me when { the person is 22 THE COURT: You may be subject to being recalled
23 logist t~have 10, break anything? {23 so I don't want you to leave the building. Don't leave the
24 e 1ibs)not the 24 building.
Capitol Reporters 33) Pages 129 - 132
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Petition to Establish Factual Innocence

34.900. Definitions.

Ae———
-

34.910. “Bona fide issue of factual innocence” defined.

34.920. “Factual innocence” defined.

34.930. “Newly discovered evidence” defined.

34.940. Determination of when evidence is “material.”

34.950. Claim of factual innocence is separate from state habeas claim.

34.960. Filing of petition; notice and copy of petition to be served on district attorney and
Attorney General; contents; review by court; grounds for dismissal; explanation of decision
by court; preservation of evidence; proceedings governed by Nevada Rules of Civil
Procedure. :

34.970. Order by court requiring response to petition; contents of order; time for response; reply;
consideration of petition by court; hearing on petition; stipulation of factual innocence of
petitioner; issuance of order of factual innocence; explanation by court; appeal.

34.980. Appointment of counsel.

34.990. Notice to victim.

34900 Definitions.

As used in NRS,34.900 to 34.990, inclusive, unless the context otherwise requires, the words

and terms defined in NRS 34.910, 34.920 and 34.930 have the meanings ascribed to them in
those sections.

History.
2019, ch. 495, § 2, p. 2976.

Effective Dates

This section is effective July 1, 2019.

34.910. “Bona fide issue of factual innocence” defined.

“Bona fide issue of factual innocence” means that newly discovered evidence presented by
the petitioner, if credible, would clearly establish the factual innocence of the petitioner.

History.
2019, ch. 495, § 3, p. 2977.

NVCODE 1
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Effective Dates

This section is effective July 1, 2019.

34.920. “Factual innocence” defined.

“Factual innocence” means that a person did not:
1. Engage in the conduct for which he or she was convicted;

2. Engage in conduct constituting a lesser included or inchoate offense of the crime for
which he or she was convicted; '

3. Commit any other crime arising out of or reasonably connected to the facts supporting
the indictment or information upon which he or she was convicted; and

4. Commit the conduct charged by the State under any theory of criminal liability alleged
in the indictment or information.
History.
2019, ch. 495, § 4, p. 2977.

Effective Dates

This section is effective July 1, 2019.

34.930. “Newly discovered evidence” defined.

“Newly discovered evidence” means evidence that was not available to a petitioner at trial or
during the resolution by the trial court of any motion to withdraw a guilty plea or motion for new
trial and which is material to the determination of the issue of factual innocence, including,
without limitation:

1. Evidence that was discovered before or during the applicable period for any direct
appeal or postconviction petition for a writ of habeas corpus pursuant to this chapter that served
in whole or in part as the basis to vacate or reverse the petitioner’s conviction;

2. Evidence that supports the claims within a postconviction petition for a writ of habeas
corpus that is pending at the time of the court’s determination of factual innocence pursuant to

NVCODE 2
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176.0918, Petition requesting genetic marker analysis by person convicted of felony;

et

procedure; notice to victim.

1. A person convicted of a felony who otherwise meets the requirements of this section may
file a postconviction petition requesting a genetic marker analysis of evidence within the
possession or custody of the State which may contain genetic marker information relating to the
investigation or prosecution that resulted in the judgment of conviction. If the case involves a
sentence of death, the petition must include, without limitation, the date scheduled for the
execution, if it has been scheduled.

2. Such a petition must be filed with the clerk of the district court for the county in which the
petitioner was convicted on a form prescribed by the Department of Corrections. A copy of the
petition must be served by registered mail upon:

(a) The Attorney General; and
(b) The district attorney in the county in which the petitioner was convicted.

3. A petition filed pursuant to this section must be accompanied by a declaration under
penalty of perjury attesting that the information contained in the petition does not contain any
material misrepresentation of fact and that the petitioner has a good faith basis relying on
particular facts for the request. The petition must include, without limitation:

(a) Information identifying specific evidence either known or believed to be in the
possession or custody of the State that can be subject to genetic marker analysis;

(b) The rationale for why a reasonable possibility exists that the petitioner would not have
been prosecuted or convicted if exculpatory results had been obtained through a genetic marker
analysis of the evidence identified in paragraph (a);

(¢) An identification of the type of genetic marker analysis the petitioner is requesting to
be conducted on the evidence identified in paragraph (a);

(d) If applicable, the results of all prior genetic marker analysis performed on evidence in
the trial which resulted in the petitioner's conviction; and

(e) A statement that the type of genetic marker analysis the petitioner is requesting was
not available at the time of trial or, if it was available, that the failure to request genetic marker
analysis before the petitioner was convicted was not a result of a strategic or tactical decision as
part of the representation of the petitioner at the trial.
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4, If a petition is filed pursuant to this section, the court may:

(a) Enter an order dismissing the petition without a hearing if the court determines, based
on the information contained in the petition, that the petitioner does not meet the requirements
set forth in this section;

(b) After determining whether the petitioner is indigent pursuant to NRS 171.188 and
whether counsel was appointed in the case which resulted in the conviction, appoint counsel] for
the limited purpose of reviewing, supplementing and presenting the petition to the court; or

(¢) Schedule a hearing on the petition. If the court schedules a hearing on the petition, the
court shall determine which person or agency has possession or custody of the evidence and shall
immediately issue an order requiring, during the pendency of the proceeding, each person or
agency in possession or custody of the evidence to:

(1) Preserve all evidence within the possession or custody of the person or agency
that may be subjected to genetic marker analysis pursuant to this section;

(2) Within 90 days, prepare an inventory of all evidence relevant to the claims in
the petition within the possession or custody of the person or agency that may be subjected to
genetic marker analysis pursuant to this section; and

(3) Within 90 days, submit a copy of the inventory to the petitioner, the
prosecuting attorney and the court.

5. Within 90 days after the inventory of all evidence is prepared pursuant to subsection 4, the
prosecuting attorney may file a written response to the petition with the court.

6. If the court holds a hearing on a petition filed pursuant to this section, the hearing must be
presided over by the judge who conducted the trial that resulted in the conviction of the
petitioner, unless that judge is unavailable. Any evidence presented at the hearing by affidavit
must be served on the opposing party at least 15 days before the hearing.

7. If a petitioner files a petition pursuant to this section, the court schedules a hearing on the
petition and a victim of the crime for which the petitioner was convicted has requested notice
pursuant to NRS 178.5698, the district attorney in the county in which the petitioner was
convicted shall provide to the victim notice of:

(a) The fact that the petitioner filed a petition pursuant to this section;

(b) The time and place of the hearing scheduled by the court as a result of the petition;
and
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(c) The outcome of any hearing on the petition.
HISTORY:

2003, ch. 335, § 2, p. 1892; 2009, ch. 283, § 1, p. 1197; 2013, ch. 300, § 1, p. 1409.
Editor's note.

Following the amendment of NRS 176.0918 by Acts 2013, ch. 300, § 1, the Legislative Counsel
Bureau, under the authority of NRS 220.120, divided that section into NRS 176.0918, 176.09183, and
176.09187. -

Amendment Notes
The 2009 amendment, effective October 1, 2009, rewrote the section.

The 2013 amendment, effective October 1, 2013, rewrote the section.
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176.09183. Grounds for granting or dismissing petition; appeal.

1. The court shall order a genetic marker analysis, after considering the information contained
in the petition pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS 176.0918 and any other evidence, if the court
finds that:

(a) The evidence to be analyzed exists;

(b) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, the evidence was not previously
subjected to a genetic marker analysis, including, without limitation, because such an analysis
was not available at the time of trial; and

(¢) One or more of the following situations applies:

(1) A reasonable possibility exists that the petitioner would not have been
prosecuted or convicted if exculpatory results had been obtained through a genetic marker
analysis of the evidence identified in the petition;

(2) The petitioner alleges and supports with facts that he or she asked his or her
attorney to request to have a genetic marker analysis conducted, but the attorney refused or
neglected to do so; or

(3) The court previously ordered a genetic marker analysis to be conducted, but an
analysis was never conducted.

2. If the evidence was previously subjected to a genetic marker analysis, the court shall order
a genetic marker analysis pursuant to subsection 1 if the court finds that:

(a) The result of the previous analysis was inconclusive;

(b) The evidence was not subjected to the type of analysis that is now requested and the
requested analysis may resolve an issue not resolved by the previous analysis; or

(¢) The requested analysis would provide results that are significantly more accurate and
probative of the identity of the perpetrator than the previous analysis.

3. If the court orders a genetic marker analysis pursuant to subsection 1 or 2, the court shall:

(a) Order the analysis to be conducted promptly under reasonable conditions designed to
protect the interest of the State and the petitioner in the integrity of the evidence and the analysis
process.
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(b) Select a forensic laboratory to conduct or oversee the analysis. The forensic laboratory
selected by the court must:

(1) Be operated by this state or one of its political subdivisions, when possible;
and

(2) Satisfy the standards for quality assurance that are established for forensic
laboratories by the Federal Bureau of Investigation.

(¢) Order the forensic laboratory selected pursuant to paragraph (b) to perform a genetic
marker analysis of evidence. The analysis to be performed and evidence to be analyzed must:

(1) Be specified in the order; and

(2) Include such analysis, testing and comparison of genetic marker information
contained in the evidence and the genetic marker information of the petitioner as the court
determines appropriate under the circumstances.

(d) Order the production of any reports that are prepared by a forensic laboratory in -
connection with the analysis and any data and notes upon which the report is based.

(e) Order the preservation of evidence used in a genetic marker analysis performed
pursuant to this section and NRS 176.0918 and 176.09187 for purposes of a subsequent
proceeding or analysis, if any.

(f) Order the results of the genetic marker analysis performed pursuant to this section and
NRS 176.0918 and 176.09187 to be sent to the State Board of Parole Commissioners if the
results of the genetic marker analysis are not favorable to the petitioner.

4, If the court orders a genetic marker analysis pursuant to subsection 1 or 2, the State may
appeal to the appellate court of competent jurisdiction pursuant to the rules fixed by the Supreme
Court pursuant to Section 4 of Article 6 of the Nevada Constitution within 30 days after the
notice of the entry of the order by filing a notice of appeal with the clerk of the district court.

5. The court shall enter an order dismissing a petition filed pursuant to NRS 176.0918 if:

(a) The requirements for ordering a genetic marker analysis pursuant to this section and
NRS 176.0918 and 176.09187 are not satisfied; or

(b) The results of a genetic marker analysis performed pursuant to this section and NRS
176.0918 and 176.09187 are not favorable to the petitioner.
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6. If the court enters an order dismissing a petition filed pursuant to NRS 176.0918, the
person aggrieved by the order may appeal to the appellate court of competent jurisdiction
pursuant to the rules fixed by the Supreme Court pursuant to Section 4 of Article 6 of the Nevada
Constitution within 30 days after the notice of the entry of the order by filing a notice of appeal
with the clerk of the district court.

HISTORY:
2003, ch. 335, § 2, p. 1892; 2009, ch. 283, § 1, p. 1197; 2013, ch. 300, § 1, p. 1409; 2017, ch.
478, § 5.7, p. 2988.

Editor's Notes

Following the amendment of NRS 176.0918 by Acts 2013, ch. 300, § 1, the Legislative Counsel
under the authority of NRS 220.120, divided that section into NRS 176.0918, 176.09183, and
176.09187.

Amendment Notes
The 2009 amendmen't, effective October 1, 2009, rewrote the section.
The 2013 amendment, effective October 1, 2013, rewrote the section.

The 2017 amendment by ch. 478, effective July 1, 2017, deleted former (1)(a), which read: *A
reasonable possibility exists that the petitioner would not have been prosecuted or convicted if exculpatory
results had been obtained through a genetic marker analysis of the evidence identified in the petition”;
redesignated former (1)(b) and (1)(c) as (1)(a) and (1)(b); added “including, without limitation, because
such an analysis was not available at the time of trial” in (1)(b); added (1)(c); and made a related change.
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176.09117. “Forensic laboratory” defined.

“Forensic laboratory” means any laboratory designated pursuant to NRS 176.0917.

HISTORY:
2013, ch. 252, § 8, p. 1057.

Effective date.

This section is effective July 1, 2013.

176.09118. “Genetic marker analysis” defined.

“Genetic marker analysis” means the analytical testing process of a biological specimen that
results in a DNA profile.

HISTORY:
2013, ch. 252, § 9, p. 1057.

Effective date.

This section is effective July 1, 2013.
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176.09112. “Biological specimen” defined.

“Biological specimen” means a biological sample, tissue, fluid or other bodily sample
suitable for genetic marker analysis, obtained from a person or from physical evidence.

HISTORY:
2013, ch. 252, § 3, p. 1056.

Effective date.

This section is effective July 1, 2013.
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NRS 34.900 to 34.990, inclusive; or

3. Relevant forensic scientific evidence, other than the expert opinion of a psychologist,
psychiatrist or other mental health professional, that was not available at the time of trial or
during the resolution by the trial court of any motion to withdraw a guilty plea or motion for new
trial, or that undermines materially forensic scientific evidence presented at trial. Forensic
scientific evidence is considered to be undermined if new research or information exists that
repudiates the foundational validity of scientific evidence or testimony or the applied validity of a
scientific method or technique. As used in this subsection: :

(a) “Applied validity” means the reliability of a scientific method or technique in
practice.

(b) “Foundational validity” means the reliability of a scientific method to be
repeatable, reproducible and accurate in a scientific setting.

History.
2019, ch. 495, § 5, p. 2977.
Effective Dates

This section is effective July 1, 2019. '

34.940. Determination of when evidence is “material.”

For the purposes of NRS 34209 to 34.990, inclusive, evidence is “material” if the evidence
establishes a reasonable probability of a different outcome.

History.
2019, ch. 495, § 5.5, p. 2977.

Effective Dates

This section is effective July 1, 2019.

)

34.950. Claim of factual innocence is separate from state habeas claim.

Any claim of factual innocence that is made pursuant to NRS 34.900 to 34. 990, inclusive, is

separate from any state habeas claim that alleges a fundamental miscarriage of justice to excuse
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procedural or time limitations pursuant to NRS 34.726 or 34.810.

History.
2019, ch. 495, § 5.7, p. 2977.

Effective Dates

This section is effective July 1, 2018.

34.960. Filing of petition; notice and copy of petition to be served on district attorney
and Attorney General; contents; review by court; grounds for dismissal; explanation of
decision by court; preservation of evidence; proceedings governed by Nevada Rules of Civil
Procedure.

1. At any time after the expiration of the period during which a motion for a new trial based
on newly discovered evidence may be made pursuant to NRS 176.515, a person who has been
convicted of a felony may petition the district court in the county in which the person was
convicted for a hearing to establish the factual innocence of the person based on newly
discovered evidence. A person who files a petition pursuant to this subsection shall serve notice
and a copy of the petition upon the district attorney of the county in which the conviction was
obtained and the Attorney General.

2. A petition filed pursuant to subsection 1 must contain an assertion of factual innocence
under oath by the petitioner and must aver, with supporting affidavits or other credible
documents, that:

(a) Newly discovered evidence exists that is specifically identified and, if credible,
establishes a bona fide issue of factual innocence;

(b) The newly discovered evidence identified by the petitioner:

(1) Establishes innocence and is material to the case and the determination of
factual innocence;

(2) Is not merely cumulative of evidence that was known, is not reliant solely
upon recantation of testimony by a witness against the petitioner and is not merely impeachment
evidence; and

(3) Is distinguishable from any claims made in any previous petitions;
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(c) If some or all of the newly discovered evidence alleged in the petition is a biological
specimen, that a genetic marker analysis was performed pursuant to NRS 176.0918, 176.09183
and 176.09187 and the results were favorable to the petitioner; and

(d) When viewed with all other evidence in the case, regardless of whether such evidence
was admitted during trial, the newly discovered evidence demonstrates the factual innocence of
the petitioner.

3. In addition to the requirements set forth in subsection 2, a petition filed pursuant to
subsection 1 must also assert that:

(a) Neither the petitioner nor the petitioner’s counsel knew of the newly discovered
evidence at the time of trial or sentencing or in time to include the evidence in any previously
filed post-trial motion or postconviction petition, and the evidence could not have been
discovered by the petitioner or the petitioner’s counsel through the exercise of reasonable
diligence; or '

(b) A court has found ineffective assistance of counsel for failing to exercise reasonable
diligence in uncovering the newly discovered evidence.

4. The court shall review the petition and determine whether the petition satisfies the
requirements of subsection 2. If the court determines that the petition:

(a) Does not meet the requirements of subsection 2, the court shall dismiss the petition
without prejudice, state the basis for the dismissal and send notice of the dismissal to the
petitioner, the district attorney and the Attorney General.

(b) Meets the requirements of subsection 2, the court shall determine whether the petition
satisfies the requirements of subsection 3. If the court determines that the petition does not meet
the requirements of subsection 3, the court may:

(1) Dismiss the petition without prejudice, state the basis for the dismissal and
send notice of the dismissal to the petitioner, the district attorney and the Attorney General; or

(2) Waive the requirements of subsection 3 if the court finds the petition should
proceed to a hearing and that there is other evidence that could have been discovered through the
exercise of reasonable diligence by the petitioner or the petitioner’s counsel at trial, and the other
evidence:

(I) Was not discovered by the petitioner or the petitioner’s counsel;
(II) Is material upon the issue of factual innocence; and
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(IIX) Has never been presented to a court.

5. Any second or subsequent petition filed by a person must be dismissed if the court
determines that the petition fails to identify new or different evidence in support of the factual
innocence claim or, if new and different grounds are alleged, the court finds that the failure of the
petitioner to assert those grounds in a prior petition filed pursuant to this section constituted an
abuse of the writ.

6. The court shall provide a written explanation of its order to dismiss or not to dismiss the
petition based on the requirements set forth in subsections 2 and 3.

7. A person who has already obtained postconviction relief that vacated or reversed the
person’s conviction or sentence may also file a petition pursuant to subsection 1 in the same
manner and form as described in this section if no retrial or appeal regarding the offense is
pending.

8. After a petition is filed pursuant to subsection 1, any prosecuting attorney, law
enforcement agency or forensic laboratory that is in possession of any evidence that is the subject
of the petition shall preserve such evidence and any information necessary to determine the
sufficiency of the chain of custody of such evidence.

9. A petition filed pursuant to subsection 1 must include the underlying criminal case
number.

10. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 3_4200 to 34.990, inclusive, the Nevada Rules of
Civil Procedure govern all proceedings concerning a petition filed pursuant to subsection 1.

11. As used in this section:
(a) “Biological specimen” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 176.09112.
(b) “Forensic laboratory” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 176.09117.

(¢) “Genetic marker analysis” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 176.09118.

History.
2019, ch. 495, § 6, p. 2977.

Effective Dates

This section is effective July 1, 2018.
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34.970. Order by court requiring response to petition; contents of order; time for
response; reply; consideration of petition by court; hearing on petition; stipulation of
factual innocence of petitioner; issuance of order of factual innocence; explanation by
court; appeal.

1. If the court does not dismiss a petition after reviewing the petition in accordance with NRS
34.960, the court shall order the district attorney or the Attorney General to file a response to the
petition. The court’s order must:

(a) Specify which claims identified in the petition warrant a response from the district
attorney or the Attorney General; and

(b) Specify which newly discovered evidence identified in the petition, if credible, might
establish a bona fide issue of factual innocence.

2. The district attorney or the Attorney General shall, not later than 120 days after receipt of
the court’s order requiring a response, or within any additional period the court allows, respond
to the petition and serve a copy upon the petitioner and, if the district attorney is responding to
the petition, the Attorney General.

3. Not later than 30 days after the date the district attorney or the Attorney General responds
to the petition, the petitioner may reply to the response. Not later than 30 days after the expiration
of the period during which the petitioner may reply to the response, the court shall consider the
petition, any response by the district attorney or the Attorney General and any reply by the
petitioner. If the court determines that the petition meets the requirements of NRS 34.960 and
that there is a bona fide issue of factual innocence regarding the charges of which the petitioner
was convicted, the court shall order a hearing on the petition. If the court does not make such a
determination, the court shall enter an order denying the petition. For the purposes of this
subsection, a bona fide issue of factual innocence does not exist if the petitioner is merely
relitigating facts, issues or evidence presented in a previous proceeding or if the petitioner is
unable to identify with sufficient specificity the nature and reliability of the newly discovered
evidence that establishes the factual innocence of the petitioner. Unless stipulated to by the
parties, the court may not grant a hearing on the petition during any period in which criminal
proceedings in the matter are pending before any trial or appellate court.

4. If the court grants a hearing on the petition, the hearing must be held and the final order
must be entered not later than 150 days after the expiration of the period during which the
petitioner may reply to the response to the petition by the district attorney or the Attorney
General pursuant to subsection 3 unless the court determines that additional time is required for
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good cause shown.

5. If the court grants a hearing on the petition, the court shall, upon the request of the
petitioner, order the preservation of all material and relevant evidence in the possession or
control of this State or any agent thereof during the pendency of the proceeding.

6. If the parties stipulate that the evidence establishes the factual innocence of the petitioner,
the court may affirm the factual innocence of the petitioner without holding a hearing. If the
prosecuting attorney does not stipulate that the evidence establishes the factual innocence of the
petitioner, a determination of factual innocence must not be made by the court without a hearing.

7. If the parties stipulate that the evidence establishes the factual innocence of the petitioner,
the prosecuting attorney makes a motion to dismiss the original charges against the petitioner or,
after a hearing, the court determines that the petitioner has proven his or her factual innocence by
clear and convincing evidence, the court shall:

(a) Vacate the petitioner’s conviction and issue an order of factual innocence and
exoneration; and

(b) Order the sealing of all documents, papers and exhibits in the person’s record, minute
book entries and entries on dockets and other documents relating to the case in the custody of
such other agencies and officers as are named in the court’s order.

8. The court shall provide a written explanation of its determination that the petitioner proved
or failed to prove his or her factual innocence by clear and convincing evidence.

9. Any order granting or denying a hearing on a petition pursuant to this section may be
appealed by either party.

History.
2019, ch. 495, § 7, p. 2979.

Effective Dates

This section is effective July 1, 2019,

34.980. Appointment of counsel.

If the court grants a hearing on the petition pursuant to NRS 34.970, the court may, after
determining whether the petitioner is indigent pursuant to NRS 171.188 and whether counsel was
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appointed in the case which resulted in the conviction, appoint counsel for the petitioner.
History.
2019, ch. 495, § 8, p. 2981.

Effective Dates

This section is effective July 1, 2019.

34.990. Notice to victim.

After a petition is filed pursuant to NRS 34.960, if any victim of the crime for which the
petitioner was convicted has indicated a desire to be notified regarding any postconviction
proceedings, the district attorney shall make reasonable efforts to provide notice to such a victim
that the petition has been filed and that indicates the time and place for any hearing that may be
held as a result of the petition and the disposition thereof.

History.
2019, ch. 495, § 9, p. 2981.

Effective Dates

This section is effective July 1, 2018.
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